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Chairman’s Statement

ek

Dear Shareholders:

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of
China Partytime Culture Holdings Limited (the “Company”, together
with its subsidiaries, collectively referred to as (the “Group”), | am
pleased to present to you the annual report of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2021.

The Group is principally engaged in the design, development,
production, selling and marketing of cosplay products (including
cosplay costumes and cosplay wigs) and non-cosplay apparels
which include mainly sexy lingerie. Our products are principally for
export sales to more than 10 countries and regions around the globe
including mainly the U.S, Germany, the UK, Japan and Australia.

In 2019, the Group also diversified and expanded to sub-leasing
business by entering several lease agreements which relate to the
factory premises situated in the PRC.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group also
established an associate company with independent third parties and
it is intended that this associate company will be principally engaged
in cultural tourism development and related project planning
consultation business. The development of the cultural tourism
business of the associate company will create synergies with the
Group’s development of cultural products in the Park which will be
beneficial to the development of the Group’s business as a whole.

RESULTS SUMMARY

The turnover for the year ended 31 December 2021 amounted
to approximately RMB242.2 million, representing a decrease of
5.1% as compared to that in 2020. Gross profit margin and net loss
margin were approximately 27.2% and 7.2% respectively. The Group
recorded a loss for the year attributable to owners of the Company
of approximately RMB 17.7 million as compared to a loss of
approximately RMB68.4 million for the corresponding year in 2020,
which represented a decrease of 74.1%. The Group maintained
healthy financial position with net current assets of RMB 53.6 million
and net cash position at the financial year end.
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PROSPECTS

The COVID-19 pandemic has caused severe disruption to economic
activities worldwide and the global economy and consumer
confidence have been adversely affected. The pandemic has lasted
for more than 2 years and has an adverse impact on our development
plan. Looking forward, 2022 will remain challenging amid the fluidity
of the COVID-19 situation and economic uncertainties.

The Group will continue to use its best endeavor to improve the
efficiency and effectiveness of its operation. Moreover, the Board will
seek opportunities to diversify our business and broaden our revenue
stream by acquiring intellectual property right with potential growth
and collaborating with companies in our upstream and downstream
industries. The Group will continue to evaluate and identify target
companies which have investment value and which can generate
synergies with our business within the industry and along the industry
chain, with the aim of bringing greater return to shareholders while
expanding our business and revenue streams.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to extend our sincere gratitude
to our shareholders, customers and business partners for their full
support throughout the year. In addition, | would also like to take this
opportunity to express my appreciation to all staffs for their persistent
contributions to the Group.

On behalf of the Board

Chen Sheng
Chairlady

Hong Kong, 30 March 2022
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Directors’ Business Review and Management Discussion and

Analysis

o J R ol R S A

B i i B o0 A

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS FERFEE
2021 2020
—E-—% —T_EF
RMB’000 RMB’000 % change
AR#TFiT AR FT BEH S
Performance Indicators FMEE
Revenue U = 242,212 255,252 (5.1%)
Gross Profit EF 65,986 64,284 2.6%
Gross Profit Margin RS 27.2% 25.2% +2.0pptE D2k
Loss from operations L e (13,309) (74,487) (82.1%)
Loss for the year attributable to RARIEEREABGEFR
equity holders of the Company 518 (17,722) (68,437) (74.1%)
Net Loss Margin HEE R (7.2%) (26.8%) -19.6pptE 7 2h
Return on total assets 488 fE [o] 3R R (3.7%) (14.9%) -11.2pptE 2 2h
Financial Health Indicators MBRRER
Bank balances and cash ROTEHR MRS 99,661 48,908 103.8%
Net current assets MENEEFE 53,626 32,646 64.3%
Total assets BEE 487,152 460,112 5.9%
Total liabilities wEE 122,612 108,584 12.9%
Equity attributable to equity holders ZRQ RIHEZEIE B A BIL S
of the Company 361,175 351,528 2.7%
Return on equity RN EIE B (4.8%) (19.5%) -14.7pptBE D24
Current ratio e LE =& 146.1% 131.7% +14.4ppt & 5 2
Gearing ratio BEAGBILE 27.8% 25.4% +2.Appt & D2k
Cash Flow and Capital Expenditure RERERFTEFAX
Cash generated from/(used in) BB,/ (AR
operations 25,238 (11,894) 312%
Capital expenditure EARFEL 35,786 14,312 150.0%
Shareholders’ Return Indicators BROEEE RVMBA B RMB A R %
Loss per share BREE
- Basic - E K (1.78) cents &  (7.62) cents & (76.6%)
— Diluted ! (1.78) cents &  (7.62) cents 73 (76.6%)
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Directors’ Business Review and Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in the design, development,
production, selling and marketing of cosplay products (including
cosplay costumes and cosplay wigs) and non-cosplay apparels
which include mainly sexy lingerie. Our products are principally for
export sales to more than 10 countries and regions around the globe
including mainly the US, Germany, the UK, Japan and Australia.

Our business can be classified into two major categories, namely
CMS business and OBM business.

o SR o] e B AR B ) e B 0 e

RGO
AEBETERERS FH LE HEREH
ACHEREM (BREABHERNGLABHIERE)
RIEABHERM (EZBFEMRAK) - HFIH
EmF2HAHEEZEEHIOZEBARKME - *
ZEFEEE - B KE - ARKEN -

RPN EBSAE D AWEEZELER - BICMS
5 OBM 75 ©

2021 2020
—EBZ—%F —TTHF
Increase
(decrease)
of revenue
(approximate
Revenue % of total Revenue % of total %)
Wz & N
O 4)
{L#28R G485 (B4
I & BSL Wz Bo Bol)
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR#TFiT ARBRETFT
CMS business CMS #7% 200,464 82.8% 167,408 65.6% 19.7%
OBM business OBM 7% 41,748 17.2% 87,844 34.4% (52.5%)
Total BET 242,212 100.0% 255,252 100.0% (5.1%)
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Directors’ Business Review and Management Discussion and Analysis
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Revenue by operating and reportable segments

LEERTVE2HES BN

2021 2020
—E-—% —E-EF

Increase
(decrease)
of revenue
(approximate
Revenue % of total Revenue % of total %)
Wz 12 o0
OB )
{&#8& 1h#B%E (B4
&= B W& Btk Bot)

RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR ¥ TiT AREFT
Wigs & 39,263 16.2% 75,548 29.6% (48.0%)
Clothing and others PR 5 K B A 202,949 83.8% 179,704 70.4% 12.9%
Total FEES 242,212 100.0% 255,252 100.0% (5.1%)

Our revenue from both the CMS business and the OBM business
decreased from RMB255.3 million for the year ended 31 December
2020 to RMB242.2 million for the year ended 31 December 2021,
representing a decrease of 5.1%.

To enhance our production efficiency and to foster the collaboration
of companies of our upstream and downstream industries, we
established a “Party Culture Industrial Park” (the “Park”) in Yiwu,
PRC in late 2019 and the lease period of the Park was subsequently
renewed for a further three years during the year. The Park, together
with our E-commerce Operation Centre and our Service and
Experience Centre (the “Centre”) helped to integrate and co-ordinate
with companies of our upstream and downstream industries. The
Group further entered into a lease agreement for the Feifeng Road
Premises, located near the Group’s existing Park (“Feifeng Road
Premises”) in September 2020, to expand the Park. The Group had
sub-lease the Park and the Feifeng Road Premises to the companies
of the Group’s upstream and downstream industries.

For the factory buildings at our Yiwu Production Plant and Yichun
Production Plant, in view of the uncertain foreign trade environment
caused by the COVID-19, the Group had sub-leased part of the
Yiwu Production Plant during the year and Yichun Production Plant
in 2020 to other local enterprises. Consequently, the portion being
sub-leased for the Yiwu Production Plant and the Yichun Production
Plant were being reclassified as investment properties at cost model.
As at 31 December 2021, 65% (2020: 35%) of the gross floor areas
were sub-leased. The Group is actively looking for tenants and the
management believe that sub-leasing the Yiwu Production Plant and
the Yichun Production Plant help to utilize the assets of the Group.

CMS 75 ROBM RS MM MBE T - T4
+Z A=t BIEFEHARS553E BT
SERE-B-—FT-A=+—BILFEHA
R¥242288T BA51%°

RESHMANEERXEBERITELTHARMN
MEE RIR-_F-NFFEEFEESEY
RS EEXEM] [EXR)])  HERFRE
FEMESE-—SLER=F -EXEERETH
BRERLERBERERTO (L)) - UEE
EFTHOBAZER RZT_TFhA  £5H
i — BRI A SR B3R A Y A 5B P AT 9 AR R BE
ME(RBEYEDITLEERZ  WBEBREZX
cAKBECHEXERREBEMESIETAE
B ETHITENRF -

EREERMERERLERENIRAZS @
BRI A EHINERETHAR  ARERF
NEHBIESEERELN _ T _ZFKHLNE
REERMEOETHMA AR -Filt - E54E
EREIMEELERFEN D BB TEEN /K
EYE -R_TE_—F+-_A=+—H H65% (=
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Directors’ Business Review and Management Discussion and Analysis

Gross income from leasing of factory premises of approximately
RMB4,932,000 (2020: RMB5,424,000) (including the lease of plant
and machineries) were recognized during the year and included in
other income on the face of the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income.

During the year, the Group established an associate company with
independent third parties and it is intended that this associate
company will be principally engaged in cultural tourism development
and related project planning consultation business. The development
of the cultural tourism business of the associate company will create
synergies with the Group’s development of cultural products in the
Park which will be beneficial to the development of the Group’s
business as a whole.

Loss attributable to the equity holders of the Company decreased
from approximately RMB68.4 million for the year ended 31
December 2020 to approximately RMB17.7 million for the year
ended 31 December 2021.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Risks and uncertainties can affect the Group’s businesses, financial
conditions, operational results or growth prospects lead to a
divergence from the expected or the historical results. Key risk factors
and uncertainties affecting the Group are outlined below. In dealing
with these risk factors and uncertainties, the Group remains in touch
with our stakeholders with the aim of understanding and addressing
their concerns.

These factors are not exhaustive or comprehensive, and there may
be other risks in addition to those shown below which are not known
to the Group or which may not be material now but could become
material in the future.

Global Economy and Macro-economic Conditions

Over 90% of our revenue was generated from sales to overseas
customers over 10 countries. The industries in which the Group
operates are adversely affected by the economic conditions,
consumer spending, contagious disease outbreaks and currency
environment in these regions. Any combination of these factors
or continuing adverse economic conditions in these regions may
adversely affect the Group’s financial position, potential income, asset
value and liabilities.

o SR o] e B AR B ) e B 0 e

FRNEBREAEBREDELBRAHARE
4,932,000 (ZEZFF : AR®5424,0007T)
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Directors’ Business Review and Management Discussion and Analysis
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Foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations

Most of our revenue are denominated in US dollars (“USD"). Our
profit margins will be adversely affected if we are unable to increase
the USD denominated selling prices of our products sold to overseas
customers or shift the exchange risk to our customers to account for
the appreciation of the RMB against the USD. Further, any significant
fluctuation in the exchange rates between the RMB and the USD may
result in increases or decreases in our reported costs and earnings,
and may also materially affect our business and results of operations.
Any future exchange rate volatility relating to the RMB may also give
rise to uncertainties in the values of net assets, profits and dividends.

Changing trends and popularities of movie and animation
characters

Some of our cosplay products in our CMS business feature popular
cosplaying characters originated from animation characters, comics,
car toons and movies. These products are manufactured under the
authorisations given by our CMS customers who are licensees or
proprietors of popular animation characters. As trends and popularity
of these characters may change from time to time, market demand
and the revenue thus generated from our products featuring these
characters will be affected accordingly.

The popularity of animation characters are largely determined
by the appeal of such characters to the target audience and the
effectiveness of the marketing campaigns conducted for the
animations or films from which they originated. Their popularity
is also subject to changes in market trends. If these animation
characters do not achieve our customers’ desired levels of market
acceptance or the popularity of which drops drastically, the sale of
our products featuring these animation characters will be adversely
affected correspondingly. Eventually, we may not receive similar
levels of purchase orders from our customers as we did in the
past and the revenue thus generated from the sale of products
featuring these animation characters would be substantially lower
than our expectation at the time when we plan our expansion and
expenditures.

Impairment of intangible assets

The intangible assets of the Group consist of trademarks and patents.
The failure to generate financial results commensurate with the
Group’s intangible assets could adversely affect the valuation of such
intangible assets and in turn result in impairment loss. Any significant
impairment loss charged against our intangible assets could have an
adverse effect on our business and financial condition and operating
results of the Group.
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Directors’ Business Review and Management Discussion and Analysis

Joint Venture Partner Risk

The Group conducts some of its business through associated
companies which it shares control with the joint venture partners.
There are uncertainties that the joint venture partners will continue
the relationship with the Group in the future or their goals or
strategies are in line with the Group. Furthermore, the joint venture
partners in the associated companies may undergo a change of
control or financial difficulties which may have adverse impact on the
Group’s financial conditions and operations results of the Group.

IMPORTANT EVENTS AFFECTING THE GROUP THAT
HAVE OCCURRED SINCE THE END OF THE FINANCIAL
YEAR

Saved as those disclosed in this annual report, we did not identify
any important events affecting the Group that have occurred since
the end of the financial year.

OUR BUSINESS STRATEGIES

The Group will continue to focus on expanding our business by
implementing the following principal strategies: (i) further strengthen
our research and development capabilities; (ii) broaden our customer
base by expanding our OBM business in the PRC market; (iii) to seek
for cooperation with other intellectual property right owners to engage
in different business; and (iv) to seek for collaboration of companies
of our upstream and downstream industries to further enhance our
production efficiency.

LAW AND REGULATION

Law and regulations in relation to workplace quality and
environmental protection may have a material effect on the Group’s
principal activities.

Workplace Quality

The Group believes that continued business success relies on the
full contribution and support of our employees. We are dedicated to
promoting equal opportunities for all of our employees in different
areas, including recruitment, compensation and benefits, training,
staff promotion, transfer, and dismissal. All employees are assessed
based on their ability, performance and contribution, irrespective of
their nationality, race, religion, gender, age or family status.

The Group is committed to the health, safety and welfare of our
employees. We pledge full compliance in all occupational health and
safety legislations and we have provided a safe work environment for
our employees during the year.

The Group has complied with labour or other relevant legislations. We
did not identify any material non-compliance or breach of legislation
related to workplace quality.

o SR o] e B AR B ) e B 0 e
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Directors’ Business Review and Management Discussion and Analysis
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Product Safety

The Group places the highest importance on the welfare of its global
customers, as well as on its broader societal and environmental
impact. The quality and safety of our products is of paramount
importance. All products are safe and fully adhere to international
environmental and safety standards, including but not limited to the
American ASTM standards, the European EN71 and REACH and
Work Safety Standardization Certificate (%2 A& EIZH#E/LFE) . We
have also been awarded various certification such as ISO9001:2008,
ISO14001:2004 and OHSAS 18001:2007 certificates. We did not
identify any material non-compliance or breach of legislation related
to product safely in 2021.

Environmental Protection

The Group is commit ted to protecting and sustaining the
environment. We are committed to upholding high environmental
standards to fulfill relevant requirements under applicable laws
or ordinances during the manufacturing and material disposal
processes.

We did not identify any material non-compliance or breach of
relevant standards, rules and regulations on air and greenhouse gas
emission, discharges into water and land, generation of hazardous or
non-hazardous water, etc in 2021.

Information on our environmental policies and performance of the
Group is set out in the Environment, Social and Governance Report
of the Company to be published in April 2022.

Relationship with suppliers

We purchased raw materials from over 70 suppliers. We generally
have alternative sources of supply for the same kind of raw materials
and hence, the loss of any single supplier will not have a material
impact on our operations. We do not enter into any long-term
procurement agreements with any supplier. We do not have any
hedging policy against any risk of fluctuation in the raw material
costs, but we closely monitor the market prices of the raw materials.

Relationship with customers and consumers

We believe cultivation and maintenance of customer loyalty is
crucial to our continued success. We maintain long term business
relationships with our customers from over 20 countries and regions
around the globe. As at 31 December 2021, our top five customers
had in average over seven years of business relationships with us.
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Directors’ Business Review and Management Discussion and Analysis
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FINANCIAL REVIEW B4 %5 O |
Revenue and Gross Profit akEF
2021 2020
k- - 3 —TTF
Gross Profit Gross Profit Revenue %
Revenue margin Revenue margin change
W &
I & EFE Wz EH=x Antt
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AREFT
CMS husiness CMS %%
Cosplay costumes AEHER 162,040 26.7% 58,202 21.8% 178.4%
Cosplay wigs BERRE 32,090 26.9% 57,332 25.5% (44.0%)
Sexy lingerie MERR AKX 5,422 25.2% 45,136 24.3% (87.9%)
Others Hiw 912 27.5% 6,738 24.4% (86.5%)
200,464 26.6% 167,408 23.8% 19.7%
0BM husiness OBMEH
Cosplay costumes BEHER 24,747 31.0% 49,184 31.7% (49.70%)
Cosplay wigs AEHERE 7,173 16.2% 18,216 24.6% (60.6%)
Sexy lingerie MR AKX 7,701 25.9% 19,256 21.0% (60.0%)
Others Hit 2,127 82.3% 1,188 23.4% 79.0%
41,748 30.1% 87,844 27.8% (52.5%)
Total HER 242,212 27.2% 255,252 25.2% (5.1%)
Revenue Iz =2
CMS Business CMS ¥ 7%

During the year ended 31 December 2021, our revenue derived
mainly from our CMS business, representing approximately 82.8%
(2020: 65.6%) of the total revenue. Revenue derived from the CMS
business increased from approximately RMB167.4 million in 2020 to
approximately RMB200.5 million in 2021, representing an increase
of approximately 19.7%.

OBM Business

The revenue derived from our OBM business decreased from
approximately RMB87.8 million in 2020 to approximately RMB41.8
million in 2021, representing a decrease of approximately 52.5%.

RBE_T-_—F+-_A=+—HILFE #HM
My = BB CMS X7 - A # Iz MY #)82.8%
—E-TF:656%) c HMIKECMSEHH
WaEh — T _EFNHARKI74B8ETEM
ECT-FHNHARK20058ET  EMNL
19.7% °

0BM ¥ %
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BB BMAPH525% °

ANNUALREPORT 2021 R _.—4R4EH 13



Directors’ Business Review and Management Discussion and Analysis

T SR o] e B AR LI ) e B 0 e

During the year under review, the Group faced one of the worst
export trade environments as a result of the continued outbreak of the
COVID-19 in our major markets, including the U.S., the UK and the
Australia. The COVID-19 pandemic continued to cause widespread
destruction to global economics. Nearly all countries in the world
had to impose various social distancing measures, which include
locking down cities, ports and even the countries. These measures
led to very poor consumer sentiment and have significantly affected
sales performance of the CMS and OBM business. To overcome
these challenges, the Group had broadened our customer base by
expanding our business in the PRC market, which contributed 12.5%
of revenue for the year ended 31 December 2021 (31 December
2020: 5.4%).

After the recovery of the U.S. economy in the second half year of
2021, the performance of the U.S. market rebounded, and the U.S.
continued to be our biggest market in 2021, contributing 67% of the
revenue for the year ended 31 December 2021 (31 December 2020:
34.2%).

The Group had shifted part of its production line to non-surgical face
mask production. Revenue of approximately RMB51.1 million was
generated during the year and recorded in cosplay costumes under
the CMS business.

Leasing Business

Our Park, Centre and Feifeng Road Premises were sub-leased to
companies in the relevant industries with the aim to integrate the
design and development of cultural products, internet celebrity,
creative design, research and development and supply chain of the
whole industrial chain. The Group also sub-leased part of the Yiwu
Production Plant and the Yichun Production Plant to other local
enterprises with the view to better utilize the assets of the Group.
Gross income from leasing of these premises (including the rental
income from leasing of plant and machineries) of approximately
RMB4,932,000 (2020: RMB5,424,000) were recognized during the
year and included in “other income” in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

Gross profit margin

Our gross profit margin increased from approximately 25.2% in 2020
to approximately 27.2% in 2021. The increase in the gross profit
margin was mainly due to a higher margin contributed from the sales
of non-surgical face mask.
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Directors’ Business Review and Management Discussion and Analysis

Cost of sales

The costs of sales decreased by approximately RMB14.8 million,
from approximately RMB191.0 million in 2020 to approximately
RMB176.2 million in 2021.

Our cost of sales mainly comprised raw material cost, direct labor
cost and manufacturing overhead. Manufacturing overhead includes
subcontracting payments, utilities and social insurance for our
production staff and other miscellaneous items.

Other income

Our other income increased by approximately RMB5.1 million, from
approximately RMB14.4 million in 2020 to approximately RMB19.5
million in 2021. The increase was primarily due to the increase in
gain on recognition of net investment in leases of approximately
RMB1.4 million, utility income from our leasing of factory premises of
approximately RMB2.1 million and gain on disposal of financial asset
at FVTPL of approximately 2.8 million during the year.

Selling expenses

Our selling expenses decreased by approximately RMBO.5 million,
from approximately RMB5.6 million in 2020 to approximately
RMB5.1 million in 2021. The decrease was primarily due to the
decrease in transportation expense of approximately RMB1.0 million.

Administrative and other operating expenses

Our administrative and other operating expenses increased by
approximately RMB11.4 million, from approximately RMB75.3 million
in 2020 to approximately RMB86.7 million in 2021. The increase
was primarily due to an increase in research and development cost
of approximately RMB3.0 million, staff related cost of approximately
RMB2.0 million, utilities expenses related to our sub-leased
properties of approximately RMB2.5 million, and offset by a decrease
in exchange loss of approximately RMB4.9 million.

(Reversal of impairment loss)/Impairment loss on property,
plant and equipment

During the year ended 31 December 2020, impairment loss on
property, plant and equipment of approximately RMB55.4 million was
recognized as a result of the continuous drop in the turnover which
in turn reduced the recoverable amount of the property, plant and
equipment. Reversal of impairment loss of approximately RMB5.2
million was recognized during the year by comparing the recoverable
amount of the property, plant and equipment to its carrying amount.
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(Reversal of impairment loss)/Impairment loss on investment
properties

We have leased/sub-leased to third parties some factory premises,
thus these factory premises were being reclassified as investment
properties at cost model. Reversal of impairment loss of approximately
RMB6.4 million (2020: impairment loss of approximately RMB20.0
million) was recognized during the year by comparing the fair value
of the investment properties to its carrying amounts.

The Group has determined the impairment loss of property, plant
and equipment and investment properties based on the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating units (“CGU”) with property, plant
and equipment and investment properties allocated respectively.
The Group had engaged independent professional qualified valuers
Graval Consulting Limited to perform the independent valuation on
the investment properties and Roma Appraisal Limited to perform
independent valuation on the CGUs of the property, plant and
equipment allocated for the years ended 31 December 2021 and
2022.

The details of the key inputs and assumptions adopted in the
valuations relating to the investment properties and property, plant
and equipment are set out in notes 15 and 16 to the consolidated
financial statements. There are no significant changes in the
assumption adopted in the valuations.

ECL allowance of trade receivables

As a result of the pandemic, our customers have generally
experienced a deterioration in their financial position. With the
increase in potential default risk by our customers, we recognised
an impairment loss on trade receivables of approximately RMB18.7
million in 2021 (2020: RMBO.5 million).

Finance costs

Our finance costs decreased by approximately RMB2.2 million, from
approximately RMB6.7 million in 2020 to approximately RMB4.5
million in 2021. The decrease was mainly due to the repayment of
unsecured borrowings which bore higher interest rate during the
year.

Share of loss of associates

Share of loss of associates relates to the Group’s associates
established during the year and for the purpose of developing the
cultural tourism business. The Group’s share of loss of associates for
the year was approximately RMB35,000.
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Directors’ Business Review and Management Discussion and Analysis

Income tax

Our income tax credit decreased by approximately RMB12.3 million,
from approximately RMB12,754,000 in 2020 to approximately
RMB433,000 in 2021. The decrease in tax credit was primarily due
to the decrease in deferred tax recognised on impairment loss on
assets during the year.

Financial resources and liquidity and capital structure

As at 31 December 2021, the total amount of bank balances and
cash of the Group was approximately RMB99.7 million, an increase
of approximately RMB50.8 million when compared with that as at
31 December 2020. The increase arose mainly from the increase in
borrowings of approximately RMB7.9 million, proceed from placing
of new shares of approximately HK$31.0 million (approximately
RMB26.2 million) and proceed from disposal of financial assets at
FVTPL of approximately RMB8.3 million during the year.

The borrowings of the Group represented bank and other short term
borrowings of approximately RMB89.3 million.

As at 31 December 2021, the current ratio and the gearing ratio were
146.1% and 27.8% respectively. Current ratio is calculated based
on total current assets divided by total current liabilities at the end
of the financial year and gearing ratio is calculated based on total
borrowings divided by total equity at the end of the financial year.

The Group’s operations are financed principally by revenue generated
from its business operation, available bank balances and cash as
well as interest-bearing borrowings. The Board will continue to follow
a prudent treasury policy in managing its bank balances and cash
and maintain a strong and healthy liquidity position to ensure that
the Group is well positioned to achieve its business objectives and
strategies.

The share capital of the Company only comprises of ordinary shares.
As at 31 December 2021, the Company’s number of issued ordinary
shares was 1,077,267,600 (“Share(s)”) (2020: 897,723,000
Shares). During the year, the Company has completed the placing
of new shares, further details are set out under the “Placing of New
Shares and Use of Proceed”.

Capital expenditure

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group invested
approximately RMB12.2 million in property, plant and equipment,
approximately RMB9.6 million in investment properties,
approximately RMB12.2 million in trademark and approximately
RMB1.8 million in investment in associates.
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Pledged of assets

As at 31 December 2021, our bank loans were secured by the
Group’s right-of-use assets, buildings and investment properties with
carrying value of approximately RMB5.6 million, RMB76.9 million
and RMB31.2 million respectively.

Contingent liabilities
The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities as at 31
December 2021.

Foreign currency exposure

Our exposures to currency risk arose from sales to overseas markets,
which are primarily denominated in USD and JPY. These are not
our functional currencies to which these sales transactions relate.
We currently do not have a group foreign currency hedging policy.
However, our management will continue to monitor our foreign
exchange exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign
currency exposure should the need arise.

Human resources

As at 31 December 2021, we had approximately 566 employees (31
December 2020: 556). Total staff costs for the year amounted to
approximately RMB70.5 million (2020: RMB56.0 million).

Remuneration policy

The Remuneration Policy for the employees (including key
management) of the Group was laid down by the management of the
Group on the basis of their merit, qualifications and competence. The
Remuneration Committee will review and recommend to the Board
for approval the Remuneration Policy periodically.

The remuneration of the Directors of the Company are reviewed and
recommended by the Remuneration Committee to the Board for
approval, having regard to the Company’s operating results, individual
performance and comparable market statistics. No Director, or any
of his associates and executives, will be involved in deciding his own
remuneration.

We have adopted a share option scheme to recognise and reward
the contribution of our employees, provide incentives to retain them
to support our continued growth and to attract suitable personnel
for further development. We regularly review the remuneration and
benefits of our employees according to the relevant market practice,
employee performance and the financial performance of the
Company.
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Directors’ Business Review and Management Discussion and Analysis

Placing of new shares and Use of proceed

On 21 June 2021, the Company issued 179,544,600 ordinary shares
by way of placing at a price of HK$0.175 per share, representing
approximately 16.67% of the issued share capital of the Company
immediately after completion of the placing. These shares have been
successfully placed to not less than six placees.

To the best of the Directors’ knowledge, information and belief,
having made all reasonable enquiries, each of the placees and
where appropriate, their respective ultimate beneficial owners is an
independent third party, and none of the placees has become a
substantial shareholder (as defined in the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange) immediately upon completion of
the placing.

The placing price of HK$0.175 per share represents a discount of
approximately 9.3% to the closing price of HK$0.193 per share as
quoted on the Stock Exchange on 4 June 2021 (being the date of
the placing agreement) and a discount of approximately 19.7% to
the average closing price of approximately HK$0.218 per share as
quoted on the Stock Exchange for the five consecutive trading days
of the Shares immediately prior to 4 June 2021 (being the date of the
placing agreement).

The placing shares have a nominal value of HK$1,795,446 and
a market value of HK$35,908,920 based on the closing price of
HK$0.20 per Share on 18 June 2021, being the last trading day prior
to the completion of the placing took place. The net price per Placing
Share was approximately HK$0.173.

The net proceeds from the Placing, after deduction of the
professional fee and other related expenses, are approximately
HK$31.0 million which are intended to be used for (i) the repayment
of part of the principal and interest of the current debts of the Group
of approximately HK$15.7 million; and (ii) the general working capital
of the Group and acquisition(s) of intellectual properties, which the
Group may identify from time to time, in the ordinary and usual
course of business of the Group of approximately HK$15.3 million.

As at 31 December 2021, the net proceeds of approximately
HK$15.7 million have been used to repay part of the principal and
interests of the borrowings of the Group; approximately HK$4.3
million have been used for general working capital of the Group and
approximately HK$11.0 million have been used to acquire intellectual
properties.
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For details of the placing of new shares, please refer to the
announcements dated 7 June 2021 and 21 June 2021.

Litigation

On 30 July 2021, the Company and certain former Directors and a
shareholder of the Company have been served with a writ of summon
(“Writ of Summon”) in a legal proceedings brought by a third party
in relation to a proposed sale and purchase of the controlling stake
in the Company involving an alleged memorandum of understanding
(the “MOU").

On 16 November 2021, an amended writ of summons (“Amended
Writ of Summons”) and the statement of claim (the “Statement
of Claim”) in relation to the MOU which was supplemented by a
supplemental memorandum of understanding dated 9 September
2016 (“Supplemental MOU”, together with the MOU, the “MOUs")
were served on the Company.

Details of the litigation have been set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 6 August 2021 and 19 November 2021.

The Company is seeking legal advice in relation to the Amended Writ
of Summon and the Statement of Claim but the Board considers
that the allegations made in the Amended Writ of Summon and the
Statement of Claim against the Company are groundless and without
merit.

The Board takes the view that the litigation in relation to the Amended
Writ of Summons and the Statement of Claim has no material impact
on the business and finance of the Company.

The Company will update the shareholders and potential investors
on material developments regarding the above litigation when
appropriate in compliance with the Listing Rules and the SFO.
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Directors’ Business Review and Management Discussion and Analysis

INVESTMENT REVIEW

Investment in unlisted convertible bond

In March 2018, pursuant to a subscription agreement dated 23
February 2018 (the “Subscription Agreement”), Unlock Bound
Investments Limited (the “Subscriber”), a subsidiary of the Company,
subscribed for convertible bonds due 15 March 2022 in an aggregate
principal amount of HK$70 million (the “CSG Convertible Bond”)
issued by Charm Success Global Investment Limited (the “CB
Issuer”). As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated
23 February 2018 (the “CB Announcement”), Elite Global Group
Limited (“Elite Global”), the holding company of the CB Issuer, had
entered into a license agreement with Viacom Media Networks, a
division of Viacom International Inc. (“VMN"), pursuant to which
VMN had granted a right (the “Rights”) to, among others, design,
develop, construct, launch and operate and manage a theme park
in the PRC as a Nickelodeon themed and branded theme park using
the approved licensed property elements (the “Project”). According
to the Subscription Agreement, the CB Issuer undertakes that the
Rights will be novated or assigned by Elite Global Group to Foshan
Elite Nickelodeon (“FEN"), a subsidiary of the CB Issuer, or a wholly
owned subsidiary of the CB Issuer within three months from the date
of the Subscription Agreement or such other period as agreed by
the CB Issuer and the Subscriber in writing. On the other hand, a
deed of guarantee was executed by Elite Global and Ms. Lam Suet
Fan, the sole shareholder of Elite Global, as the guarantors to secure
the due performance by the CB Issuer of the obligations under the
CSG Convertible Bond. For further details about the CSG Convertible
Bond, please refer to the CB Announcement.

In view of (i) an unexpected delay in obtaining funds from investors to
carry out the Project which leads to a delay in the implementation of
the development plan of the Project; (ii) the Rights have not yet been
assigned to FEN as pending the written approval from VMN; and (iii)
the CB Issuer has been in default in paying the interests under the
CSG Convertible Bond, a fair value loss on FVTPL of approximately
RMB60.5 million was recorded during the year ended 31 December
2019.
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Directors’ Business Review and Management Discussion and Analvsis
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Fair value gain on FVTPL of approximately RMB3.9 million was
recorded during the year ended 31 December 2020 based on a
valuation carried by an independent professional qualified valuer
Roma Appraisals Limited.

According to the representations of the CB Issuer, the default was
caused by an unexpected delay in obtaining funds from investors to
carry out the Project especially after the outbreak of the COVID-19
pandemic globally and the subsequent quarantine measures as well
as the travel restrictions imposed by various countries had further
restricted meeting with investors.

To the best knowledge, information and belief of the Directors and
according to the representations of the CB Issuer, VMN had approved
the investor’s participation in the project and the revised project
milestones. However, solid capital budget, financing commitment,
project schedule for the design, development, construction and
operation of the theme park are still pending to the submitted to and
approved by VMN, and these would take further 14 to 20 months for
finalization.

Having considered the continuing default of the Issuer and the
chance of recovery of the principal amount and interests of the
CSG Convertible Bond, the significant uncertainties from the post-
COVID-19 pandemic business environment, especially the COVID-19
pandemic has drastically changed the entire travel and tourism
landscape which resulted the expected low ebb for the next several
years. On 15 March 2021, the Group and an independent third party
entered into the sale and purchase agreement pursuant to which
the Group agreed to sell and the independent third party agreed to
purchase the CSG Convertible Bond for the cash consideration of
HK$10.0 million (equivalent to approximately RMB8.34 million),
the Board is of the view that the disposal provides a chance to the
Group to mitigate its loss in and exit from the investment in the CSG
Convertible Bond. Further, the disposal can generate immediate
available funds for the Group. Gain on disposal of approximately
RMB2.8 million was recognised during the year ended 31 December
2021.
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Directors’ Business Review and Management Discussion and Analysis

Despite the disposal, the Board will consider the costs and benefits,
and does not preclude any possibility, of commencing legal actions
against the CB Issuer and the relevant parties for the loss suffered
by the Group as a result of the CB Issuer’'s default of its obligations
under the CSG Convertible Bond.

Acquisition of intellectual properties

As disclosed in the 2020 annual report of the Company, the Group
will continue to focus on expanding our business by broadening our
customer base by expanding our OBM business in the PRC market
and seek cooperation with other intellectual property right owners.
During the year, the Group acquired 75% equity interests in Hmda
Culture International Co., Limited and its subsidiary (the “Hmda
Group”), from an independent third party at a cash consideration of
HK$11.0 million. Hmda Group held a trademark license which the
Group considered the acquisition can broaden its assets and earning
base. This transaction was accounted for as acquisition of assets
rather than as business combinations because Hmda Group did not
carry out any significant business transactions prior to the date of
acquisition.
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Corporate Governance Report
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The Company has adopted the code provisions set out in the
Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report (“CG
Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”). To the knowledge of the Board, the Company had fully
complied with the relevant code provisions in the CG Code for the
year ended 31 December 2021.

The Group also has an internal control system in place serving the
check and balance function. There are three Independent Non-
executive Directors who represent nearly one half of the Board
offering practical, independent and differing perspectives. The Board
is therefore of the view that there are adequate balance of power and
safeguards in place to enable the Company to make and implement
decisions promptly and effectively.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
THE DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the code of conduct regarding directors’
securities transactions as set out in the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. Having made specific
enquiry of all Directors, the Company confirmed that all Directors
had compiled with the required standard set out in the Model Code
throughout the year ended to 31 December 2021.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the
Company, and is responsible for setting up the overall strategy as well
as reviewing the operation and financial performance of the Group.
The Board reserved for its decision or consideration matters covering
overall Group strategy, major acquisitions and disposals, annual
budgets, annual and interim results, recommendations on Directors’
appointment or reappointment, approval of major capital transactions
and other significant operational and financial matters. The
management was delegated the authority and responsibility by the
Board for the daily management of the Group. In addition, the Board
has also delegated various responsibilities to the Board committees.
Further details of these committees are set out in this report.
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The Board currently consists of five Directors including two Executive
Directors and three Independent Non-executive Directors:

Executive Directors
Ms. Chen Sheng (Chairlady)
Mr. Xu Chengwu (Chief Executive Officer)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Chen Wen Hua

Ms. Peng Xu

Mr. Zheng Jin Min

The biography details of the Directors of the Company are set out
under the section headed “Directors and Senior Management” in this
annual report.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Board is headed by the Chairman Ms. Chen Sheng. The roles of
the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer, Mr. Xu Chengwu, are
segregated and not exercised by the same individual.

The Chairman is responsible for the leadership and effective running
of the Board and ensuring that all material issues are discussed by
the Board in a timely and constructive manner. The Chief Executive
Officer is responsible for the management of the Group’s business
and the implementation of the approved strategies of the Group.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Board at all times met
the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment
of at least three Independent Non-executive Directors representing
one-third of the Board. These Independent Non-executive Directors
are individuals from diversified backgrounds and industries and
one member has appropriate accounting and related financial
management expertise.

The Independent Non-executive Directors serve the relevant
function of bringing independent judgment and advice on the
overall management of the Company. They take the lead where
potential conflicts of interests arise. The Company has received an
annual confirmation of independence from each of the Independent
Non-executive Directors. The Company is of the view that all of
the Independent Non-executive Directors meet the guidelines for
assessing independence as set out in the Listing Rules and considers
them to be independent.
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APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL OF
DIRECTORS

Each of the Executive Directors has entered into a service contract/
letter of appointment with the Company with a fixed term, subject
to retirement and re-election in accordance with the Articles of
Associations of the Company.

Each of the Independent Non-executive Directors has entered into a
service contract/letter of appointment with the Company for a term of
three years, subject to retirement and re-election in accordance with
the Articles of Associations of the Company.

Each of the Independent Non-executive Directors may terminate his/
her appointment by giving a one-month prior written notice to the
Company or in accordance with the terms set out in the respective
service contract/letters of appointment.

The Articles of Association of the Company provides that any Director
appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy in the Board shall
hold office until the first general meeting of the Company after his/her
appointment and be subject to re-election at such meeting, and any
Director appointed by the Board as an addition to the existing Board
shall hold office only until the next following annual general meeting
of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election.

DIRECTORS’ CONTINUOUS TRAINING AND

DEVELOPMENT

According to the code provision C.1.4 of the CG Code, all Directors
should participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that their
contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.

All Directors have participated in continuous professional
development by way of attending seminars relating to their role as a
Director of the Company.
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BOARD MEETINGS AND GENERAL MEETING

During the year ended 31 December 2021, one annual general
meeting and fifteen Board meetings were held. All Directors were
given an opportunity to include any matters in the agenda for regular
Board meetings, and were also given sufficient time to review
documents and information relating to matters to be discussed in
Board meeting in advance.

Corporate Governance Report
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Annual general Board meetings

Name of Director meeting attended attended
HERR
EENE BEXSE HEESESES
Mr. Ma Chi Kwan (resigned on 31 December HE#%E4E (R T —4F 1/1 15/15
2021) +=—A=+—HET)
Mr. Xu Chengwu AR A 11 15/15
Ms. Chen Sheng PR 2 4 1/1 15/15
Mr. Chen Wen Hua PR S S 1/1 15/15
Ms. Peng Xu TR L 1/1 15/15
Mr. Zheng Jin Min BEF L E 1/1 15/15

Board minutes are kept by the Company Secretary and are open for
inspection by the Directors. Every Board member is entitled to have
access to Board papers and related materials, and has unrestricted
access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary, and has
the liberty to seek external professional advice if so required.

The Board is responsible for maintaining an on-going dialogue with
shareholders and in particular, uses annual general meetings or
other general meetings to communicate with them and encourage
their participation. The Board notes that the Chairman of the Board
and the chairmen or, in their absence, other members of the audit
committee (“Audit Committee”), nomination Committee (“Nomination
Committee”) and remuneration committee (“Remuneration
Committee”) of the Company should attend the annual general
meeting to answer questions and collect views of shareholders.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee (collectively, the “Board
Committees”) for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s
affairs under its defined scope of duties and terms of reference.
The terms of reference of each of the Board Committees have been
posted on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
The Board Committees are provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the
Company’s expense.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Nomination Committee on 7 August
2015 with written terms of reference, which was aligned with the
CG Code. A revised term of reference has been adopted on 31
December 2018 to incorporate amendments to the Listing Rules. The
revised terms of reference of the Nomination Committee is currently
made available on the Stock Exchange’s website and the Company’s
website.

The Nomination Committee consists of two Independent Non-
executive Directors, namely Ms. Peng Xu (as chairlady) and Mr. Chen
Wen Hua, and one Executive Director, namely Ms. Chen Sheng.

The functions of the Nomination Committee are to review and
monitor the structure, size and composition of the Board and
make recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Group’s strategy; to identifying qualified individuals
to become members of the Board; to assess the independence of
Independent Non-executive Directors; and to make recommendations
to the Board on the appointment or reappointment of Directors and
succession planning for Directors, in particular the Chairman and the
Chief Executive Officer.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Nomination
Committee held one meeting for reviewing the size, diversity and
composition of the Board to ensure that its composition complies
with the Listing Rules and reflects an appropriative mix of skills,
experience and diversity that are relevant to the Group’s strategy,
governance and business and contribute to the Board’s effectiveness
and efficiency.
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Number
Nomination Committee member of attendance
REZRERE HERE
Ms. Peng Xu U 1/1
Mr. Chen Wen Hua PR S EE S A 11
Ms. Chen Sheng PR £ £ 11
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

Pursuant to the CG Code, the Board adopted a board diversity policy
(the “Board Diversity Policy”) on 1 January 2019. The Company
recognised and embraces the benefits of diversity of Board members.
While all Board appointments will continue to the made on a merit
basis, the Company will ensure that the Board has a balance of skills,
experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the needs
of the Company’s business. Selection of candidates will be based
on the Company’s Board Nomination Policy and a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, experience (professional or otherwise),
ethnicity, skills and knowledge and length of service.

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises five
Directors, 2 of them are female. The following tables further illustrate
the diversity of the Board members as of the date of this annual
report:
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Name of Directors 40 to 49 50 to 59
Es=nR 40F 498 50 F 598
Ms. Chen Sheng PR F 20 4 v
Mr. Zheng Jin Min BEREE 4
Mr. Chen Wen Hua PR SE A 4
Ms. Peng Xu TR L v
Mr. Xu Chengwu TRECE B4 4
Professional Experience
SRER
Accounting and Regulatory and
Name of Directors Law Education Finance compliance
EFEgR o3 > 8- EitRE EBTRERM
Mr. Xu Chengwu TRACE e v
Ms. Chen Sheng BRF 20+ v/
Mr. Zheng Jin Min BEBEE v
Mr. Chen Wen Hua PR SCEE S A v/
Ms. Peng Xu TRt v

The Nomination Committee will monitor the implementation of the
Board Diversity Policy and report to the Board annually.
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BOARD NOMINATION POLICY

The Company has adopted a Board Nomination Policy for the
Nomination Committee to consider and make recommendations to
Shareholders for election as Directors at general meetings or appoint
as Directors to fill casual vacancies.

Selection Criteria

The factors listed below would be used as reference by the
Nomination Committee in assessing the suitability of a proposed
candidate:

(1) reputation for integrity;

(2) accomplishment and experience in the business in which the
Group is engaged in;

(3)  commitment in respect of available time and relevant interest;

(4) diversity in all its aspects, including but not limited to race,
gender, age (18 years or above), educational background,
professional experience, skills and length of service;

(5) qualifications which include professional qualifications, skills,
knowledge and experience that are relevant to the Company’s
business and corporate strategy;

(6) the number of existing directorships and other commitments
that may demand the attention of the candidate;

(7)  requirement for the Board to have Independent Non-executive
Directors in accordance with the Listing Rules and whether the
candidates would be considered independent with reference to
the independence guidelines set out in Rules 3.08, 3.09 and
3.13 of the Listing Rules;

(8) Board Diversity Policy of the Company and any measurable
objectives adopted by the Nomination Committee for achieving
diversity on the Board; and

(9) such other perspectives appropriate to the Company’s
business.
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Director Nomination Procedure

Subject to the provisions in the Articles of Association of the Company
and the Listing Rules, if the Board recognises the need for an
additional Director or a member of senior management, the following
procedure will be followed:

(1)

The Nomination Committee and/or Board will identify potential
candidates based on the criteria as set out in the selection
criteria, possibly with assistance from external agencies and/or
advisors;

The Nomination Committee and/or the Company Secretary of
the Company will then provide the Board with the biographical
details and details of the relationship between the candidate
and the Company and/or Directors, directorships held, skills
and experience, other positions which involve significant time
commitment and any other particulars required by the Listing
Rules, the Companies Law of the Cayman lIslands and other
regulatory requirements for any candidate for appointment to
the Board;

The Nomination Committee would then make recommendation
to the Board on the proposed candidate(s) and the terms and
conditions of the appointment;

The Nomination Committee should ensure that the proposed
candidate(s) will enhance the diversity of the Board, being
particularly mindful of gender balance;

In the case of the appointment of an Independent Non-
executive Director, the Nomination Committee and/or the Board
should obtain all information in relation to the proposed Director
to allow the Board to adequately assess the independence of
the Director in accordance with the factors set out in Rules 3.08,
3.09 and 3.13 of the Listing Rules, subject to any amendments
as may be made by the Stock Exchange from time to time; and

The Board will then deliberate and decide on the appointment
based upon the recommendation of the Nomination Committee.

Corporate Governance Report
SRR R

ESRBERF
EARBEBERAR R ETHRIMEHRRT
NELEERTEFEFLEEISRERAL ]
AEBREATIER

(1)

)

(3

(4)

(%)

(6)

REZESGN /REFEHREDERE
P8R EREE B EREA (RTREE N AR B
K/ kBRI E) T HETT)

REZEGN /XA RANRAWEHR%
HREFSRMEEAMMABEFE - AR
REANBARB L, HER 2 MBHENFES
FIEEEERG  RERLR  RAKER
BEOEMBA - AR EHRA - HEHEER
AENHEMBEERTEES Eo T RE
ABRREREAMFS

RAZBEHRMUEREEARZEN
K ERRbERES

*
&
op
bt

REZEERBREZZREAGEMBE
FemZc LEEZRIMERTE:

IREREBEYFATESMS - BRZEER
SREERRENEREZERHNMAEER
FEEFERE EMARAE3.08(F - 8£3.091%
Ko 58 3.13 16 (4% Bk 22 i A] B8 N B 4 H WO (R 4R
B MBEZRFDFHETNELME Rk

EFeHERBRBREZEENERER
ETHTIRERERE -

31

ANNUALREPORT 2021 “% = —4R4EH



Corporate Governance Report
Y LY
e FegltEi e

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Remuneration Committee on 7 August
2015 with written terms of reference, which was aligned with the
CG Code. The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee is
currently made available on the Stock Exchange’s website and the
Company’s website.

The Remuneration Committee consists of one Independent Non-
executive Director, namely Mr. Chen Wen Hua (as chairman), one
Executive Director, namely Mr. Xu Chengwu and one Independent
Non-executive Director, namely Ms. Peng Xu.

The functions of the Remuneration Committee are to make
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and
structure on the remuneration packages for all Directors’ and senior
management and on the establishment of a formal and transparent
procedure for developing the remuneration policy. The model of
Remuneration Committee described in code provision E.1.2(c)(ii) of
the CG Code has been adopted by the Remuneration Committee,
which makes recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual Executive Directors and senior management,
including benefits in kind, pension rights and compensation
payments, including any compensation payable for loss or
termination of their office or appointment.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Remuneration
Committee held 1 meeting for reviewing the remuneration structure
for the Executive Directors and senior management and the
remuneration proposals for the year 2020/2021.
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YRBERCEEATH - BOEAMERE - &
THZE B 2 B 18 35 5 ) 1A SR P A 0 IR S
FEILED -

FMEEem —2BUFRTESARXELE
(FEEXRE)  —2RTESAHRAREER—F
BUIEMITESEZ R A -

FMEEenBEAR AR BEHERBESTNS
MEEANBFHMFBNBRERE - RBLHIET#H
MBEMBRIEARRBRAENEF  NWEES
RUKEEER -FHEZESCHRMEEERTH
SRR EL2C)i M FMEZ B e - mE
EZeEAENRTEERSREREABNTMEF
B BREVEN RASENLAEES (BRER
RAKL BB R B ENERENSHE) -

BE_T-_—F+-_A=T—HILFE  FMEE
BERIT - REBUEHNRTESTASREIEAR
ZHMEREBERER T T T —FrHHME

N
=%
xR

Number of
Remuneration Committee member attendance
FHERERE HERE
Mr. Chen Wen Hua PR S EE e A 1/1
Ms. Peng Xu ezt 11
Mr. Xu Chengwu BWRCR A& 11
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Senior Management Remuneration by Band

The emoluments of the members of the senior management of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 fell within the following
bands:
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Number of
Emoluments bands individuals
FH&EE AE
HK$ nil to HK$1,000,000 ZE L% 1,000,000 7T 2
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7%yt & 1,500,000 7T 1

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established the Audit Committee on 7 August 2015
with written terms of reference, which was aligned with the CG Code.
A revised terms of reference has been adopted on 31 December
2018 to incorporate amendments to the Listing Rules. The revised
terms of reference of the Audit Committee is currently made available
on the Stock Exchange’s website and the Company’s website.

The Audit Committee consists of three Independent Non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Zheng Jin Min (as chairman), Mr. Chen Wen
Hua and Ms. Peng Xu.

The Audit Committee is mainly responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment, reappointment
and removal of the external auditor and to approve the remuneration
and terms of engagement of the external auditor, and any questions
of resignation or dismissal of such auditor; reviewing the interim
and annual reports and accounts of the Group; and overseeing the
Company’s financial reporting system (including the adequacy of
resources, qualifications and experience of staff in charge of the
Company’s financial reporting function and their training arrangement
and budget) and the risk management and internal control
procedures.

The Audit Committee meets the external auditor regularly to discuss
any area of concern during the audit. The Audit Committee reviews
the interim and annual repor ts before submission to the Board. The
Audit Committee focuses not only on the impact of the changes in
accounting policies and practices but also on the compliance with
accounting standards, the Listing Rules and the legal requirements in
the review of the Company’s interim and annual report.
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During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Audit Committee held ~HE-_Z-—F+-_F=+—HIFE BZZX
3 meetings. BEEBERITZAEH-

Number of
Audit Committee member attendance
ERERERE HERS
Mr. Chen Wen Hua PROCEE S 33
Ms. Peng Xu IR T 3/3
Mr. Zheng Jin Min BEREEE 33

The Audit Committee performed the following work during the year
ended 31 December 2021:

(a)

34

reviewed the Group’s audited financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2020 in conjunction with the external
auditor and the unaudited consolidated financial statements for
the six months ended 30 June 2021;

reviewed the auditing and financial reporting matters, including
the key audit matters of the audited consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2020 which are
set out in the annual report of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2020;

reviewed the changes in accounting standards and assessed
their potential impacts on the Group’s financial statements;

reviewed the effectiveness of the internal audit function
performed by independent professional adviser;

reviewed the risk assessment and internal control report and
the effectiveness of risk management and internal control
system; and

considered and made recommendations on the re-appointment
of the independent auditor of the Group, and the terms of
engagement.

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

)
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Chong Man Hung Jeffrey was appointed as the Company
Secretary of the Company on 21 May 2015. The biographical details
of Mr. Chong are set out under the section headed “Directors and
Senior Management” in the annual report.

According to the requirements of Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules,
Mr. Chong had taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training for the year ended 31 December 2021.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the
code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code.

The Board has reviewed the Company’s corporate governance
policies and practices, training and continuous professional and
development of Directors and senior management, the Company’s
policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements, the compliance with the Model Code, and the
Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in this
Corporate Governance Report.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (“Dividend Policy”),
pursuant to which the Board has the discretion to declare and
distribute dividends to the shareholders of the Company, subject to
the memorandum and articles of association of the Company and
the applicable laws and regulations of Hong Kong and the Cayman
Islands, any other laws and regulations applicable to the Company
and the factors set out in the Dividend Policy.

The Board shall also take into account the financial position,
cashflow situation, business conditions and strategies, current and
future operations and earnings, capital requirements and expenditure
plans, interests of shareholders, prevailing economic environment,
any restrictions on payment of dividends of the Group and any other
factors or conditions that the Board may consider relevant when
considering the declaration and payment of dividends.

The Board will continually review the Dividend Policy and reserves
the right in its sole and absolute discretion to update, amend and/or
modify the Dividend Policy at any time, and the Dividend Policy shall
in no way constitute a legally binding commitment by the Company
that dividends will be paid in any particular amount and/or in no way
obligate the Company to declare a dividend at any time or from time
to time.
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the remuneration paid/
payable to the Company’s auditor, Grant Thornton Hong Kong
Limited, is as follows:

BB &
BE-_Z-_—F+-A=+—HILEE B/
ARG EBEER (F8) S5TMEFFER
NERMESmT

Nature of services HK$’000
RHnHE FET
Audit services EiT AR 1,200
Non-audit services IEFE R
— Agreed upon procedures on interim report  — 3 TE &S B 15 3R 4 RIS 440057 TE T
under HKFRS 4400 EETHRENET 180
Total BET 1,380

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to prepare the Company’s
consolidated financial statements for each financial year which
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and the
Company and of the results and cash flows of the Group for that
year. In preparing the consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2021, the Board has selected suitable
accounting policies and applied them consistently; made judgments
and estimates that are prudent, fair and reasonable and prepared the
accounts on a going concern basis.

The Directors are responsible for taking all reasonable and necessary
steps to safeguard the assets of the Group and to prevent and detect
fraud and other irregularities.

The Directors, having made appropriate enquiries, consider that the
Group has adequate resources to continue in operational existence
for the foreseeable future and that, for this reason, it is appropriate to
adopt the going concern basis in preparing the consolidated financial
statements.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges that it has overall responsibility for
evaluating and determining the nature and extent of the risks it is
willing to take in achieving the Group’s strategic objectives, and
maintaining appropriate and effective risk management and internal
control systems. The Board oversees the management in the design,
implementation and monitoring of the risk management and internal
control systems. The systems and internal controls can only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement
or loss, as they are designed to manage, rather than eliminate the
risk of failure to achieve business objectives.

The Group has established an on-going process for identifying,
evaluating and managing the significant risks of the Group. Business
units are responsible for identifying, assessing and monitoring risks
associated with their respective units. The results of evaluation will be
reported to the management through regular internal meetings. Each
year, the management prepares a risk assessment report which lists
the risks identified and the management’s assessment on the impact
to the Group. The Board discusses findings in the risk assessment
report and evaluates the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems in a Board meeting.

The Company has established and maintained procedures and
internal controls for the handling and dissemination of inside
information. The Company has adopted a code of conduct for dealing
in the securities of the Company by the Directors in accordance with
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. Other employees of the Group who
are likely to be in possession of inside information of the Company
are also subject to dealing restrictions. Any inside information and
any information which may potentially constitute inside information
is promptly identified, assessed and escalated to the Board and for
the Board to decide on the need for disclosure. Inside information
and other information which is required to be disclosed pursuant to
the Listing Rules will be announced on the respective websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company.

Appropriate policies and controls have been designed and
established to ensure that assets are safeguarded against improper
use or disposal, relevant rules and regulations are adhered to and
complied with and reliable f inancial and accounting records are
maintained in accordance with relevant accounting standards and
regulatory reporting requirements.
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The Group does not have an internal audit function due to the size
of the Group and for cost effectiveness consideration. Instead, a
review on the internal control and risk management systems is done
annually by an independent qualified accountant. During the year,
the independent qualified accountant conducted an annual review to
assess the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems. The review covered major financial, operational
controls in rotation basis and also the risk management functions.
No significant deficiency was identified during course of review and
the systems were operating effectively and adequately. The internal
control report findings and recommendations were discussed with
the Audit Committee which reports the findings to the Board. The
Group continues to review the need for an internal audit function
annually.

BUSINESS ACTIVITIES IN SANCTIONED COUNTRIES

The US government and other jurisdictions, including the European
Union, the United Nations and the Australian government, have
comprehensive or broad economic sanctions targeting the Sanctioned
Countries (note 1) and Sanctioned Persons (note 2).

Note 1 — Sanctioned Countries are those countries which are the targets
of economic sanctions as administered by the U.S., the EU, the
United Nations and Australia.

Note 2 — Sanctioned Persons are certain person(s) and entity(ies) listed on
the United States Department of Treasury’s Office of Foreign Assets
Control Specially Designated Nationals and Blocked Persons List
or other restricted parties lists maintained by the EU, the United
Nations or Australia.

The Board had effectively monitored and evaluated our business
exposure to sanctions risk, including assigning senior staff to review
and approve all relevant business transaction documents from
customers or potential customers from Sanctioned Countries and
Sanctioned Persons. The designated staff reviewed information
relating to the counterparty of the contract (such as identity,
nature of business, etc.) along with the draft business transaction
documentation. The designated staff checked the counterparty
against the various lists of restricted parties and countries maintained
by the US, the European Union, Australia or the United Nations,
including, without limitation, any government, individual or entity that
is the subject of any OFAC- administered sanctions which lists are
publicly available, and determine whether the counterparty is, or is
owned or controlled by, a person located in any of the Sanctioned
Countries or a Sanctioned Person. If any potential sanctions risk
is identified, we will seek advice from external legal counsel with
necessary expertise.
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During the year ended 31 December 2021, none of our products
were sold to any Sanctioned Countries or Sanctioned Persons.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING

Master Professional Holdings Limited and Mr. Chen Sheng Bi (the
“Controlling Shareholders”), being the controlling shareholders
(as defined under the Listing Rules) of the Company during the
period from 1 January 2021 to 6 September 2021, have given
the Company a Deed of Non-competition dated 7 August 2015
in favour of the Company (the “Non-competition Undertaking”).
The Controlling Shareholders have undertaken under the Non-
competition Undertaking that they shall provide to the Company and
the Directors (including the Independent Non-executive Directors)
from time to time with all the information necessary for the annual
review by the Independent Non-executive Directors with regard to
compliance of the terms of the Non-competition Undertaking by the
Controlling Shareholders and the enforcement of the Non-competition
Undertaking.

The Company have received from the Controlling Shareholders a
confirmation, confirming that they have complied with the Non-
competition Undertaking during the period from 1 January 2021 to
6 September 2021 (the “Annual Confirmation”). The Independent
Non-executive Directors have reviewed the Annual Confirmation and
confirmed that they are not aware of any non-compliance of the Non-
competition Undertaking by the Controlling Shareholders during the
period from 1 January 2021 to 6 September 2021 (the date they
ceased to be the controlling shareholders of the Company).

The Controlling Shareholder has confirmed compliance with the
terms of the Non-competition Undertaking and that during the year
under review, there was no matter requiring deliberation by the
Board in relation to the compliance and enforcement of the Non-
competition Undertaking. The Board comprising all the Independent
Non-executive Directors is of the view that the Controlling Shareholder
has complied with the Non-competition Undertaking in favour of the
Company.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTORS

The Company believes that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
investors’ understanding of the Group’s business performance
and strategies. The Group also recognizes the importance of
transparency and timely disclosure of corporate information, which
enables shareholders and investors to make appropriate investment
decisions.

The members of the Board and Board Committees and the external
auditor will be present to answer shareholders’ questions in the
annual general meetings of the Company. Circulars will be distributed
to all shareholders before the annual general meeting and any special
general meetings in accordance with the timeline requirement as
laid down in the Listing Rules and the articles of association of the
Company. All the resolutions proposed to be approved at the general
meetings will be taken by poll and poll voting results will be published
on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company after the
relevant general meetings.

As a channel to promote effective communication, the Group
maintains a website where information on the Company’s
announcements, financial information and other information are
posted. Shareholders and investors may write directly to the Company
at its principal place of business in Hong Kong with any enquires.

The Company reviewed the implementation and effectiveness of the
shareholders’ communication policy and considered it to be effective.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The Company adopted an amended and restated Memorandum
and Articles of the Company (the “Constitutional Documents”)
on 15 October 2015 and effective upon the Listing. A copy of the
Company’s updated Constitutional Documents is available on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, there is no change to the
Constitutional Documents.

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited has recently announced
various amendments to the Listing Rules to implement the proposals
under the “Consultation Conclusion Paper on Listing Regime for
Overseas Issuers” published on 19 November 2021.
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The amendments to the Listing Rules have already taken effect from
1 January 2022 and include the introduction of one common set
of core shareholder protection standards (set out in Appendix 3 to
the Listing Rules) that will apply to all listed issuers to provide the
same level of protection to all investors. To conform with the core
shareholder protection standards, the Directors recommended that
the articles of association of the Company be amended. A proposal
on amending the articles of association and the adoption of a new
articles of association will be put forward at the forthcoming annual
general meeting and details of the proposed amendments will be set
out in the notice of the forthcoming annual general meeting.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Convening of Special General Meetings and Requisition by
Shareholders

Pursuant to article 64 of the articles of association of the Company,
extraordinary general meetings shall be convened on the requisition
of one or more Shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of the
requisition, not less than one tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company having the right of voting at general meetings. Such
requisition shall be made in writing to the Board or the Secretary
for the purpose of requiring an extraordinary general meeting to be
called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in
such requisition. Such meeting shall be held within two Months after
the deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit, the
Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s)
himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of
the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by
the Company.

Procedures For Proposing a Person For Election as a Director
Pursuant to the Articles 113 of the articles of associations of the
Company, no person, other than a retiring Director, shall, unless
recommended by the Board for election, be eligible for election to the
office of Director at any general meeting, unless Notice (as defined
therein) in writing of the intention to propose that person for election
as a Director and Notice in writing by that person of his willingness
to be elected shall have been lodged at the Head Office or at the
Registration Office. The period for lodgement of the Notices required
under this Article will commence no earlier than the day after the
despatch of the notice of the general meeting appointed for such
election and end no later than seven (7) days prior to the date of
such general meeting and the minimum length of the period during
which such Notices of the Company may be given will be at least
seven (7) days.

Corporate Governance Report
SRR R

FRRBMETERZE__F - A —HER
BESIA-EXRORORRREZRE (FHR L
mARRMER3)  BRARMAELWETA BRAE
REHERERBKFORE - BTAROLBERRF
BIR%E  BEEZRETARANALEIZMAA -
ERERRBFAE L SeRZEHERER
AR R A EIRAMA N ER  R20EF]
AN EERBFAENREA -

B SR
BB R B K& & B iR HH AR

REAATDESERAF 4G  RREAE
Al R2HEHRERELERH  MRERRERE
HEBREAARBEARAEBEHRATNIRt D2
—WEARERRAELRE -BHEREANER
FARESFGRWERL BUBREZEHE
2B ESKATIE R Z A EH T A R R RIK
2 -AHERAERBZERK2BANAERM -
NMEFSHERHERBHRA2NIBARAETL
BARAREE  MERKAGEZRBRA) A
HRBTABTTEAREH  BEFKAREZEARA
ERAHGEMBRNABAREER  AdmAR
BIEERERA -

REAANESRESEZCEF
BREARFNABERMRNELISGRE  BE
EEEIH EAATMREE=ZGHESE 1
BEERAEEMRRAS L BEHEEE B K
HRAFBEREZAT2ENETARNCEZR
RARHEBERMAMY)  URZBALTRABRE
SENEMBHNEEARANFRIELRE - RIE
AR ZFEBANEIHRENENTHZE
BEETRRASAES2AME  ETERZER
RERTHEOBR/L  MARRBEXZBHDN
HRELA/SELDE -

ANNUALREPORT 2021 R _.—4R4EH 41



CO]’[)O]“:IIC Governance chort
S E R

PUTTING FORWARD ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board, shareholders may
send written enquiries to the Company.

CONTACT DETAILS

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned
above to the following:

Address: Room 225-27, 2/F.
Mega Cube, 8 Wang Kwong Road
Kowloon Bay, Kowloon
Hong Kong

Fax: (852) 3013 8913

E-mail: ir@partytime.com.cn

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholders must deposit and send
the original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or
enquiry (as the case may be) to the above address and provide their
full name, contact details and identification in order to give effect
thereto. Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as required by
law.
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Directors and Senior Management

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Chen Sheng, aged 49, the Chairlady of the Company. She was
appointed as a Non-executive Director of the Company on 5 May
2015 and re-designated as an Executive Director and the Chairlady
of the Board with effect from 9 October 2020. She is a member of
the Nomination Committee of the Company.

Ms. Chen has over 25 years of compliance experience. Prior to joining
our Group, she served at the Fuzhou City Local Tax Authority( &/ 71
175 B 7% 5 )and the Fuzhou Gute Construction Engineering Co., Ltd
(BMBEFESETEAMRAA]). Ms. Chen is the sister-in-law of Mr.
Chen Sheng Bi, the controlling shareholder of the Company up to 6
September 2021.

Mr. Xu Chengwu, aged 52, joined our group as the Finance Manager
in October 2012 and appointed as an Executive Director of the
Company on 3 April 2020 and the Chief Executive Officer and a
member of the Remuneration Committee of the Company on 9
October 2020.

Mr. Xu obtained his Bachelor Degree in Accounting from the Hunan
Radio and TV University (i 4 BHEEHR AZ) in July 1999 and is
a Registered Tax Agent under the State Administration of Taxation in
PRC.

Mr. Xu has over 25 years of experience in finance and taxation and
is responsible for the financial planning, management and internal
control matters of our Group.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chen Wen Hua, aged 54, was appointed an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company on 7 August 2015. He is the
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee, a member of the
Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee of the Company
respectively.

Mr. Chen obtained a Doctoral Degree in Economics from the Jiangxi
University of Finance and Economics (7T 7 Bf &8 K &2 T i £ %)
in June 2006, and has been a member of the Eleventh National
Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference
of Jiangxi Province (FBIARECAHE @R IAEE T —EZER)
in January 2013.

Mr. Chen has over 25 years of experience in the education industry.
He currently is a Supervisor for Master and a Professor of the Jiangxi
Normal University (T FART 3 X 22) and a Professor of the Shenzhen
Institute of Information Technology (R IIME B Bk ZE F T E ).

Mr. Zheng Jin Min, aged 50, was appointed an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company on 14 June 2019. He is the
Chairman of the Audit Committee.

Mr. Zheng is a certified public accountant of the Chinese Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (7 B & ft & 71 b 1% &) and
has obtained a Securities Investment Fund Industry Qualification

Certificate (FEIBFHILEE S EWZEFE) in August 2017,

Mr. Zheng has over 20 years of experience in accounting. He
currently serves as the chief financial controller of a private company.

Ms. Peng Xu, aged 49, is appointed an Independent Non- executive
Director of the Company on 7 August 2015. She is the Chairlady of
the Nomination Committee, a member of the Audit Committee and
the Remuneration Committee of the Company.

Ms. Peng obtained a Doctoral Degree in International Law from the
East China University of Political Science and Law (3R B E K )
in January 2007. Ms. Peng is qualified as a lawyer in the PRC since
May 1999.

Ms. Peng has over 18 years of experience in the legal industry.
She currently serves as an associate professor of the International
Law Faculty (B BRJAE2 B ) at the East China University of Political
Science and Law (ZER BUA K E).
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Chong Man Hung Jeffrey, aged 43, joined our group as the
Company Secretary on 21 May 2015.

Mr. Chong is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants.

Mr. Chong has over 18 years of experience in audit and finance and
is responsible for the company secretarial matters of our Group. Mr.
Chong is currently also serving as the Chief Financial Officer and the
Company Secretary of Yee Hop Holding Limited, the shares of which
are listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1662) since November
2019.

Directors and Senior Management
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Reportof the Directors

R E

REPORT OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors of the Company is pleased to submit their
report together with the audited financial statements of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2021.

Principal Activities

The Company is an investment company and the subsidiaries are
principally engaged in the design, development, production, sales
and marketing of cosplay products (including cosplay costumes and
cosplay wigs) and sexy lingerie and leasing of factory premises.

Results and Dividend

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on pages
63.

The Directors do not recommend payment of any dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2021.

Business Review

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2021 is set out in the sections headed “Directors’ Business Review
and Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 6 to 23
respectively of this Annual Report.

Summary Financial Information

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years is set
out on page 164.

Property, Plant and equipment and Right-0f-Use Assets

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment and right-of-
use assets of the Group during the year are set out in notes 16 and
14 to the consolidated financial statements, respectively.

Investment Properties

Details of movements in investment properties of the Group
during the year are set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Relief of Taxation
The Company is not aware of any relief of taxation available to the
shareholders by reason of their holding of the shares.

Donation
During the year, the Group did not made any donation.
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Share Capital
Details of movements in share capital of the Company during the
year are set out in note 30 to the consolidated financial statements.

Short term borrowings and lease liabilities

Details of short term borrowing and lease liabilities of the Group as at
31 December 2021 are set out in note 29 and 28 to the consolidated
financial statements, respectively.

Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles or the laws of the Cayman Islands, being the jurisdiction
in which the Company was incorporated, which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing
shareholders of the Company (“Shareholders”).

Purchase, Redemption or Sale of Listed Securities of the
Company

Neither the Company nor its subsidiary purchased, redeemed or
sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the year ended 31
December 2021.

Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the year are set out in consolidated statement of changes in
equity and note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.

Subsequent events
There were no significant events after the reporting period of the
Group.

Distributable Reserves

As at 31 December 2021, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Law, Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and
revised) (“Companies Law”) of the Cayman Islands, amounted to
approximately RMB173.6 million. Under the Companies Law of
the Cayman lIslands, the share premium account of the Company
of approximately RMB221.2 million as of 31 December 2021 is
distributable to the shareholders of the Company provided that
immediately following the date on which the dividend, if any, is
proposed to be distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay
off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business. The
share premium account may also be distributed in the form of fully
paid bonus shares.
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Permitted Indemnity Provision

The articles of associations of the Company provides that the
Directors shall be indemnified out of the assets and profits of the
Company from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses,
damages and expenses which they or any of them shall or may incur
or sustain by or by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted
in or about the execution of their duty, or supposed duty, in their
respective offices or trusts.

The Company has taken out and maintained directors’ liability
insurance which provides appropriate cover for the Directors and
directors of the subsidiaries of the Group.

Management Contracts
No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
Company were entered into or existed during the year.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

Throughout the year, to the best knowledge, information and belief,
the Company is not aware of any non-compliance with any relevant
laws and regulations that had a significant impact on the Company.

Remuneration Policy

The remuneration policy of the employees (including key
management) of the Group was established by the management of
the Group on the basis of their merit, qualifications and competence.
The Remuneration Committee will review and recommend the
remuneration policy to the Board for approval.

The remuneration of the Directors of the Company are reviewed and
recommended by the Remuneration Committee to the Board for
approval, having regard to the Company’s operating results, individual
performance and comparable market statistics. No Director, or any of
his associates and executives, is involved in dealing with his/her own
remuneration.

We have adopted a share option scheme to recognise and reward
the contribution of our employees, provide incentives to retain them
to support our continued growth and to attract suitable personnel
for further development. We regularly review the remuneration and
benefits of our employees according to the relevant market practice,
employee performance and the financial performance of the
Company.

Major customers and Suppliers

The aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s five largest customers
accounted for approximately 67% of the total revenue for the year
ended 31 December 2021 and the sales attributable to the largest
customer included therein accounted for approximately 35%.
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The Group’s purchase from the five largest suppliers for the year
ended 31 December 2021 accounted for approximately 32% of the
Group’s total purchases and purchases from the largest supplier
included therein accounted for approximately 17%.

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholders of the
Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors of the Company
own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any
interest in the five largest suppliers or customers.

Directors
The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report are:

Executive Directors

Ms. Chen Sheng

Mr. Xu Chengwu

Mr. Ma Chi Kwan (resigned on 31 December 2021)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Chen Wen Hua

Ms. Peng Xu

Mr. Zheng Jin Min

In accordance with Article 108(a), Ms. Peng Xu and Mr. Xu Chengwu
shall retire by rotation at the 2022 AGM, Ms. Peng Xu and Mr. Xu
Chengwu being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

Independence Confirmation

The Company has received from each of the Independent Non-
executive Directors a confirmation of independence pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the
Independent Non-executive Directors are independent.

Directors’ Service Contracts

Each of the Executive Directors (except for Mr. Xu Chengwu) and
Independent Non-executive Director (except for Mr. Zheng Jin Min)
has entered into a service agreement dated 7 August 2015 with the
Company for an initial fixed term of three years commencing from 16
October 2015 (i.e. the Listing Date) and has renewed for a further
three years and shall be automatically renewed for a further three-
year period after the expiry of the renewal term or the subsequent
renewal terms thereof.

Mr. Xu Chengwu, an Executive Director, has entered into a letter
of appointment with the Company for an initial term of three years
commencing from 3 April 2020, which may be terminated in
accordance with the terms of the letter of appointment.
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Mr. Zheng Jin Min, an Independent Non-executive Director, has
entered into a letter of appointment with the Company for a term
of three years commencing from 14 June 2019, which may be
terminated in accordance with the terms of the letter of appointment.

Each of the Executive Directors may terminate the service agreement
with the Company by giving not less than three months’ notice in
writing after the initial fixed term. The Company may terminate the
service agreement with each of the Executive Directors by giving
not less than three months’ notice in writing at any time during the
service period.

The service agreement of each of the Independent non-executive
Directors with the Company may be terminated by giving at least one
month’s notice in writing by either party.

None of the Directors being proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has an unexpired service
contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts of Significance

None of the Directors had a significant beneficial interest, either
directly or indirectly, in any contract of significance to the business
of the Group to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a
party during the year.

Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code as the Company’s code
of conduct for dealings in securities of the Company by the Directors.
Based on specific enquiries of the Company’s Directors, the Directors
have complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code
throughout the accounting period covered by the annual report.

Directors’ And Chief Executive’s Interests And Short Positions In
Shares, Underlying Shares And Debentures

As at 31 December 2021, none of the Directors, chief executives
of the Company and/or any of their respective associates had any
interests or short positions in any shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SF0")), as recorded in the register required to be
kept under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers.
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Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or Debentures

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the Company
or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the
Directors to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme is a share incentive scheme and is
established to recognise and acknowledge the contributions that
Eligible Participants (as defined below) have made or may make to
the Group so as to motivate the Eligible Participants to optimise their
performance and efficiency for the benefit of the Group, and attract,
retain or otherwise maintain ongoing business relationship with the
Eligible Participants whose contributions are, will or expected to be
beneficial to the Group.

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period
of ten years commencing on 7 August 2015, after which no further
options will be issued. The total number of Shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other schemes shall not in aggregate exceed
75,000,000 Shares (10% of the Shares in issue as at the date of
Listing), unless approved by the shareholders in general meeting
(the maximum number of Shares of the Company which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to
be exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Company must not exceed 30% of the total
number of shares of the Company in issue from time to time). No
option may be granted to any Eligible Participant which, if exercised
in full, would result in the total number of Shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of the options already granted or to be granted
to such Eligible Participant under the Share Option Scheme (including
exercised, cancelled and outstanding share options) in any 12-month
period up to and including the date of such grant exceeding 1% in
aggregate of the Shares in issue as at the date of such grant. The
offer of a grant of share options shall be accepted when the offer
letter has been duly signed and a consideration of HK$1 in total has
been paid by the grantee. The exercise period of the share options
granted is determinable by the Directors and ends on a date which is
not later than ten years from the date of the offer of share options.
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Eligible Participants include: (i) any Eligible Employees. “Eligible
Employees” means any employee (whether full time or part time,
including any Executive Director but excluding any Non- executive
Director) of the Company, any subsidiary or any entity in which
the Group holds at least 20% of its issued share capital (“Invested
Entity”); (ii) any Non-executive Director (including Independent Non-
executive Directors) of the Company, any subsidiary or any Invested
Entity; (iii) any supplier of goods or services of any member of the
Group or any Invested Entity; (iv) any customer of any member
of the Group or any Invested Entity; (v) any person or entity that
provides research, development or other technological support to
any member of the Group or any Invested Entity; (vi) any shareholder
of any member of the Group or any Invested Entity or any holder of
any securities issued by any member of the Group or any Invested
Entity; (vii) any advisor (professional or otherwise) or consultant to
any area of business or business development of any member of the
Group or any Invested Entity; and (viii) any other group or classes
of participants who have contributed or may contribute by way of
joint venture, business alliance or other business arrangement to
the development and growth of the Group, and, for the purposes of
the Share Option Scheme, options may be granted to any company
wholly owned by one or more Eligible Participants.

The exercise price of options shares shall not be less than the highest
of: (i) the closing price of the Share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheet on the date of grant of the relevant option,
which must be a day on which the Stock Exchange is open for the
business of dealing in securities (a “Trading Day”); (ii) the average
closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheets for the five Trading Days immediately preceding
the grant date of the relevant option; and (iii) the nominal value of a
Share on the offer date.

The principal terms of the Share Option Scheme are set out in the
Prospectus.

Pursuant to the Share Option Scheme, the Company may grant
options to Directors and employees of the Group and other eligible
participants to subscribe for Shares not exceeding 10% of the Shares
in issue, 75,000,000 Shares.

No option has been granted under the Share Option Scheme and
no option was exercised during the year under review. There was no
option under the Share Option Scheme outstanding at the end of the
reporting period.
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Interests of Shareholders Disclosable Under The SFO

As at 31 December 2021, so far as is known to the Directors, the
following persons (other than the Directors and chief Executives of
the Company) had interests or short positions in the Shares and
underlying Shares of the Company which were required to be notified
to the Company under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or
which were recorded in the register required to be kept under section

336 of the SFO.

Long positions in the Shares and underlying shares of the Company:
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Approximate

percentage of
the issued share

Number of capital of
Name of substantial shareholders Notes ~ Nature of interest ordinary shares the Company
1-E 3
ERTEFH
FERREE it EanE EERSE BHhaslt
Mr. Ye Wanhong (a) Interest of controlled corporation 251,859,000 23.38%
EEOLE @ REREENER
Master Professional Holdings Limited (a) Beneficial owner 251,859,000 23.38%
(“Master Professional”)
Master Professional Holdings Limited @) EB=mBEBA
(['Master Professional J)
Mr. Lam Shek Sun Beneficial owner 78,563,000 7.29%
WA LA ExBEBA
M. Li Bin Beneficial owner 168,561,000 15.65%
T LA ERBEAA
Mr. Ng Ting Wai Interest of controlled corporation 4,530,000 0.42%
REEBEE R EE RS
Beneficial owner 52,821,000 4.90%
EnBEAA
57,351,000 5.32%

(a)  Master Professional is 100% beneficially owned by Mr. Ye Wanhong.
Accordingly, Mr. Ye Wanhong is deemed to be interested on the Shares

held by Master Professional.

(@)  Master Professional REE & 4L L 4 100% B A -
It - BE 8 AT % 4 AR A B Master Professional #5
B2 EE R -
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Save as disclosed above, the Directors are not aware of any other
persons who have interests or short positions in the Shares and
underlying Shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed
to the Company under the provisions of Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of
the SFO, or which were recorded in the registered required to be kept
under section 336 of the SFO.

Sufficient of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has
maintained a sufficient public float as required under the Listing
Rules during 2021 and up to the date of this report.

Corporate Governance
Details of the Company’s corporate governance practices are set out
in the “Corporate Governance Report” section in the annual report.

Audit Committee
The Audit Committee has reviewed the consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021.

Auditor

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting to
re-appoint Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited as auditor of the
Company.

On behalf of the Board

Ms. Chen Sheng
Chairlady
Hong Kong, 30 March 2022

BREXPEEEN  EFETABEMEMAL
RARNFRHRDREEROT  EEREESFR
BEEPIEXVEIFE2RI3D HBAEMA R G HE
SERBEFS RERAIEIB6KRFE 2 ELM
FRacB s sk B ©

EE’R%%H&E
REARRARMASNENERESHAN K=
E-FAREBEAREAH  ARFCDHEF L
MARRRENTRERBIRE -

RE

TEER

VNN B % BROFBEIHNAERIOEE
SRR —&N o

EREER

%%%E&@ ERAREERBEE T -_—F+=
A=+ —HULEFENGEMBERE -

74 L
AREHERREAFAS IR —HERYE (T
B) S EEMER AR AAR G ZEMAR
n'#zmo

RREES

BAxL:

*E

BEE —E-——F=A=+H

54 CHINA PARTYTIME CULTURE HOLDINGS LIMITED vt |88 9% 38 S AL 2% Bt A7 9t 2 )



Independent Auditor’s Report

O Grant Thornton
2 [3]

To the members of China Partytime Culture Holdings Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Partytime Culture Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 63 to 163, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2021, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2021, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

A8 3 A% Bl e o
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Impairment Assessment of Property, Plant and Equipment and Investment Properties

MK BEREMWEUR R TR EFE

Refer to the summary of significant accounting policies in note 2.5, note 2.6, note 2.17, note 4, note 15 and note 16 to the

consolidated financial statements.
ELEGAYBRANE25 2.6~ BsE2.17 ~ BsE4 -

Key Audit Matter
HARERENR

At 31 December 2021, the Group had property, plant and
equipment and investment properties of approximately
RMB184,261,000 and RMB78,131,000, respectively.
RZEBEZ—F+ZA=+—H0  EEEYXE BELHZ
BRI EMED RIK A AR 184,261,0007T & A R#
78,131,000 7T °

Indications of impairment and reversal of impairment was noted
as at 31 December 2021 on respective cash-generating units
(“CGU"). The management further measures the recoverable
amount of property, plant and equipment and investment
properties based on value in use of the CGUs to which the
assets belong, performed by an independent professional
valuer which is supported by future discounted cash flows of
each CGUs.

RZEZ—F+_A=+—HAEAZTHeELSEM (R
EXEBEMDBERIEROTR ERERBEBLEEMN
BRMEEEMBReEFBLERAEEETHNME £
—HEHEVE BERZBEARKEYE 2 TEIKEEE -
FREBEIUNERSELEUNARRUARESRERKIE -

Management concluded that the reversal of impairment loss
on property, plant and equipment and investment properties
was RMB5,249,000 and RMB6,421,000, respectively, based
on the results of the assessment which involved significant
judgements, including utilisation rate, discount rate, inflation
rates, sales growth rate and market rent.

ERESHAER BRETIHER (EPRERAEG (2EFE
AR BRE CERE  HERRERMISZHES)) W%
BEEZBARKEDMENRAEEBERRLR S IR ARE
5,249,000 7t &2 A R # 6,421,000 7T ©

We have identified impairment assessment of property, plant
and equipment and investment properties as a key audit
matter to our audit because the assessment involves significant
management’s judgement and use of estimates.
TIZBEN Y E - BB R R R E Y R E T A
Z%EE%%%*Z%IE AR AP REREIEEHE R EA
fhat e

56

MEE 15 KMo T2 BRBE -

How the matter was addressed in our audit
ERBMEERTEERBEREENS E

Our audit procedures in relation to assessing the
appropriateness of the valuation of CGUs included the
following:
AZYMTEREeEEBEMNBEZHEENEZETE
FEATEIE

o assessed the competence, capabilities and objectivity
of the valuer;

o  DHMAMERMNERE I RFEIL

o discussed with management about the valuation
techniques adopted by the valuer, obtained and read
the valuation reports and assessed the appropriateness
of valuation techniques used by the valuer;

e CHEREMNRMGEMMAKRAONMGERMETR
R B E R ERE - WA A ERM AR AAER
fly 08 2 1

° reconciled input data to supporting evidence, such as
approved cashflow forecast and lease agreements;

e ERBANBHEIFIBREE WERAERSRE
AR R EWZ

o assessed the reasonableness of key inputs which were
used to determine the recoverable amount under
income approach, including discount rate, inflation
rate, market rent, sales growth rate and utilisation rate;

e  EAHERBREBERAZETARKEENEZE AR
B(BERRE ERkE mHElHe HEERER
ERAXR)HaEME:

° discussed with management about the allocation of
recoverable amount to each individual item of property,
plant and equipment and investment properties; and

e CHEEBERAZVE BERRBURKREME
&R E DB B S FEETH R &

assessed the reasonableness of allocation basis based
on our understanding of the business.

o RERMUEBHTHRAGOEKEENSEM -

We obtained supportive evidence for the significant
judgements and estimates on the valuation techniques and
key inputs used in the valuations of the recoverable amount
of the CGUs.

BMERBEEASN 2B REEITHERTAM
BERMTEREZHABBNERAS REETIRGEIFER -
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Valuation of Inventories

FRZzEE

Refer to the summary of significant accounting policies in note 2.10, note 4 and note 20 to the consolidated financial
statements.

B2HGEAVBREWE2.10 - M4 R0 FESFTEERBE -

Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

HEERER FRBAEEZTEERBEXERNA X

At 31 December 2021, the Group had inventories of Our audit procedures in relation to assessing the
RMB14,814,000 net of nil provisions. The directors make appropriateness of the valuation of the inventories included
significant judgements regarding the value of inventory the following:

provisions for obsolescence and slow-moving. TZEMT AT EHECEEENEZETEENTSE:
RZZBEZ—F+ZA=+—H EBESEFTEANRZTEHEAE

AR# 14814000 - BEEDHRE LB FSHAMEBE o obtained an understanding of how management
YE E A H - identifies the slow-moving and obsolete inventories and

assesses the amount of allowance for inventories;

In arriving at the net realisable value of inventories, estimation e THREERBNAHBFHEERETEUARTIHTE

and management judgement, including historical ageing BB
statistics and price of future sales of inventories, were
exercised. o tested, on a sample basis, the ageing of inventories;

REEFENAZRFER  BFEHEFLREEZBHE (B2 » EBEMENEFEZREK:
EERELRERTRIBERARARBEFENER) -

° tested, on a sample basis, the costs expected to incur

We have identified valuation of inventories as a key audit matter to bring the raw materials and work in progress into
to our audit because the calculations are subject to significant finished goods and compared to historical data;
judgements of management. o  DHEASERMA RERDEKRNm TEHE

AZHBMBEFE2HERNABAREZEE  BAZAE KR R LE B S B
WREXNEREHE -

° tested, on a sample basis, the expected volume and
price of future sales of inventories by comparing to
samples of inventories sold after the end of reporting
period; and

e  MMMMEARNEDHE CEFEARETLE - M
BRAETFEZRREENTEARHEREBIR &

o assessed, on a sample basis, the sufficiency of
allowance where the estimated net realisable value is
lower than the cost.

o L HHARET A 4 fh BT AT B IR (B (K P B AN B AT 1 H B
BT BN -
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Expected Credit Losses (“ECL”) Assessment of Trade Receivables and Net Investment in Leases
HOBERERAEREFHECHAUGEGR ((REGEEERD FE

Refer to the summary of significant accounting policies in note 2.9, note 4, note 21, note 23 and note 39.4 to the consolidated

financial statements.

B2RGAVEmARNTE29 M54 MisE2l M3 RMFE394RZ T ESHEEME -

Key Audit Matter
RREERER

At 31 December 2021, the carrying amount of the Group’s
trade receivables and net investment in leases amounted to
approximately RMB36,471,000 and RMB16,152,000 net
of ECL allowance of RMB19,355,000 and RMB436,000,
respectively.

R=F-—#+-A=+-A EBEEEIEUKER
HEREFHELEEES AR ARE36,471,0007T & A
R#16,152,0007 - R EHRTBHEEEEEBARE
19,355,000 7T &2 A R # 436,000 7T °

The ECL assessment of trade receivables and net investment in
leases involved significant management’s judgement and use
of estimates to ascertain the recoverability of trade receivables
and net investment in leases.

BoORKFERBEREFHE AREEBERIGIRE
BEWTESHRWTIEREEREFFEN PG M E
I B B K R R R AR Ak ET o

ECL allowance for trade receivables and net investment in
leases are based on management’s estimate of the lifetime ECL
to be incurred, which is estimated by taking into account the
credit loss experience, ageing of overdue trade receivables and
net investment in leases, customers and tenants’ repayment
history and customers and tenants’ financial position and
an assessment of both the current and forecast general
economic conditions, all of which involve a significant degree of
management judgement.
EORWFERMEREFE2EHEEBEREDRE
EREBHBEEE 2 MBMEEBE 2EFEL - 1t
KEZERBFLEEBELR BHEFERABERHEERE
FREIER BFEPRAPBAZERMANREFP RHERP
Z BT IRS  DA R B ER B I FEOAI B RS OB AR 2 5T - &
EH#HrREREENEREHE

We have identified the ECL assessment of trade receivables
and net investment in leases as a key audit matter because of
its significance to the consolidated financial statements and the
assessment involves significant management’s judgement and
use of estimates.

RSB EZRERFBREEREFECBHREEEE
AAENAEREZEE AR T hEGaBmEm
EHEBEXR AP RERNEEE HIE RER MR -

How the matter was addressed in our audit
FRUMEECRPTEERSEERTENSE

Our audit procedures in relation to ECL assessment of the
trade receivables and net investment in leases included the
following:
RZEMTEESERFEBEREEREFEH EHREER
BENEZEFERENATEIE

° obtained the Group’s policies on credit policy given
to customers and tenants and an understanding of
how management assesses the impairment of trade
receivables and net investment in leases under the ECL
model;

e W BEEEALATEFPREPZEEEXR W TH
EREBNAREREEEERXTEE SR WA
REEREFEIRE

° tested, on a sample basis, the ageing analysis of the
trade receivables and net investment in leases by
comparing with the relevant sales invoices and value
added tax invoices; and

e RANMMEHEEEEREEMBERETLE MK
REESREYHIBREEREFHE KRR

° assessed the reasonableness of management’s ECL
allowance estimates by examining the information
used by management to form such judgements, on
as sample basis, including testing the accuracy of the
historical default data, evaluating whether the historical
loss rates are appropriately adjusted based on current
economic conditions and forward-looking information,
and assessing whether there was an indication of
management bias when recognising ECL allowance.

e EBWMEBRGEETEEEBFERMACER  TE
EREMERBGEEBRMAG zAEN  BEAF
FEEENQBBENERYE FHELERXERER
EAREMRARAEEERNZ RRAE  UKTHE
BEDRBTERREERERTEEEERE -
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information in the 2021 annual report
of the Company, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors assisted by the Audit Committee are responsible for
overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

Independent Auditor’s Report
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited
Certified Public Accountants
11th Floor, Lee Garden Two

28 Yun Ping Road

Causeway Bay

Hong Kong

30 March 2022

Kan Kai Ching
Practising Certificate No.: PO7816
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

S 7 4EL B B H A 4 i WL i 5
For the year ended 31 December 2021

HE_Z - —F+-_A=+—HLFE

For the year ended 31 December

#E+-_A=+—HL#FHE

2021 2020
% —ECFE
Notes RMB’000 RMB000
Wi AREFIT ARETFT
Revenue k& 6 242,212 255,252
Costs of sales SHE A (176,226) (190,968)
Gross profit EXi 65,986 64,284
Other income HAb A 7 19,534 14,368
Gain from disposal of a subsidiary HE—MEIE QRS 37 1,030 -
Share of loss of associates PoR el /N E ] (35) -
Selling expenses HEMX (5,117) (5,574)
Reversal of impairment loss/(impairment loss)  #1% ~ BE N & &R E 1B #E
on property, plant and equipment, net (REEE)FE 5,249 (55,377)
Reversal of impairment loss/(impairment loss) X&YW REFER R (REEE)
on investment properties 6,421 (20,000)
ECL allowance of trade receivables ZHRERFBEBNESREEBBREE 21 (18,659) (526)
ECL allowance of net investment in leases HEREFENEHEEHBEE 23 (112) (324)
Fair value (loss)/gain on financial asset at BAFEFABRENEREED
FVTPL NEE(BE) e 22 (949) 3,913
Administrative and other operating expenses 1T K H fth 4 & B 5% (86,657) (75,251)
Loss from operations BEER (13,309) (74,487)
Finance costs BE A 8 (4,541) (6,704)
Loss hefore income tax fRERSRAIEGIE 9 (17,850) (81,191)
Income tax credit ISR 10 433 12,754
Loss for the year FARER (17,417) (68,437)
Other comprehensive income: Hti2@EWA -
Items that will be reclassified subsequentlyto HEREHIEZEEZEE
profit or loss
Exchange differences on translation of foreign DHERIME G EB 7 EN =&
operation recognised 1,558 282
Other comprehensive income for the year, FREMZEKRA HIRRES
net of nil tax 1,558 282
Total comprehensive expenses for the year FRE2EMAZHEE (15,859) (68,155)
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
o 7 AR A e Ll 2 vl W 6 3%

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_2-_-—F+-_A=+—HILEE

For the year ended 31 December
BE+-RA=1+—HLEE

2021 2020
8% —TTF
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
Wi AREFIT AR T
(Loss)/Profit for the year attributable to: THEHEIEER (GR) @7 :
Owners of the Company RREEE A (17,722) (68,437)
Non-controlling interests IR = 305 -
(17,417) (68,437)
Total comprehensive (expenses)/income THAEFEE2E (AT,
attributable to: A KR -
Owners of the Company RRBERA (16,164) (68,155)
Non-controlling interests FEPE Rt 305 -
(15,859) (68,155)
Loss per share for loss attributable to equity ZA2AFERBEARGEHRZSK
holders of the Company B8
Basic K 13 RMB AR (1.78)cents®  RMB AR (7.62)cents
Diluted #E 13 RMB AR (1.78)cents®  RMB AR (7.62)cents 7
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

o IR DL

As at 31 December 2021
RZEZ—F+=_HA=+—8H

2021 2020
—E_—% —ETF
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
it ABR¥TFIT ARBFor
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BERAR
Non-current assets EREEE
Trademark [ERE 19 9,029 -
Right-of-use assets FREEE 14 7,934 9,258
Investment properties B 15 78,131 58,915
Property, plant and equipment Mz WE L&A 16 184,261 217,707
Interests in associates R AR ED 18 1,810 -
Net investment in leases HEKEFHE 23 9,017 6,779
Financial asset at fair value through BAFEFABED
profit or loss TREE 22 - 5,557
Deferred tax assets EERIAE B 24 26,893 26,172
317,075 324,388
Current assets mEBEE
Inventories EE 20 14,814 14,119
Trade and other receivables B 5 Rk H b e Y518 21 47,788 67,639
Net investment in leases HEKEFH 23 7,135 2,996
Tax recoverable Al U [B] 7 18 679 2,062
Bank balances and cash SRITHBR MRS 25 99,661 48,908
170,077 135,724
Current liabilities mBE R
Trade and other payables B NEMENZRIA 26 20,436 19,289
Contract liabilities AHEE 27 949 170
Lease liabilities HEARE 28 5,739 2,190
Short term borrowings EHER 29 89,327 81,429
116,451 103,078
Net current assets RBEERE 53,626 32,646
Total assets less current liabilities HEERTDER 370,701 357,034
Non-current liabilities EREBAEMR
Lease liabilities HEAaE 28 6,161 5,506
Net assets BERE 364,540 351,528
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

wh e WA B IR DL
As at 31 December 2021
WZZE-_—F+-_A=+—H

2021 2020
% —T-TF
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
it AR¥TFiT AREFor
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BE R R
Share capital &% 7R 30 8,847 7,352
Reserves (G 31 352,328 344,176
Equity attributable to owners of the Company ~ ANA Rl A A JEGHER 36,175 351,528
Non-controlling interests JEE RS 3,365 -
Total equity HEgs 364,540 351,528
CHEN SHENG XU CHENGWU
BRF B
Chairlady Director
FE EZE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

e MEfR B B

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE T+ _-A=1+—HLEE

Share Share Capital Statutory ~ Translation Retained Non-controlling Total
capital premium* reserve* reserve* reserve* Profits* Total interests equity
kx BRRER EARE  EEEE  ERGRE  REEN: it FBREs #ia
RUBOOO RMBOOO RUBOOO RMBOOO RUBOOO RMBOOO RIBOOO RWBOO RMBOOO
NREFT  AREFT  AREFT  AREFT  AREFT  AREFT AREFT  AREFT  AREFI
As at 1 January 2020 R-B-B%-8-H 7352 196,839 85,160 35,981 5200 89,151 419,683 - 419,683
Loss for the year EnER - - - - - (68437) (68,437) - (68437)
Other comprehensive income: ~ E2E W :
- Exchange differences on
translation of foreign operation -~ HEZBREBINEHL
recognised 3:5.33 - - - - 282 - 282 - 282
Total comprehensive expenses  FAREHTEH
for the year - - - - 22 (68437) (68,155) - (68,155)
Transaction with owners: BHEEANRS
Transfer to statutory reserve ERZATHA - - - 48 - (428) - - -
Transaction with owners HERANZS - - - 48 - (428) - - -
As at 31 December 2020 and RIBZEE+ZA=T-AR
1 January 2021 —B-_-£-f-H 1352 196,839 85,160 36,409 5,482 20,286 351,528 - 351,528
Share of pre-acquisition porion to - FE R ER B B AT S
non-controlling interests - - - - - - - 3,060 3,060
(Loss)/profit for the year En(BE) /57 - - - - - (17,722) (17,722) 305 (17417)
Other comprehensive income: ~~ E2E W :
- Exchange differences on -BRRRERNEEL
ranslation of foreign operation ~ EXEZE
recognised - - - - 1,558 - 1,558 - 1,558
Total comprehensive expenses  ERREHTEH
for the year - - - - 1,558 (17,122) (16,164) 305 (15,859)
Transaction with owners: BERARZR:
Transfer to statutory reserve ERZATHA - - - 25 - (25) - - -
Issue of share capial (o2 30)  E{TRA(H#30) 1,495 2,316 - - - - 25811 - 25811
Transaction with owners HETANZS 1495 2316 - 25 - (25) 25811 - 25811
As at 31 December 2021 RoBZ-£+ZR=+-A 8,847 221,155 85,160 36,434 7,040 2539 361,175 3,365 364,540
* The reserves accounts comprise the Group’s reserves of  * HEREBRAEERGEEMBRIRAZFH

RMB352,328,000 (2020: RMB344,176,000) in the consolidated

statement of financial position.

BARM352328000T (ZZ2-FF: ARK
344,176,0007T) °
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

22 N 2> EL
GEaBlehEgR
For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_ZT-_—F+_A=+—HLEE

2021 2020
—E_—% —ETHF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TFiT ARETFT
Cash flows from operating activities BEITHRERE
Loss before income tax bR PTIS TR B 1R (17,850) (81,191)
Adjustments for: BLAT SIBIEL FHEE
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 200 651
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 9% - BE LREFE 31,697 33,828
Depreciation of investment properties WEYETE 3,437 1,665
Amortisation of trademark [ERES:F 3,184 63
Interest income MEUA (161) (218)
Income relating to net investment in leases MERE FHEBEIA (616) (1,129)
Interest expenses FERX 4,086 6,489
Finance charge on lease liabilities HEBRCREER 455 215
Loss on disposal of property, plant HEWME - WEREH2EBE
and equipment 1,335 173
(Reversal of impairment loss)/impairment W BEEEHEZ CRE
loss on property, plant and equipment, net EERR) RERE SR (5,249) 55,377
(Reversal of impairment loss)/impairment "EYE T CREEERRE)
loss on investment properties A 1A (6,421) 20,000
Fair value loss/(gain) on financial BAFEFABRZEREE
asset at FVTPL 2 AFERE, (W) 949 (3,913)
Gain on recognition of net investment in leases &R & /5 v Wi R (4,246) (2,807)
Share of loss of associates DEEE N F AR 35 -
Gain on disposal of financial asset at FVTPL HEZRATFEFTFAEBRD
SREENEE (2,835) -
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HEMB QR (1,030) -
ECL allowance on trade receivables B RNFIENTEREER
BEE 18,659 526
ECL allowance on net investment in leases HEHREFEMNEHREE 112 324
Operating profit before working capital changes I% ?5 B 25,741 30,053
(Increase)/decrease in inventories BESEHRILEHT (2,842) 10,152
Increase in trade and other receivables 7(57 (3gm) (282) (27,446)
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables & 5 K B #f & < ZR B 1€ i1~
CRL) 2,194 (24,823)
Increase in contract liabilities GHEEEM 427 170
Cash generated from/(used in) operations rmEmE/ (R R 25,238 (11,894)
Interest paid EENELRE (4,541) (6,704)
Income taxes (refund)/paid (Pﬁ%%%& RF) CATFRER 1,095 (286)
Net cash generated from/(used in) A EBATE (BT FH)
operating activities BHeFHE 21,792 (18,884)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
22 N\ Nr—il =R

HEHERER

For the year ended 31 December 2021

BE-_ZT-_—S+_A=+—HItEE

2021 2020
—E_—% —ETHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TFiT ARETF T
Cash flows from investing activities BRETHHRERE
Interest received 2UF 161 218
Purchase of property, plant and equipment ﬁ%ﬁ%% 5 I & A (11,988) (3,419)
Acquisition of associates Ug B B 2 A ) (1,845) -
Acquisition of subsidiaries, net of cash WEEKB AR - fNkRE
acquired IR & (8,765) -
Subscription of financial asset at FVTPL REEIL AT EF ABER
TREE (1,000) -
Proceeds from disposal of property, ﬁEW¥ B M 2 A
plant and equipment FriS 58 2,364 87
Proceeds from receipt of net investment in leases Yg lXFH & x,\@r%ﬁﬁﬁ%?ﬁ( 7,966 10,080
Proceeds from disposal of a subsidiary, netof — H&EWE A FFFEHIE
cash disposed of MBREHERS 4,656 -
Proceeds from disposal of financial HEZRAFEFTFAERD
assets at FVTPL SREENTS A 8,340 -
Proceeds of deregistration financial BUEGEM IR A ER AER
assets at FVTPL MEREERNMSEHIE 51 -
Net cash (used in)/generated from R EZE (FTAE),
investing activities Fr g8 & F88 (60) 6,966
Cash flows from financing activities METDHRLSTE
Proceeds from borrowings &R FT1S FUE 79,604 146,800
Repayment of borrowings BEEEN (71,032) (159,010)
Proceeds from issue of shares BT TS FE 26,160 -
Transactions costs directly attributable to BOEBREEERGER KA
issue of ordinary shares (349) -
Payment of lease liabilities HEBERMR (5,389) (5,904)
Net cash generated from/(used in) BEZEHRR
financing activities (FTA) 2 F5E 28,994 (18,114)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash HReRBASEEDEM
equivalents (D) BHE 50,726 (30,032)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning FUHReRRESEED
of the year 48,908 78,761
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes R BEhr 27 179
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year, EXRRERRNEEE Y - LISFT
represented by bank balances and BRRASRT (HiZ25)
cash (Note 25) 99,661 48,908
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2.1

70

GENERAL INFORMATION

China Partytime Culture Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands as exempted company on
12 February 2015 with limited liability. The Company’s shares
are listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) on 16 October 2015. The address of its
registered office is Windward 3, Regatta Office Park, P.O. Box
1350, Grand Cayman KY1-1108, Cayman Islands. The address
of its principal place of business is No. 3 Chunchao Road,
Yichun Economic & Technological Development Zone (“Yichun
Development Zone”), Jiangxi Province, the People’s Republic
of China (“PRC”).

The Company is an investment holding company and
its subsidiaries are principally engaged in the design,
development, production, sales and marketing of cosplay
products (including cosplay costumes and cosplay wigs) and
sexy lingerie, and leasing of factory premises.

These consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2021 were approved for issue by the board of
directors on 30 March 2022.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Basis of preparation

These annual consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective term includes
all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and the accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong.

The consolidated financial statements also comply with
the applicable disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and include the applicable disclosure
requirements of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”).

2.1
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2.1

2.2

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

The significant accounting policies that have been used in
the preparation of these consolidated financial statements
are summarised below. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented unless otherwise stated. The
adoption of new or amended HKFRSs and the impacts on the
Group’s financial statements, if any, are disclosed in note 3.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost except for financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL”) which are stated at fair values.
The measurement basis are fully described in the accounting
policies below. The consolidated financial statements is
presented in Renminbi (“RMB”) and all values are rounded to
the nearest thousands (“RMB’000"), except when otherwise
indicated.

It should be noted that accounting estimates and assumptions
are used in preparation of the consolidated financial statements.
Although these estimates are based on management’s best
knowledge and judgement of current events and actions, actual
results may ultimately differ from those estimates. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant are disclosed
in note 4 to the consolidated financial statements.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”). The financial statements of the
subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as the
Company, using consistent accounting policies.

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group
controls an entity when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity.
When assessing whether the Group has power over the entity,
only substantive rights relating to the entity (held by the Group
and others) are considered.

2.

2.1

2.2
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2.2
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

The Group includes the income and expenses of a subsidiary
in the consolidated financial statements from the date it gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains
and losses on transactions between group companies are
eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Where unrealised losses on sales of intra-group asset are
reversed on consolidation, the underlying asset is also tested
for impairment from the Group’s perspective. Amounts reported
in the financial statements of subsidiaries have been adjusted
where necessary to ensure consistency with the accounting
policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity on a subsidiary
not attributable directly or indirectly to the Company, and in
respect of which the Group has not agreed any additional
terms with the holders of those interests which would result
in the Group as a whole having a contractual obligation
in respect of those interests that meets the definition of a
financial liability. For each business combination, the Group
can elect to measure any non-controlling interests either at
fair value or at their proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net
identifiable assets. Non-controlling interests are presented in
the consolidated statement of financial position within equity,
separately from the equity attributable to the owners of the
Company. Non-controlling interests in the results of the Group
are presented on the face of the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income as an allocation
of the total profit or loss and total comprehensive income for
the year between non-controlling interests and the owners of
the Company.

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that do
not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions, whereby adjustments are made to the amounts
of controlling interests within consolidated equity to reflect the
change in relative interests, but no adjustments are made to
goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.
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2.2

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or
loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between (i)
the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received
and the fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the previous
carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and
liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests.
Where certain assets of the subsidiary are measured at
revalued amounts or fair values and the related cumulative
gain or loss has been recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity, the amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity are accounted for as if the Company had directly
disposed of the related assets (i.e., reclassified to profit or loss
or transferred directly to retained profits). The fair value of any
investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date when
control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition
for subsequent accounting under HKFRS 9 “Financial
Instruments”, when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of
an investment in an associate or a joint venture.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, subsidiaries
are carried at cost less any impairment loss unless the
subsidiary is held for sale or included in a disposal group. Cost
is adjusted to reflect changes in consideration arising from
contingent consideration amendments. Cost also includes
directly attributable costs of investment.

The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company
on the basis of dividends received and receivable at the
reporting date. All dividends whether received out of the
investee’s pre or post-acquisition profits are recognised in the
Company’s profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence, which is the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee but is not control or
joint control of those policies.

In consolidated financial statements, an investment in an
associate is initially recognised at cost and subsequently
accounted for using the equity method. Any excess of the cost
of acquisition over the Group’s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the
associate recognised at the date of acquisition is recognised as
goodwill. The goodwill is included within the carrying amount
of the investment and is assessed for impairment as part of
the investment. The cost of acquisition is measured at the
aggregate of the fair values, at the date of exchange, of assets
given, liabilities incurred or assumed and equity instruments
issued by the Group, plus any costs directly attributable to
the investment. Any excess of the Group’s share of the net
fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities over the cost of acquisition, after reassessment, is
recognised immediately in profit or loss in the determination of
the Group’s share of the associate’s profit or loss in the period
in which the investment is acquired.

Under the equity method, the Group’s interest in the associate
is carried at cost and adjusted for the post-acquisition changes
in the Group’s share of the associate’s net assets less any
identified impairment loss, unless it is classified as held for
sale (or included in a disposal group that is classified as held
for sale). The profit or loss for the year includes the Group’s
share of the post-acquisition, post-tax results of the associate
for the year, including any impairment loss on the investment
in associate recognised for the year. The Group’s other
comprehensive income for the year includes its share of the
associate’s other comprehensive income for the year.
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2.3

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Associates (Continued)

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its
associate is eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest
in the associates. Where unrealised losses on assets sales
between the Group and its associate is reversed on equity
accounting, the underlying asset is also tested for impairment
from the Group’s perspective. Where the associate uses
accounting policies other than those of the Group for like
transactions and events in similar circumstances, adjustments
are made, where necessary, to conform the associate’s
accounting policies to those of the Group when the associate’s
financial statements are used by the Group in applying the
equity method.

When the Group’s share of losses in an associate equals
or exceeds its interest in the associate, the Group does
not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred legal
or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of
the associate. For this purpose, the Group’s interest in the
associate is the carrying amount of the investment under the
equity method together with the Group’s long-term interests
that in substance form part of the Group’s net investment in the
associate.

After the application of equity method, the Group determines
whether it is necessary to recognise an additional impairment
loss on the Group’s investment in its associate. At the end of
each reporting period, the Group determines whether there
is any objective evidence that the investment in associate
is impaired. If such indications are identified, the Group
calculates the amount of impairment as being the difference
between the recoverable amount (i.e. higher of value in use
and fair value less costs of disposal) of the associate and
its carrying amount. In determining the value in use of the
investment, the Group estimates its share of the present value
of the estimated future cash flows expected to be generated by
the associate, including cash flows arising from the operations
of the associate and the proceeds on ultimate disposal of the
investment.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Associates (Continued)

The Group discontinues the use of equity method from the date
when it ceases to have significant influence over an associate.
If the retained interest in that former associate is a financial
asset, the retained interest is measured at fair value, which is
regarded as its fair value on initial recognition as a financial
asset in accordance with HKFRS 9. The difference between (i)
the fair value of any retained interest and any proceeds from
disposing of partial interest in the associate; and (ii) the carrying
amount of the investment at the date the equity method was
discontinued, is recognised in the profit or loss. In addition, the
Group accounts for all amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to that associate on the same
basis as would have been required if the associate had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain
or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income
by the investee would be reclassified to profit or loss on the
disposal of the related assets or liabilities, the entity reclassifies
the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification
adjustment) when the equity method is discontinued.

Foreign currency translation

The consolidated financial statements are presented in RMB,
which is the Group’s presentation currency, as the directors
of the Company are of the view that RMB is more relevant to
the shareholders of the Company. The functional currency of
the Company and its subsidiaries outside mainland China is
Hong Kong Dollar (“HK$”) and the functional currency of the
subsidiaries in mainland China is RMB.

In the individual financial statements of the consolidated
entities, foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency of the individual entity using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the reporting
date, monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling
at that date. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and from the reporting date
retranslation of monetary assets and liabilities are recognised in
profit or loss.
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2.5

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on
the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated (i.e. only translated using the
exchange rate at the transaction date).

In the consolidated financial statements, all individual financial
statements of foreign operations, originally presented in a
currency different from the Group’s presentation currency,
have been converted into RMB. Assets and liabilities have been
translated into RMB at the closing rates at the reporting date.
Income and expenses have been converted into RMB at the
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates, or at the average
rates over the reporting period provided that the exchange
rates do not fluctuate significantly. Any differences arising from
this procedure have been recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in translation reserve in
equity.

On disposal of a foreign operation, all of the accumulated
exchange differences in respect of that operation attributable to
the Group are reclassified to profit or loss.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress as described below and cost of right-of-use assets as
described in note 2.14, are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses. Cost includes expenditure
that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset.
Purchased software that is integral to the functionality of the
related equipment is capitalised as part of that equipment.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of assets other
than construction in progress less their residual values over
their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method, at
the following rates per annum:

Buildings 2.86t0 5%
Plant and machineries 10 to 20%
Motor vehicles 20%
Furniture and equipment 20%

20 to 100% or over its lease terms,
whichever is shorter

Leasehold improvement

Estimate of residual value and useful life are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting date. The gain or loss
arising on retirement or disposal is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced
part is derecognised. All other costs, such as repairs and
maintenance, are charged to profit or loss during the financial
period in which they are incurred.

Construction in progress represents property, plant and
equipment under construction, which is stated at cost less any
impairment losses, and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the
direct costs of construction and capitalised borrowing costs
on related borrowed funds during the period of construction.
Construction in progress is reclassified to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment when completed
and ready for use.
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2.6

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are
owned or held under a leasehold interest (see note 2.14) to
earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation. These
include land held for a currently undetermined future use and
property that is being constructed or developed for future use
as investment property.

On initial recognition, investment property is measured at cost.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are
stated at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
any accumulated impairment losses. Depreciation is recognised
so as to write off the cost of investment properties over their
estimated useful lives and after taking into account of their
estimated residual value, using the straight-line method over
its lease terms. The estimated useful lives, residual values and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted
for on a prospective basis.

Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to
the acquisition of the investment property. The cost of self-
constructed investment property includes the cost of materials
and direct labour, any other costs directly attributable to
bringing the investment property to a working condition for their
intended use and capitalised borrowing costs.

The cost on initial recognition and subsequent measurement of
investment property held by a lessee as a right-of-use asset are
set out in note 2.14.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn from
use and no future economic benefits are expected from its
disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
property (calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in
the profit or loss in the period in which the investment property
is derecognised.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investment properties (Continued)

The Group transfers a property to, or from, investment property
when, and only when, there is a change in use. A change
in use occurs when the property meets, or ceases to meet,
the definition of investment property and there is evidence of
the change in use. In isolation, a change in management’s
intentions for the use of a property does not provide evidence
of a change in use. Examples of evidence of a change in use
include:

(@) commencement of owner-occupation, or of development
with a view to owner-occupation, for a transfer from
investment property to owner-occupied property;

(b) commencement of development with a view to sale, for a
transfer from investment property to inventories;

(c) end of owner-occupation, for a transfer from owner-
occupied property to investment property; and

(d) inception of an operating lease to another party, for a
transfer from inventories to investment property.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) and research and

development activities

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Acquired intangible assets are recognised initially at cost.
After initial recognition, intangible assets with finite useful lives
are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible
assets with finite useful lives is provided on straight-line basis
over their estimated useful lives. Amortisation commences
when the intangible assets are available for use. The following
rate per annum is applied:

18.75% or over its lease terms,
whichever is shorter

Trademark

The assets’ amortisation methods and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting date. Intangible
assets are tested for impairment as described below in note
2.17.
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2.7

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) and research and
development activities (Continued)

Research and development costs

Costs associated with research activities are expensed in
profit or loss as they occur. Costs that are directly attributable
to development activities are recognised as intangible assets
provided they meet the following recognition requirements:

(i)  demonstration of technical feasibility of the prospective
product for internal use or sale;

(i)  there is intention to complete the intangible asset and
use or sell it;

(iii) the Group’s ability to use or sell the intangible asset is
demonstrated:

(iv) the intangible asset will generate probable economic
benefits through internal use or sale;

(v)  sufficient technical, financial and other resources are
available for completion; and

(vi) the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset can
be reliably measured.

Direct costs include employee costs incurred on development
activities along with an appropriate portion of relevant
overheads. The costs of development of internally generated
software, products or knowhow that meet the above recognition
criteria are recognised as intangible assets. They are subject
to the same subsequent measurement method as acquired
intangible assets.

All other development costs are expensed as incurred.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments

Recognition and derecognition

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when
the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
financial instrument.

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights
to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or when the
financial asset and substantially all of its risks and rewards
are transferred. A financial liability is derecognised when it is
extinguished, discharged, cancelled or expires.

Financial assets

Classification and initial measurement of financial assets
Except for those trade receivables that do not contain a
significant financing component and are measured at the
transaction price in accordance with HKFRS 15, all financial
assets are initially measured at fair value, in case of a financial
asset not at FVTPL, plus transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction
costs of financial assets carried at FVTPL are expensed
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

Financial assets, other than those designated and effective as
hedging instruments, are classified into the following categories:

- amortised cost;
- FVTPL; or

- fair value through other comprehensive income
(“FVOCI™).

The classification is determined by both:

- the entity’s business model for managing the financial
asset; and

- the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial
asset.
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2.8

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and initial measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

All income and expenses relating to financial assets that are
recognised in profit or loss are presented within other income or
administrative and other operating expenses included expected
credit losses (“ECL") of trade receivables and net investment in
leases.

Subsequent measurement of financial assets

Debt investments

Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets are measured at amortised cost if the assets
meet the following conditions (and are not designated as
FVTPL):

- they are held within a business model whose objective
is to hold the financial assets and collect its contractual
cash flows; and

- the contractual terms of the financial assets give rise
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial recognition, these are measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method. Interest income from
these financial assets is included in other income in profit or
loss. Discounting is omitted where the effect of discounting
is immaterial. The Group’s bank balances and cash, net
investment in leases and trade and other receivables fall into
this category of financial instruments.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that are held within a different business model
other than “hold to collect” or “hold to collect and sell’” are
categorised at FVTPL. Further, irrespective of business model,
financial assets whose contractual cash flows are not solely
payments of principal and interest are accounted for at FVTPL.
All derivative financial instruments fall into this category, except
for those designated and effective as hedging instruments, for
which the hedge accounting requirements under HKFRS 9

apply.
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2.8

84

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities

Classification and measurement of financial liabilities
The Group’s financial liabilities include borrowings, lease
liabilities and trade and other payables.

Financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value, and,
where applicable, adjusted for transaction costs unless the
Group designated a financial liability at FVTPL.

Subsequently, financial liabilities are measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest.

All interest-related charges are included within finance costs.
Accounting policies of lease liabilities are set out in note 2.14.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently stated
at amortised cost; any difference between the proceeds (net
of transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognised
in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the
effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group
has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for
at least twelve months after the reporting date.

Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables are recognised initially at their fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.
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2.9

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

HKFRS 9’s impairment requirements use forward-looking
information to recognise ECL — the “ECL model”. Instruments
within the scope included loans and other debt-type financial
assets measured at amortised cost and trade receivables.

The Group considers a broader range of information when
assessing credit risk and measuring ECL, including past events,
current conditions, reasonable and supportable forecasts that
affect the expected collectability of the future cash flows of the
instrument.

In applying this forward-looking approach, a distinction is made
between:

- financial instruments that have not deteriorated
significantly in credit quality since initial recognition or
that have low credit risk (“Stage 1”) and

- financial instruments that have deteriorated significantly
in credit quality since initial recognition and whose credit
risk is not low (“Stage 2").

“Stage 3” would cover financial assets that have objective
evidence of impairment at the reporting date.

“12-month ECL” are recognised for the Stage 1 category while
“lifetime ECL" are recognised for the Stage 2 category.

Measurement of the ECL is determined by a probability-
weighted estimate of credit losses over the expected life of the
financial instrument.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Trade receivables and net investment in leases

For trade receivables and net investment in leases, the
Group applies a simplified approach in calculating ECL and
recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECL at each
reporting date. These are the expected shortfalls in contractual
cash flows, considering the potential for default at any point
during the life of the financial assets. In calculating the ECL,
the Group has established a provision matrix that is based on
its historical credit loss experience and external indicators,
adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and
the economic environment.

To measure the ECL, trade receivables have been grouped
based on shared credit risk characteristics, individual credit
rating and the days past due. ECL of net investment in leases is
assessed on an individual debtor basis with reference to credit
rating.

Other financial assets measured at amortised cost

The Group measures the loss allowance for other financial
assets measured at amortised cost equal to 12-month ECL,
unless when there has been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition, the Group recognises lifetime ECL.
The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised
is based on significant increase in the likelihood or risk of
default occurring since initial recognition. Financial assets are
not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except
if and in the period the Group changes its business model for
managing financial assets.

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group compares the risk of a
default occurring on the financial assets at the reporting date
with the risk of default occurring on the financial assets at the
date of initial recognition. In making this assessment, the Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportable, including historical experience
and forward-looking information that is available without undue
cost or effort.
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2.9

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Other financial assets measured at amortised cost (Continued)
In particular, the following information is taken into account
when assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly:

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal
credit rating;

- significant deterioration in external market indicators of
credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit spread,
the credit default swap prices for the debtor;

- existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial
or economic conditions that are expected to cause a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations;

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor; and

- an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of
the debtor that results in a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the credit
risk on a debt instrument has not increased significantly since
initial recognition if the debt instrument is determined to have
low credit risk at the end of each reporting period. A debt
instrument is determined to have low credit risk if it has a low
risk of default, the borrower has strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term and adverse
changes in economic and business conditions in the longer
term may, but will not necessarily, reduce the ability of the
borrower to fulfill its contractual cash flow obligations.
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2.9

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Other financial assets measured at amortised cost (Continued)
For internal credit risk management, the Group considers an
event of default occurs when information developed internally
or obtained from external sources indicates that the debtor is
unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full (without
taking into account any collateral held by the Group).

Detailed analysis of the ECL assessment of trade receivables
and other financial assets measured at amortised cost are set
out in note 39.4.

2.10 Inventories

2.1

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business less the estimated cost of
completion and applicable selling expenses. Cost is determined
using the weighted average method, and in case of work in
progress and finished good, comprise direct methods, direct
labour and an appropriate proportion of overheads. It excludes
borrowing costs.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at bank and in hand,
demand deposits with banks and short term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or less that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

2.12 Contract liabilities

88

A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays
consideration before the Group recognises the related revenue
(see note 2.15). A contract liability would also be recognised if
the Group has an unconditional right to receive consideration
before the Group recognises the related revenue. In such
cases, a corresponding receivable would also be recognised
(see note 2.8).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.13 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. The amount of share
capital recognised is determined using the nominal value and
any related transaction costs are deducted from the share
premium.

2.14 Leases

Definition of a lease and the Group as a lessee

At inception of a contract, the Group considers whether
a contract is, or contains a lease. A lease is defined as ‘a
contract, or part of a contract, that conveys the right to use an
identified asset (the underlying asset) for a period of time in
exchange for consideration’. To apply this definition, the Group
assesses whether the contract meets three key evaluations
which are whether:

- the contract contains an identified asset, which is either
explicitly identified in the contract or implicitly specified
by being identified at the time the asset is made available
to the Group;

- the Group has the right to obtain substantially all of
the economic benefits from use of the identified asset
throughout the period of use, considering its rights within
the defined scope of the contract; and

- the Group has the right to direct the use of the identified
asset throughout the period of use. The Group assess
whether it has the right to direct ‘how and for what
purpose’ the asset is used throughout the period of use.

For contracts that contains a lease component and one or more
additional lease or non-lease components, the Group allocates
the consideration in the contract to each lease and non-lease
component on the basis of their relative stand-alone prices.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.14 Leases (Continued)

90

Definition of a lease and the Group as a lessee (Continued)
Measurement and recognition of leases as a lessee

At lease commencement date, the Group recognises a right-
of-use asset and a lease liability on the consolidated statement
of financial position. The right-of-use asset is measured at
cost, which is made up of the initial measurement of the lease
liability, any initial direct costs incurred by the Group, an
estimate of any costs to dismantle and remove the underlying
asset at the end of the lease, and any lease payments made
in advance of the lease commencement date (net of any lease
incentives received).

The Group depreciates the right-of-use assets on a straight-
line basis from the lease commencement date to the earlier
of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the
end of the lease term unless the Group is reasonably certain
to obtain ownership at the end of the lease term. The Group
also assesses the right-of-use asset for impairment when such
indicator exists.

At the commencement date, the Group measures the lease
liability at the present value of the lease payments unpaid at
that date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the
lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined, the Group’s
incremental borrowing rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease
liability are made up of fixed payments (including in-substance
fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable
payments based on an index or rate, and amounts expected
to be payable under a residual value guarantee. The lease
payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option
reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and payment
of penalties for terminating a lease, if the lease term reflects the
Group exercising the option to terminate.

Subsequent to initial measurement, the liability will be reduced
for lease payments made and increased for interest cost on the
lease liability. It is remeasured to reflect any reassessment or
lease modification, or if there are changes in in-substance fixed
payments.
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2.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.14 Leases (Continued)

Definition of a lease and the Group as a lessee (Continued)
Measurement and recognition of leases as a lessee (Continued)
When the lease is remeasured, the corresponding adjustment
is reflected in the right-of-use asset, or profit and loss if the
right-of-use asset is already reduced to zero.

The Group has elected to account for short-term leases using
the practical expedients. Instead of recognising a right-of-use
asset and lease liability, the payments in relation to these leases
are recognised as an expense in profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the lease term. Short-term leases are leases with a
lease term of 12 month or less.

On the consolidated statement of financial position, right-of-
use assets (included prepaid land lease payments for leasehold
land) that do not meet the definition of investment property are
presented under non-current assets. Right-of-use assets that
meet the definition of investment property are presented within
“investment property”.

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted for under
HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments
to fair value at initial recognition are considered as additional
lease payments and included in the cost of right-of-use assets.

The Group as a lessor

As a lessor, the Group classifies its leases as either operating
or finance leases. A lease is classified as a finance lease if
it transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of the underlying asset, and classified as an
operating lease if it does not. Assets leased out under operating
leases are measured and presented according to the nature
of the assets. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and
arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount
of the leased asset and recognised as an expense over the
lease term on the same basis as the rental income.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.14 Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessor (Continued)

Rental income receivable from operating leases is recognised
in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the periods covered
by the lease term, except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the time pattern of benefits to be derived
from the use of the leased asset. Lease incentives granted are
recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of the aggregate
net lease payments receivable. Contingent rentals are
recognised as income in the accounting period in which they
are earned.

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, it accounts for the
head lease and the sub-leases as two separate contracts. The
sub-leases are classified as a finance or operating lease with
reference to the right-of-use asset arising from the head lease,
not with reference to the underlying asset. If the head lease is
a short-term lease to which the Group applies the short-term
lease exemption, then the Group classifies the sub-lease as an
operating lease.

The Group sub-leases some of its properties and the sub-lease
contracts are classified as finance lease.

The Group also earns rental income from operating leases of
its property, plant and equipment and investment properties.
Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis over the
term of the lease.

2.15 Revenue recognition

92

Revenue arises mainly from the sales of wigs, clothing and
others (including cosplay costumes, sexy lingerie and others).

2.

FESHBREBE 2

214 HE (&)

FEEEBHBEA (F)
REEENRKAE S AR E SRR E B
BIRERENBaER e » —EEFRE
REEAHEEERSM A ERERAR
BRI FTER 2 HEEEHERETHERS
FE R EF N RAARZARE D - IAREE
EEELXZ ST HEAERR/EA -

EAEKEATREEAR - HHpREE RS
BARRMOBLAK BHN2EREE
ZERBEECF2EHBERE) D BERRE
BAREHE - WREER/ANKERAEH
HEMRZEHHEE  IAKESEENS R
REEHE -

AEBEBEELOYME  ZFERAOD
BAMEMRE -

AEBTEBEYE  BELRBARKRE
MELEHERDESWA - HEWAER
BARORRBHRER -

215 IR FER2

WHTBEREHERE REMEM(BFR
AETERMS - ERAXREM)

CHINA PARTYTIME CULTURE HOLDINGS LIMITED vt |88 9% 38 S AL 2% Bt A7 9t 2 )



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.15 Revenue recoghnition (Continued)

To determine whether to recognise revenue, the Group follows
a b-step process:

1. Identifying the contract with a customer

2. Identifying the performance obligations

3. Determining the transaction price

4. Allocating the transaction price to the performance
obligations

5. Recognising revenue when/as performance obligation(s)
are satisfied.

In all cases, the total transaction price for a contract is allocated
amongst the various performance obligations based on their
relative stand-alone selling prices. The transaction price for
a contract excludes any amounts collected on behalf of third
parties.

Revenue is recognised either at a point in time or over time,
when (or as) the Group satisfies performance obligations by
transferring the promised goods or services to its customers.

Where the contract contains a financing component which
provides a significant financing benefit to the customer for
more than 12 months, revenue is measured at the present
value of the amount receivable, discounted using the discount
rate that would be reflected in a separate financing transaction
with the customer, and interest income is accrued separately
under the effective interest method. Where the contract
contains a financing component which provides a significant
financing benefit to the Group, revenue recognised under that
contract includes the interest expense accreted on the contract
liability under the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B B % e B

POLICIES (continued)

2.15 Revenue recoghnition (Continued)

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other income
recognition policies are as follows:

Sale of wigs, clothing and others

Revenue from the sale of wigs, clothing and others for a fixed
fee is recognised when or as the Group transfers control of the
assets to the customer. Control transfers at the point in time
when the goods are delivered and the customer has accepted
the goods.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis using
the effective interest method. For financial assets measured
at amortised cost that are not credit-impaired, the effective
interest rate is applied to the gross carrying amount of the
asset. For credit-impaired financial assets, the effective interest
rate is applied to the amortised cost (i.e. gross carrying amount
net of ECL allowance) of the asset.

Rental income
Accounting policies for rental income are set out in note 2.14.

2.16 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value
where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be
received and the Group will comply with all attached conditions.
Government grants are deferred and recognised in profit or loss
over the period necessary to match them with the costs that the
grants are intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to income is presented in gross
under “Other income” in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income.

2.17 Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group’s property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets,
investment properties, interests in associates, trademark
and the Company’s investments in subsidiaries are tested for
impairment whenever there are indications that the asset’s
carrying amount may not be recoverable.
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2.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.17 Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds
its recoverable amount. Recoverable amount is the higher of
fair value, reflecting market conditions less costs of disposal,
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessment of
time value of money and the risk specific to the asset.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, where an asset
does not generate cash inflows largely independent from those
from other assets, the recoverable amount is determined
for the smallest group of assets that generate cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit (“CGU")). As a
result, some assets are tested individually for impairment and
some are tested at CGU level. Corporate assets are allocated
to individual CGU, when a reasonable and consistent basis
of allocation can be identified, or otherwise they are allocated
to the smallest group of CGU for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Impairment losses is charged pro rata to the other assets in
the CGU, except that the carrying value of an asset will not be
reduced below its individual fair value less cost of disposal, or
value in use, if determinable.

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a favourable
change in the estimates used to determine the asset’s
recoverable amount and only to the extent that the asset’s
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined, net of depreciation or
amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.18 Employee henefits

Retirement benefits
Retirement benefits to employees are provided through defined
contribution plans.

The Group operates a defined contribution retirement benefit
plan in Hong Kong under the Mandatory Provident Fund
(“MPF") Schemes Ordinance, for all of its employees who are
eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are
made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in the
PRC are required to participate in a central pension scheme
operated by the local municipal government. The subsidiaries
are required to contribute certain percentage of its payroll costs
to the central pension scheme.

Contributions are recognised as an expense in the profit or loss
as employees render services during the year. The Group’s
obligation under these plans is limited to the fixed percentage
contributions payable.

Short-term employee henefits

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made for the
estimated liability for annual leave as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the reporting date.

Non-accumulating compensated absences such as sick leave
and maternity leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

2.19 Borrowing costs

96

Borrowing costs incurred, net of any investment income earned
on the temporary investment of the specific borrowings, for
the acquisition, construction or production of any qualifying
asset are capitalised during the period of time that is required
to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use.
A qualifying asset is an asset which necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or
sale. Other borrowing costs are expensed when incurred.
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2.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.19 Borrowing costs (Continued)

Borrowing costs are capitalised as part of the cost of a
qualifying asset when expenditure for the asset is being
incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred and activities that
are necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use or sale
are being undertaken. Capitalisation of borrowing costs ceases
when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the
qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are complete.

2.20 Accounting for income taxes

Income tax comprises current tax and deferred tax.

Current income tax assets and/or liabilities comprise those
obligations to, or claims from, fiscal authorities relating to
the current or prior reporting period, that are unpaid at the
reporting date. They are calculated according to the tax rates
and tax laws applicable to the fiscal periods to which they
relate, based on the taxable profit for the year. All changes to
current tax assets or liabilities are recognised as a component
of tax expense in profit or loss.

Deferred tax is calculated using the liability method on
temporary differences at the reporting date between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities and their respective
tax bases. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised
for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are
recognised for all deductible temporary differences, tax losses
available to be carried forward as well as other unused tax
credits, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit,
including existing taxable temporary differences, will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences,
unused tax losses and unused tax credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from goodwill or from initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of assets
and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither taxable nor
accounting profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B B % e B

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.20 Accounting for income taxes (Continued)

98

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the temporary differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax is calculated, without discounting, at tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period the liability is settled or
the asset realised, provided they are enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date.

Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities are recognised in
profit or loss, or in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity if they relate to items that are charged or credited to
other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are presented in
net if, and only if,

(a) the Group has the legally enforceable right to set off the
recognised amounts; and

(b) intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

2.20 Accounting for income taxes (Continued)
The Group presents deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities in net if, and only if,

(a) the entity has a legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities; and

(b) the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either:

(i)  the same taxable entity; or

(i)  different taxable entities which intend either
to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a
net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in
which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities
or assets are expected to be settled or recovered.

2.21 Related parties
For the purposes of these consolidated financial statements a
party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B B % e B

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

2.21 Related parties (Continued)
the party is an entity and if any of the following conditions
applies:

(b)

(i)

(ii)

(ii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are members of the same
group.

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party.

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity.

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group.

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).

the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services
to the Group or to the parent of the Group.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that person in their dealings with the entity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.22 Segment reporting

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares segment
information based on the regular internal financial information
reported to the most senior executive management for their
decisions about resources allocation to the Group’s business
components and for their review of the performance of those
components. The business components in the internal financial
information reported to the most senior executive management
are determined following the Group’s major product and service
lines.

The Group has identified the following reportable segments:
(a)  Wigs;

(b) Clothing and others (including cosplay costumes, sexy
lingerie and others); and

(c) Leasing of factory premises (self-owned or held under
leasehold interest)

Each of these reportable segments is managed separately
as each of the product and service lines requires different
resources as well as marketing approaches. All inter-segment
transfers are carried out at arm’s length prices.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED HKFRSs

Amended HKFRSs that are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2021

In the current year, the Group has applied for the first time
the following amended HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA, which
are relevant to the Group’s operations and effective for the
Group’s consolidated financial statements for the annual period
beginning on 1 January 2021:

Amendment to HKFRS 16~ Covid-19-Related Rent

Concessions
Amendments to HKFRS 9,  Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7, — Phase 2

HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED HKFRSs

(Continued)

Amended HKFRSs that are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2021 (Continued)

The adoption of the amended HKFRSs had no material impact
on how the results and financial position for the current and
prior periods have been prepared and presented.

Issued but not yet effective HKFRSs

At the date of authorisation of these consolidated financial
statements, certain new and amended HKFRSs have been
published but are not yet effective, and have not been adopted

early by the Group.

HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 12

Amendments to HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKFRS 37

Amendments to HKFRSs

Insurance Contracts and related
amendments?

Reference to the Conceptual
Framework*

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?

Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions beyond 30 June
2021°

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current and
related amendments to Hong
Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)2

Disclosure of Accounting Policies?

Definition of Accounting
Estimates?

Deferred Tax related to Assets
and Liabilities arising from a
Single Transaction?

Property, Plant and Equipment —
Proceeds before Intended Use!

Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract!

Annual Improvements to HKFRS
Standards 2018-2020!
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED HKFRSs

(Continued)
Issued but not yet effective HKFRSs (Continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2022.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023.

3 Effective date to be determined.

4 Effective for business combination for which the acquisition is on

or after the beginning of the first annual period beginning on or
after 1 January 2022.
5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2021.

The directors anticipate that all of the new and amended
HKFRSs will be adopted in the Group’s accounting policy for
the first period beginning on or after the effective date of the
new and amended HKFRSs. These new and amended HKFRSs
are not expected to have a material impact on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

Estimation uncertainty

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are discussed below:
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

Estimation of uncertainty (Continued)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment, investment
properties and right-of-use assets

ltems of property, plant and equipment (note 16), investment
properties (note 15) and right-of-use assets (note 14) are
tested for impairment if there is any indication that the carrying
value of these assets may not be recoverable and the assets
are subject to an impairment loss. This process requires
management’s estimate of future cash flows generated by each
CGU. For any instance where this evaluation process indicates
impairment, the relevant asset’s carrying amount is written
down to the recoverable amount and the amount of the write-
down is charged against the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. During the year ended 31 December
2021, reversal of impairment loss of RMB5,249,000 (2020
impairment loss: RMB55,377,000) and RMB6,421,000
(2020 impairment loss: RMB20,000,000) was recognised on
property, plant and equipment and investment properties,
respectively. No impairment loss was recognised for right-of-
use assets during the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020:
nil).

The Group has determined the impairment loss of property,
plant and equipment and investment properties based on
recoverable amount of the CGUs with property, plant and
equipment and investment properties allocated respectively.
The Group has identified wigs, clothing and others as two
CGUs.

(a) Wigs, clothing and others

The recoverable amounts of both CGUs have been
determined based on value in use calculations, which
use cashflow forecast available as at 31 December
2021. Fair value less costs of disposal is not used as the
management considered that it will not be possible to
measure fair value less costs of disposal of each CGU
because there is no basis for making a reliable estimate
of the price. These cashflow forecasts are derived
from the approved business plan which has a forecast
covering a period of five years.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

Estimation of uncertainty (Continued)
Impairment of property, plant and equipment, investment
properties and right-of-use assets (Continued)
(a) Wigs, clothing and others (Continued)
The key assumptions used in the value in use
calculations on both CGUs are as follows:

- The sales growth rate assumptions are based on
management estimates and expectations of current
market conditions.

- The utilisation rate of the production line represents
the forecast projections in the business plan.

- The cash flow projections are discounted using a
discount rate. The discount rates reflect the current
market assessments of the time value of money
and are based on the estimated cost of capital and
adjusted for lack of marketability.

- A terminal growth rate has been used in estimating
cash flows beyond a period of five years.

The discount rate is considered as the key unobservable
input, an increase in the discount rate would decrease
the recoverable value of the corresponding CGU. As at
31 December 2021, it is estimated that with all other
variables held constant, an 1% increase in discount rate
would have decrease the recoverable amounts of wigs
CGU and clothing and others CGU by RMB1,000,000
and RMB9,000,000 (2020: RMB3,000,000 and
RMB&,000,000) and increase the Group’s loss for
the year by RMB850,000 and RMB7,650,000 (2020:
RMB2,250,000 and RMB6,800,000) respectively.

(b) Leasing of factory premises
The recoverable amounts of the leasing of factory
premise CGU have been determined based on fair value
of factories premises held for rental income purpose.
Details of fair value measurement and key assumptions,
are described in note 15.

o B U 5 e A W R
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

Estimation of uncertainty (Continued)

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories (note 20) is based on
estimated selling price less any estimated costs to be incurred
to completion and disposal with reference to prevailing market
information. These estimates are based on the current market
condition and the historical experience in selling goods of
similar nature. It could change significantly as a result of
changes in market conditions. The Group reassesses the
estimation at the end of each reporting period. During the
year ended 31 December 2021, there was no written down of
inventories to net realisable value (2020: nil).

Estimation of impairment of trade and other receivables and net
investment in leases within the scope of ECL

The Group makes ECL allowances on trade and other
receivables and net investment in leases subject to ECL based
on assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates.
The Group uses judgement in making these assumptions and
selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on
the Group’s past history, existing market conditions as well
as forward-looking estimates at the end of each reporting
period as set out in note 2.9. As at 31 December 2021, the
aggregate carrying amounts of trade and other receivables and
net investment in leases amounted to RMB47,788,000 (2020:
RMB67,639,000) (net of ECL allowance of RMB19,355,000
(2020: RMB696,000)) and RMB16,152,000 (2020:
RMB9,775,000) (net of ECL allowance of RMB436,000 (2020:
RMB324,000)), respectively.

When the actual future cash flows are different from expected,
such difference will impact the carrying amount of trade
receivables and other items within the scope of ECL under
HKFRS 9 and credit losses in the periods in which such
estimate has been changed.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

Estimation of uncertainty (Continued)

Research and development activities

Careful judgement by the Group’s management is applied when
deciding whether the recognition requirements for development
costs have been met. This is necessary as the economic
success of any product development is uncertain and may be
subject to future technical problems at the time of recognition.
Judgements are based on the best information available at
each reporting date. In addition, all internal activities related
to the research and development of new software, products
or know how are continuously monitored by the Group’s
management.

Critical judgement

Determination of discount rate of lease liabilities

In determining the discount rate, the Group has exercised
considerable judgement in relation to determining the discount
rate taking into account the nature of the underlying assets,
the terms and conditions of the leases, at the commencement
date.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The executive directors of the Company, being the chief
operating decision maker, have identified the Group’s three
product and service lines as reportable segments as further
described in note 2.22.

These operating segments are monitored and strategic
decisions are made on the basis of adjusted segment operating
results.

Segment results represented operating results of each
reportable segment without allocation of finance costs (excluded
finance charges on lease liabilities), bank interest income, loss
on disposal of property, plant and equipment gain on disposal
of a subsidiary, share of loss of associates, unallocated other
operating income, unallocated corporate expenses, and income
tax credit. All assets are allocated to reportable segments
other than bank balances and cash, financial asset at FVTPL,
interests in associates and other corporate assets which are not
directly attributable to the business activities of any reportable
segments. All liabilities are allocated to reportable segments
other than corporate liabilities which are not directly attributable
to the business activities of any reportable segments.
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5. SEEHE =)
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results T AEREBIZEE R 28R EBE HH
by operating and reportable segments: W R EEN DT

Year ended 31 December 2021
BE-_E-_—$+-A=1+—HL=EE

Leasing of

Clothing factory
Wigs and others premises Total
B% KRERHfM REHE 5t

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMTFT ARBTT AR¥TFT AREBTT

Revenue from external customers

Segment results

Finance costs (excluded finance
charges on lease liabilities)

Bank interest income

Loss on disposal of property, plant
and equipment

Share of loss of associates

Gain from disposal of a subsidiary

Fair value loss on financial asset at
FVTPL

Unallocated income

Unallocated expenses

Loss before income tax
Income tax credit

Loss for the year

Other segment items

Depreciation and amortisation

(Reversal of impairment loss)/
impairment loss on property,
plant and equipment

Reversal of Impairment loss on
investment properties

Capital expenditure

ECL allowance on trade receivables

ECL allowance on net investment
in leases

KRB INERE P AU 39,263 202,949 - 242,212
APEBER (2,470) 18,917 4,824 21,271
BERA(TREREEME
IRARR) (4,086)
RAFIBIN 161
HENE - BERRENE
b=l (1,335)
S ATRA (35)
i — P 2 A Bl 1,030
BATBEH BN SR
EEYATEER (949)
RED WA 15,898
REHEBIX (49,805)
B ERAIEE (17,850)
FERES 433
EAER (17,417)
A HBEA
W& R 5,803 19,359 13,356 38,518
W% - BE RS GLES
IBRE),/RIEEE
4,999 (905) (9,343) (5,249)
LAY RO REERD
- - (6,421) (6,421)
EARY 4,078 21,749 9,959 35,786
B BRI
BRE 3,629 15,030 - 18,659
AEREFENEREES
BEE - - 112 112
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5. SEEHE =)
Year ended 31 December 2020
BE_Z-TFE+-_A=+—-BItEE
Leasing of
Clothing factory
Wigs and others premises Total
RE REREM BEHEE @t
RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000
ANREFr AREFT AREFT AREFT
Revenue from external customers 2R B 9MBE P AU 75,548 179,704 - 255,252
Segment results HEEE (16,918) 9,819 (32,321) (39,420)
Finance costs (excluded finance ~ BIERKA (TREREAEE
charges on lease liabilities) ZREER) (6,489)
Bank interest income RITHFEMWA 218
Loss on disposal of property, TEME BERZEN
plant and equipment [ (173)
Unallocated income REEH LA 11,477
Unallocated expenses REDEFRZ (46,804)
Loss before income tax BRFTISHIBIE 1B (81,191)
Income tax credit TS KR 12,754
Loss for the year FRER (68,437)
Other segment items Hti58EE
Depreciation and amortisation W& R 9,985 16,627 9,595 36,207
Provision of impairment loss on ME - BELZBOREES
property, plant and equipment B 26,624 19,980 8,773 55,377
Impairment loss on investment REVMENRESE
properties - - 20,000 20,000
Capital expenditure ¥R 52 104 14,156 14,312
ECL allowance on trade receivables & 5 B IBH AL EEE
BEE 54 472 - 526
ECL allowance on netinvestment &R EFENAHEEES
in leases B - - 324 324
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5. SWBEHR 2

As at 31 December 2021
R-B-—%+-fA=+-H

Leasing of

Clothing factory
Wigs and others premises  Unallocated Total
R BREREfM REHE *ESE st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARETT AR¥TT
Reportable segment assets 2HHT 29,389 188,654 109,028 160,081 487,152
Reportable segment liabilities 2,183 14,264 12,479 93,686 122,612

As at 31 December 2020
R-B-TE+-A=+—-8

Leasing of

Clothing factory
Wigs and others premises  Unallocated Total
BE REREM BEHE REHE @it
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
ARETFT AREFT AREFr AREFT AREFrT
Reportable segment assets Z2HN 66,647 202,583 94,461 96,421 460,112
Reportable segment liabilities 4,766 7,943 9,433 86,442 108,584
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5. SEEHE =)

Geographical information kg

Information about the Group’s revenue by geographical EHEINSEFECEMAEBEBERAE
locations presented based on the area or country in which the IR IRA B E D AREBIREHE R -

external customer is operated.

2021 2020
% —ZT-TF
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®FT ARET T

PRC (place of domicile) AR (AR EE D) 30,365 13,819
United States EH 162,412 87,206
Germany == 610 6,667
United Kingdom HE 6,216 11,782
Australia SEM 2,469 15,760
Holland 17 7 5,021 14,376
Japan HAR 11,900 39,061
Brazil [y} - 10,791
Israel PR 238 7,857
South Korea [EEE = 8,961
Greece % 1,278 6,925
Others Ef 21,703 32,047
211,847 241,433
242,212 255,252
The Group’s non-current assets, other than net investment in AEERERBEE (TREHEREFE -
leases, financial asset at fair value through profit or loss and BAFEFABENCREE NEERIE
deferred tax assets, are substantially located in the PRC. BE)HRIBOMUATE -
Information about major customers FREEEFHEH
During the year ended 31 December 2021, RMB83,680,000 or REBEEZZ-_—F+_A=1+—HLFE"
35% (2020: RMB28,115,000 or 11%) of the Group’s revenue AEEKRE—RE—"XEFHBEAOAR
was derived from a single customer of the Group. #83,680,000L835% (ZE T F : AR

#28,115,0007T3k 11%) °

As at 31 December 2021, 29% (2020: 18%) of the Group’s RZE-_—F+_A=+—8 A&£EHESH
trade receivables was due from this customer. R IER) 29% (—FE —FF : 18%) AEW
RBRPEZIE -
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6. REVENUE I &=
The Group’s principal activities are disclosed in note 1 to the REBRNETEEBEENGS I B REKH
consolidated financial statements. Revenue of the Group is the Fle REBMWRAKEZSEKNINE
revenue from these activities and represents the net invoiced NIECEERBEEE-
value of goods sold.
The Group’s revenue recognised during the year is as follows: AEBERNDERZWENT -
2021 2020
% —TFF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ABR¥TT AREFIT
Wigs s 39,263 75,548
Clothing and others Bl & E b 202,949 179,704
242,212 255,252
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers HEENSHEESSSE

The Group’s revenue from sales of wigs, clothing and others
are recognised at a point in time. The Group’s contracts with
customers usually have original expected duration of one year
or less. Revenue from major product and service lines are as

AEBKARE  REMEMBESWERE
— (AR EHER - AREREFHAHO R
RE-FIUANRBHRFEDR - TEER

YT ES IR 6y U

follow:
2021 2020
—EZ—% —EEHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR ¥TFiT AREFor
Contract Manufacturing Services business & #IBEREETR
Cosplay costumes £ 1) & R & 162,040 58,202
Cosplay wigs At ERE 32,090 57,332
Sexy lingerie R 7K 5,422 45,136
Others Efh 912 6,738
200,464 167,408
Original Brand Manufacturing business FREREES
Cosplay costumes AEHERM 24,747 49,184
Cosplay wigs A ERE 7,173 18,216
Sexy lingerie (ERANEIY 7,701 19,256
Others HAih 2,127 1,188
41,748 87,844
242,212 255,252
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OTHER INCOME B —
2021 2020

o —ToTF

RMB'000 RMB'000

AR¥TT AEETT

Bank interest income RITH EHA 161 218
Government grant (note) BT B (B AE) 1,081 3,100
Rental income from operating leases of WEREmaERE 2 He /A

plant and machineries

— Lease payments that are fixed — BEFEHEMNK 1,456 1,645
Rental income from operating leases of KEYERKLLEHEZHS WA

investment properties

— Lease payments that are fixed — BEHEENK 2,860 2,650
Income relating to net investment in leases A& & & F 58U A
— Finance lease income — BEEERA 616 1,129
Subcontracting income D EUA 1,787 1,019
Utility income NHEBEREWRA 3,810 1,795
Gain on recognition of net investment BREEREFE 2 WE
in leases 4,246 2,807
Gain on disposal of financial HEZATEFABENSRERE
asset at FVTPL olE 2,835 -
Others H b 682 5
19,534 14,368
Note: The Group was entitled to receive (1) subsidies from the Bat AEBMAREKEQ)EHBRTHFARNRES
local government authorities for Research and development HAEMNIEZEBIRENHED RO BEEHM
activities conducted in Yiwu and (2) specific funds in the Yichun FEMNEFES -
Development Zone.
FINANCE COSTS 8. MERE
2021 2020
% —T_FF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR#FiT AREFr
Interest on bank and other short term RITREMEGHEER B
borrowings 4,086 6,489
Finance charges on lease liabilities HEBE L REER 455 215

4,541 6,704

ANNUALREPORT2021 —2——4g4p 113



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

f B S 255 A PR

9. LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX 9. RIERAEGE
Loss before income tax is arrived at after (crediting)/charging: BATESFRATEER GIA) /BRI TEIE
BET -
2021 2020
—E-—% —T-FF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR&TFir ANREFr
Auditors’ remuneration 1% 85 B 37 B 1,283 983
Cost of inventories recognised as ERERIMFEKA
an expense 114,954 142,004
Depreciation e
— Property, plant and equipment — W BWENE&E 31,697 33,328
— Investment properties — KEYE 3,437 1,665
— Right-of-use assets —REEE 200 651
Amortisation of trademark P A Y 5 3,184 63
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEWE - WEREEBERNEE
equipment 1,335 173
(Reversal of impairment loss)/impairment  #1% - BE M2 #HH CREREED)
loss on property, plant and equipment, JRBEE IR R
net (5,249) 55,377
(Reversal of impairment loss)/impairment & WM CREEERERE) RE
loss on investment properties &5 18 (6,421) 20,000
Lease payments not included in the WHEMNAHESEFTEMNHENRE
measurement of lease liabilities 64 75
Income relating to net investment in leases FA &% & F5IEE WA (616) (1,129)
Fair value loss/(gain) on financial asset at  ZAFEFFABRZHNSREEN D
FVTPL (note(b)) FEEE (Wa) (K5 b) 949 (3,913)
ECL allowance on trade receivables BRI TEREEREEEE 18,659 526
ECL allowance on net investment in leases A& & FEEMTBHIEEEEEE 112 324
Exchange loss, net PE 5 B8 558 1,732 6,666
Research and development cost i 3 B A 21,602 18,639
Government grant BT B (1,081) (3,100)
Staff costs 8 TR
— Salaries, allowances and other benefits ~— — &4 ~ 8L & EfEF 66,369 52,995
— Contributions to defined contribution — REHEFCERRET B H R
retirement plans (note (a)) (K7t (a) 4,092 2,983
70,461 55,978

Note (a): The Group was entitled to be exempted from certain
contributions to defined contribution retirement plans from
the local government authority in the PRC for the year ended
31 December 2020. During the year ended 31 December
2021, no forfeited contribution under the Plans is available
to offset the future contributions or reduce the existing and
future levels of contributions (2020: Nil).

Hiia) NEBRBE_ZE-_EF+_F=+—
BILFE  EhEE BRI EH
ETTHEERTEEREER - REZE
B+ -A=+—HIEE I
AT 5 BT B2 Ut 3k A] B A EE R
) BRSO D IR BRI FOK T

SEITE T .
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9. LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX (continued) 9. MRFTERAER 2
Note (b): On 1 February 2021, the Company entered into a Kiagmb) R—ZEZ—F-_A—8 ANARHEMHZ
Cooperation Agreement with two independent third parties to B E=FRILAERZE - KRYI)
establish Shenzhen Xiaomanshuibei Jewelry Supplay Chain mAKBRBHREEAER AR ([mK
Co., Ltd (“Xiaomanshuibei”), a limited company established Bl EAE—ZFREFPBERINERE
in the PRC. The Company has contributed RMB1,000,000 FRAE - AABR/NHKELEARKE
to Xiaomanshuibei, and holds 10% of equity interest. 1,000,000 7T * W #FH 10% A AE  /Nmk
Xiaomanshuibei was deregistered on 31 December 2021. BERZZE-_—F+-_A=+—HH#H
s
The Company accounted for the unlisted equity investment RAFEIE L TRIEREERIZATE
as financial asset at fair value through profit or loss, with the FABRNESREEAR  #AFEE
change in fair value recorded in profit or loss. EIEIPN=E
10. INCOME TAX CREDIT 10. FRARRIESR
No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as the REBEZE_TE-_—F+_A=1T—HILFE "
Group had no assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during HRAEEREBTEEELRRTRF @ 18
the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: nil). WEHFEENESRIELREANREE(ZEZ
F|) o
The provision for PRC enterprise income tax has been PREMCEMSHOBEEZTFRENEB QAN
provided at the applicable tax rate of 25% (2020: 25%) on the JERBEMERR R 25% HE (Z T T4 :
assessable profits of the PRC subsidiaries. 25%) ©
2021 2020
2% —EEHF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TFT AR TT

Current tax EHRE

Current year — PRC enterprise income tax =~ ANFE — R B D EFFSH 288 25
Deferred tax (note 24) IRIERLIE (H a2 24) (721) (12,779)
Income tax credit Frisfik e (433) (12,754)
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10. INCOME TAX CREDIT (continued)

10. A RIBR 2

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Enterprise
Income Tax (the “EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of
the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25%. From
December 2020 onwards, Partytime Group, Yiwu Partytime
and Yiwu Styler were accredited as “High and New Technology
Enterprise” in the PRC, and subject to a concessionary tax rate
of 15% for three years in accordance with the EIT Law.

The difference between the actual income tax charge
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income and the amounts which would result
from applying the enacted tax rate to profit before income tax

REFEARKMBEEEMRESHRE (X
PRISBUE]) REEMBPOAEEED - E
B R BAR D% HEEH - B —FT_FF
ToAE REXEEE EESRELES
HEERAATESHRMEE] IR
BEEMBHEZZ=FF 15% HEERE

FERalHEMEZERERNERMER
5 52 B2 3 Bk P 15 798 A1 ) 8 R R TE TR K AT
SRR ZEHERNAT ¢

can be reconciled as follows:

2021 2020

2% —EEHF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ABRBTFIT ARBFr

Loss before income tax Br TS BRI E 1B (17,850) (81,191)
Tax on loss before income tax, calculated & FT 5% A B 1B R FE 1B (32 25% K

at the rate of 25% (2020: 25%) MEFE)(ZE=FTF : 25%) (4,462) (20,298)

Tax effects of: NWTEBENRBEE

— Non-deductible expenses — Naf MR A 2,603 4,293

— Non-taxable income — HAERBIA (3,032) (983)

— Additional allowance (note) — REONEAE (B L) (4,594) (3,443)

— Concessionary tax rate — BEEHE (490) (17)

Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AERRIBERZHBZE 9,542 7,694

Income tax credit FTiSfiik e (433) (12,754)

Note: According to the relevant laws and regulations promulgated by
the State Administration of Taxation of the PRC, enterprises
engaging in research and development activities are entitled to
claim 200% (2020: 175%) of their research and development
expenses incurred as tax deductible expenses when determining
their assessable profits for the year.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had total tax losses of
approximately RMB38,168,000 (2020: RMB30,778,000)
that are available to carry forward for 5 years for offsetting
against future taxable profits of the companies in which the
losses arose. No deferred tax asset has been recognised due
to unpredictability of future profits stream. The Group did not
have any other significant unrecognised deferred tax assets or
liabilities (2020: nil).

e REH BB RS R BRGNERERER
ERORERABETINCEEETFERE
R BREREEELNTERF
X H200% (Z B ZFF : 175%) bl B Al K
BRI °

R-E-—F+-_A=+—H AEBEH
TE 518 AR #38,168,0007T (Z T — B4 :
AR 30,778,000 7T) A 458 1 F IF A IK
HWELEBBARZARERTGEF - ARX
BETERI AR RH AR - I B RIRERIAE
B o AEEIWEEME M E X RERAIEL
HREEEXREBGB(ZE_ZF M) o
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11. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ . EEREETHRARHFHRER
EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID e AL
INDIVIDUALS

11.1 Directors’ and Chief Executives’ emoluments M1 EEREETHRARBFM
Remuneration of the directors disclosed pursuant to the Listing EEMeRELETMAL FEERAIKHE
Rules, section 383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance 3B KR AR (RBEESFZER) HOIFE
and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about QEBWEEMAT ¢

Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

Year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z_—S+-A=+—HILEE

Salaries,
allowances Retirement
and benefits scheme
Fees in kind  contributions Total
Fa R2MR H:2 38
e EmiEs = #Et

RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT AR¥TT

Executive directors: WITES -

Mr. Ma Chi Kwan (Note a) BEHEE (Hita) 299 - 15 314

Mr. Xu Chengwu R EAE 354 - 6 360

Ms. Chen Sheng BRIt 270 - 6 276

Independent non-executive BUFNTES:

directors:

Mr. Chen Wen Hua BRSCEES A 100 - - 100

Ms. Peng Xu [ 100 - — 100

Mr. Zheng Jin Min BEMEE 100 - - 100
1,223 - 27 1,250
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11. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ 1. EFEREETHARHFHR LR
EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID BEEFMALe®
INDIVIDUALS (continued)
11.1 Directors’ and Chief Executives’ emoluments (Continued) NMI1IESERESTBRARBHFM &)
Year ended 31 December 2020
HE-_Z-_ZE+-_A=+—HIFE
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
and benefits scheme
Fees inkind  contributions Total
e EER N
e EWEF H® BT
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT
Executive directors: WITEE:
Mr. Lin Xin Fu (Note b) MRS (Hfatb) 207 267 - 474
Mr. Ma Chi Kwan SEHTE 320 - 16 336
Mr. Phen Chun Shing WIS E (Hitc)
(Note c) 97 - 5 102
Mr. Xu Chengwu (Note d) WRRSTE (Hitd) 120 134 - 254
Ms. Chen Sheng (Note e) BRFt 2+ (ffite) 184 - - 184

Independent non-executive BIUFNTES:

directors:

Mr. Chen Wen Hua BRSCEESE 107 - - 107

Ms. Peng Xu PRt 107 - - 107

Mr. Zheng Jin Min BERELE 107 - - 107
1,249 401 21 1,671

Notes: Htat -

(@)  Resigned on 31 December 2021. (@) MN-ETE-_—F+-_A=+—HEF-

(b)  Resigned on 9 October 2020. (b)) RZZEZZTF+AIHBEE-

(c)  Resigned on 3 April 2020. () RZE-_ZFWNMA=HHT-

(d)  Appointed on 3 April 2020. (d) RZZEZZTFWUMA=-—HEZT-

(e)  Re-designated as executive director and chairlady of the board (&) RZZEZZEF+ANBRAEAHTESEK

of Directors on 9 October 2020. EEEXE -
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11. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ 1. EFEREETHARHFHR LR
EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID BEEFMALe®
INDIVIDUALS (continued)
11.2 Five highest paid individuals NM2aigEsiMAL
The five highest paid individuals of the Group include one AEEREE T -_—F+=-_A=+—H
director (2020: two director) for the year ended 31 December FFENRAEEsFMALIRE R (ZE
2021, whose emoluments are disclosed in note 11.1. The TEF WMRB)EE BENHFIHEENW
aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the remaining four Flll - BFHEgp TR (Z2EZFF : =8)
(2020: three) individuals are as follows: ANTHEMRENT
2021 2020
% —EEF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TT AR TFT

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ¥4 2RI R EWE T 1,925 2,106

Retirement scheme contributions RIRET B 5R 32 18
1,957 2,124

The above individuals’ emoluments are within the following L ATHFHEL TEHE -

bands:

Number of individuals

A
2021 2020
—E-—% —E-TF
HK$ nil to HK$1,000,000 =% £ 1,000,0007% 7T 8 2
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7 7t 2= 1,500,000 7T 1 1
4 3
No directors or the five highest paid individuals received any REBEE-_ZE-_—F+-_A=+—BLFE
emoluments from the Group as an inducement to join or upon N-EEdAAEasMALTHER TSR
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office during WEERIENE - 1EAIIAARSE B 2R AL
the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: nil). No directors or EERNRSRERMBHE (T _ZF
the five highest paid individuals have waived or agreed to waive | REZE-_T_—F+_HA=+—HLt
any emoluments during the year ended 31 December 2021 FEAN EFL OB E=m T MA T ENRE
(2020: nil). FREBEREEMHE (ZE_ZF : &) -
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12. DIVIDENDS 12. B2
No dividend was paid or proposed during 2021 nor has any RZEBZ—FRNET A REZRRAER
dividend been proposed since the end of the reporting period [ 8 - BEREHRUK - IMEEZHIRMAE
(2020: nil). MRE(ZT_TF &) o

13. LOSS PER SHARE 13. BREGIR
The calculation of basic loss per share is based on the loss Hﬁ%%")@ﬂéﬁﬂﬁﬁﬂﬁ*’Z-E#ﬁﬁ/\f
for the year attributable to equity holders of the Company of HERNEBARE17,72200T (ZE =
RMB17,722,000 (2020: RMB68,437,000) and the weighted F: AR¥68437,00070) KEBEZT = —
average 993,152,000 (2020: 897,723,000) ordinary shares in F+-A=+—HLEFER E???TT 3 I
issue during the years ended 31 December 2021. hn#E S 15 £0993,152,000/% (— T — T4 :

897,723,000 %) & @MAXETH -

No diluted loss per share has been presented for the year TEZ2INEE T -_—F+_-_A=+—H
ended 31 December 2021 as there was no dilutive share IFFEMNEREEEE  BRFAILMIET
outstanding during the year (2020: nil). EIMEBERERN(ZETF - &)

14. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 14. EHESE

Other properties

Prepaid land leased for
lease payments own use Total
FftLi HEBHD
HERE Hfti o H
RMB000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT AREFT
Carrying amount as at N\ZE=FF—H—B2Z
1 January 2020 BREIE 10,211 786 10,997
Depreciation weE (239) (412) (651)
Transfer to investment properties ~ ERE TR &Y%
(note 15) (Hfzt15) (714) (374) (1,088)
Carrying amount as at RZEZTF+=A
31 December 2020 —t+—HZEHEE 9,258 - 9,258
Carrying amount as at RZTFE——F—H—B2
1 January 2021 REE 9,258 - 9,258
Depreciation e (200) - (200)
Transfer to investment properties — EREFIRE Y%
(note 15) (Htet15) (1,124) - (1,124)
Carrying amount as at W-E-—%$+ZA
31 December 2021 =+—HZEmEE 7,934 - 7,934
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14. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued)

15.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

14.

The right-of-use assets represent prepaid land lease payments
in relation to the leasehold land is situated in the PRC and held

under a medium term lease.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s right-of-use assets
amounting to RMB5,637,000 (2020: RMB6,922,000) were

pledged to secure bank loans (note 29).

o B U 5 e A W R

FHESE &
EREAERNRPR Y BE it A
i ESIE - kR ERALEE .

R-ZE-—F+-_A=+—80 KEBENE
RiEEEARES637,000T(Z 8 -8F
AR 6,922,00070) EEH#H - LUESIRITE
R (Fi3E29) o

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 15. BREYXE
2021 2020
—E-—% T T4
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR &FiT AREFT
Investment properties "EEE 78,131 58,915

Changes to the carrying amounts presented in the consolidated

REEMBMRRKR2I 2 REEZ BB

statement of financial position can be summarised as follows: wmr
2021 2020
% —ET-TF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR %TiT ARETF T
Carrying amount at 1 January R—HA—BZEEE 58,915 20,754
Addition NE 9,593 10,893
Transferred from right-of-use assets BEREEEEA (Mitl4)
(note 14) 1,124 1,088
Transferred from property, plant and B WEREEEA (Wi 16)
equipment (note 16) 15,108 59,112
Depreciation e (3,437) (1,665)
Transferred to net investment in leases EATRERE T (9,593) (11,267)
Reversal of impairment loss/(impairment ~ SR{EEE & CR{EEE)
loss) 6,421 (20,000)
Carrying amount at 31 December RT+-A=+—HBZ2EAEE 78,131 58,915
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15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 15. MBEME )

2021 2020

—E_—F —E-ETF

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥TFIT ANREFoT

Cost AN 115,692 99,460
Accumulated depreciation and impairment 2+ € &IRE (37,561) (40,545)
Carrying amount BREE 78,131 58915

At 31 December 2021, the fair value of the Group’s investment
properties, determined using income approach, which
also representing the recoverable amounts of the leasing
of factory premises CGU was RMB102,184,000 (2020:
RMB8&3,700,000). The fair value as at 31 December 2021
has been arrived based on a valuation carried out by an
independent, professional qualified valuer Graval Consulting
Limited. The reversal of impairment loss of RMB6,421,000
(2020: impairment loss of RMB20,000,000) was determined
by comparing carrying amounts of the investment properties,
together with the relevant leasehold improvement (note
16), to the above fair value as at 31 December 2021. The
management estimated the recoverable amounts and
recognised relevant reversal of impairment loss as a result of
the increased rental value in 2021.

The fair values of the Group’s investment properties are
categorised under Level 3 fair value hierarchy and determined
using income approach which capitalises the estimated rental
income stream, net of projected operating costs, using a
discount rate derived from market yields implied by recent
transactions in similar properties. When actual rent differs
materially from the estimated rents, adjustments have been
made to the estimated rental value.

RZZE-—F+=-—A=+—H A&EEEL
EWMEZNFEFERBWRAKEET  INE
FMEHERSEALABUMNIKRESE) &
}\E%@%1021840007z(_7_7¢ AR
#83,700,0007T) c RZZE-_—F+ A
Tt BZAFEDNERNBYZEGERMS
EEEBEBMABRARMITZ(GEEE - BE
B RO A R#6,421,000 L (ZE-FF ¢
B E 18 A R 20,000,0007T) J5 45 i@ 5 1%
EMECEMENRABREDEEE (F
F16)HE MR T —F+_A=+—H
ZAVFEEERMEET -EEERE_Z
Z—FNHEe EA MG RE S5 &g
PRI ERIBER -

AEBREVEZAFEIBERF=MA
FEFA {EFHHSZ)\/XFE B{E AU
FOPR OB RERFHOBRE - Y
fE%’ﬁH@H&U\/M’Eé“$1E IR TR &
A - HERESEGEFHESHRENER -
AE A ESEL AR -
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15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

The most significant inputs, all of which are unobservable, are
the estimated rental value and the discount rate. The estimated
rental value and discount rate are RMB13-RMB15 (2020:
RMB12-RMB15) per square meter and 6%-6.5% (2020:
6%—6.5%) as at year ended 31 December 2021 respectively.
The estimated fair value increases if the estimated rental
value increases or if discount rate (market yields) decline. The
overall valuations are sensitive to all assumptions. Management
considers the range of reasonably possible alternative
assumptions is the greatest for rental values and that there is
an interrelationship between these inputs.

The investment properties represent self-owned factory
premises held under medium term leasehold land located in
the PRC and are depreciated on a straight-line bases over the
term of the lease.

As at 31 December 2021, bank loans (note 29) are secured by
investment properties with a carrying value of RMB31,164,000
(2020: RMB24,430,000).

As at 31 December 2021, right-of-use assets that presented
within investment properties with a carrying amount value of
RMB2,748,000 (2020: RMB1,610,000).

o B U 5 e A W R

15. ¥EME»)

BEEABASE (BATUHEER) AT
HeERBBEE - REE-ZE-_—F+=A
=+—HLFE GHiHeeBEIUEERS
AAEGFETKAREIBTEAREIST (=
ToTFEARBEDRTEAREIST) &
6.0%E65%(—E-TF :60%%E65%) °
i B G e ek BB X (MB W K)
TR B AFESEN - EREBEYHE
SRR EEERATHESNAEAEER
BENBEAZA  MZEHABIE BT
EARRE -

BREVMERETEAUATBBEOFRENESR
BE - WIRHEHABERENTE -

RZE-_—F+_A=+—08 R RITEH(
F129) UBREE M A R¥31,164,000 T (=
T F AR®24,430,0007T) 218 E Y
EEHEA -

RZBEZ—F+ZA=+—H RREY
X2V ERREEZCREERAARRE
2,748,000 (ZE=FF : AR¥ 1,610,000
JT) e
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16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

16. MK - WE R s

Plant and Motor  Furniture and Leasehold  Construction
Buildings  machineries vehicles equipment  improvement in progress Total
HENE
#F RERER RE BARRE BE  ERIR @4
RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 00O RMBOOO RMBO0OO RMBO0OO RMBOOO
NREFT NEEFT AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT
Cost EE*
Asat 1 January 2020 “Z-ZE-f-H 210,213 35,929 3,690 5,127 145,745 19672 480376
Additions fﬁ - - 157 - 202 3,060 3419
Transfer #z 70,580 520 - - 11,632 (82,732) -
Transfer to investment ERERENEW15)

properties (note 15) (59,380) - - - - - (59,380)
Disposals i - (986) - (138) - - (1,124)
Asat31December 2020  WZZ-EFEF-A=+-H 21413 35,463 3847 4,989 157,579 - 423291
Asat 1 January 2021 E/‘ T-—-%-f-H 221413 35,463 3847 4,989 157,579 - 423291
Additions NE 6,608 1,701 625 2 3,022 - 11,988
Additions through acquisition ﬁd&ﬁ%WE ARE

of subsidiaries (note 36) (Wit 36) - - 77 70 - - 147
Transfer to investment B T CUEEID)

properties (note 15) (19959) - - - - - (19.959)
Disposal of a subsidiary mE-RHERR M2

(note 37) - (461) (844) (346) - - (1,651)
Disposals fe - (7,055) (103) 27) - - (7,185)
As at 31 December 2021 W-8--%+-B=+-H 208,062 29,648 3,602 4718 160,601 - 406,631
Accumulated depreciation and Rt E R A {E

impairment
Asat 1 January 2020 “Z-ZE-f-H 34,860 15,457 2,686 3633 60,875 - 117511
Charge for the year Eﬁﬁiﬁ 5,164 3015 330 531 24,788 - 33828
Transfer to investment ERERENEWit15)

properties (note 15) (268) - - - - - (268)
Written back on disposal A EBEE - (735) - (129) - - (864)
Impairment loss HEBE 36,279 1,676 201 198 17,023 - 55377
Asat31 December2020  W-T-TE+-A=1-H 76,035 19413 3217 4,233 102,686 - 205,584
Asat 1 January 2021 e g 76,035 19,413 3217 4233 102,686 - 205,584
Charge for the year EREH 6,552 2372 191 332 22250 - 31,697
Transfer to investment BRERENE (W)

properties (note 15) (4,851) - - - - - (4,851)
Disposal of a subsidiary nE-EMBARMZ)

(note 37) - (388) (717) (220) - - (1,325)
Written back on disposal ~~ FNHEBEE - (3,363) (98) (25) - - (3.486)
Impairment loss/(reversal of B/ (Bl EE1E

impairment loss) #E) 986 (132) (7) 21) (6,075) - (5,249)
As at 31 December 2021 AZBZ-5+ZRA=+-H 18,122 17,902 2,586 4299 118,861 - 222,310
Net book amount RERE
As at 31 December 2021 A8 -%+-A=+-H 129,340 11,746 1,016 419 41,740 - 184,261
As at 31 December 2020 RZB-FF+-F=+-H 145378 16,050 630 756 54893 - 217,707
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16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s buildings amounting to
RMB76,933,000 (2020: RMB93,890,000) were pledged to the
banks to secure the bank loans granted to the Group (note 29).

Plant and machineries leased out under operating leases
The Group entered into an arrangement to lease certain plant
and machineries to a third party for a period of 5 years. There
are no early termination option, with an option to renew the
lease term at the expiry date. The Group considered that the
lease arrangement is an operating leases and the movement of
the plant and machineries are detailed as below:

f B B 5 e o W

16. 1% - BB Rl &)

F:%:—¢+_H:+—E KEBE A
R #76,933,000 (ZE_ZF : AR
93,890,0007T) MEFEE#H FIE1T - AR
BETFAEERRITER(ME29) -

REEEHEHANEER B
AEBFTE-BEAE=THBETEE M
B Z - BHISF - BIEIRATAR L 1R
B REREHEENEMER - A%
ERAZHEREA—BREENRE  BER
BB FIIMT

Plant and
machineries
BEEREBW
RMB'000
ARBFor
Cost 5% 3
As at 1 January 2020, 31 December 2020 RZEZTF—H—H ZZTZFTF
+=-—A=+—H 13,248
Disposal e (6,367)
As at 31 December 2021 n-—E_—%+-A=+—H 6,881
Depreciation e
At 1 January 2020 RZE-_ZFF—H—H 2,809
Charge for the year FAZH 1,259
As at 31 December 2020 RZE-_FF+-_A=+—H 4,068
As at 1 January 2021 RZE-_—F—HF—H 4,068
Charge for the year FAZH 1,108
Disposal fang== (2,723)
As at 31 December 2021 n-—Ee-—%+=-A=+—H 2,453
Net book amount E@E$E
As at 31 December 2021 BW-E-_—F+-HA=+—H 4,428
As at 31 December 2020 RZE-_2F+_-_A=+—H 9,180
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16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 16. R - BE R )

At 31 December 2021, the recoverable amounts of the Group’s
property, plant and equipment, determined using income
approach, attributable to wigs CGU and clothing and others
CGU were RMB18,000,000 and RMB142,000,000 (2020:
RMB48,000,000 and RMB145,000,000) respectively. The
recoverable amounts as at 31 December 2021 has been
arrived based on a value in use estimation carried out by an
independent, professional qualified valuer Roma Appraisals
Limited.

The recoverable amounts of the Group’s property, plant and
equipment are determined using income approach which
adopted the discounted cash flow method, net of future
cash outflow, using a discount rate of weighted average cost
of capital. When actual cash flow differs materially from the
estimated cash flow, adjustments have been made to the
estimated value in use.

The most significant inputs, all of which are unobservable, are
the selling price growth rate, terminal growth rate, gross profit
ratio and discount rate. The selling price growth rate, terminal
growth rate, gross profit ratio and discount rate for wigs CGU
and clothing and other CGU adopted are 1%-3% and 2%
(2020: 1%-3% and 3%), 2.2% and 2.2% (2020: 2.2% and
2.2%), 27%-29% and 30%-32% (2020: 25%-28% and
27%-32%) and 17.35% and 17.35% (2020: 16.41% and
16.41%) for the year ended 31 December 2021 respectively.
The estimated value in use increases if the estimated cash flow
increases or if discount rate (weighted average cost of capital)
decline. The management estimated the recoverable amounts
and recognised relevant impairment loss in wigs segment and
recognised relevant reversal of impairment loss in clothing and
others segment as a result of the general economic uncertainty
in wigs and sales growth in clothing and others. The overall
valuations are sensitive to all assumptions. Management
considers the range of reasonably possible alternative
assumptions is the greatest for value in use and that there is an
interrelationship between these inputs.

MN-BE-—F+-A=1+—0 A&EERE
REEABUAEREREMBCELESE
MLATREIGRME - BB K& EA R IE £ 58
(LA ACEE ) 2 5l A A R ¥ 18,000,000 7T
M AR# 142,000,000 (T2 -FF : AR
# 48,000,000 7T & A R # 145,000,0007T) ©
R-E-—F+-A=+—BRaKkE4E
HOBREB Y SEGHEMESEETEA
RAREEREEETHGHESL -

REBMME - BB KR im0 A = & 55 E
AW AL (BRAREIR &R ER) HRARK
Bamd (EREARINEFGKARREERE)
BT - HERRSAREAGFRESRHEXRE
EZR2 ABLRAFEREEELRAE -

REANGARE (ZETTEREE) &
EEEER HEEER  THEEAIA R
REEZZE_—F+_A=+T—HILFE"
RERSETENMURREREMB S E
EEBEMMEACEEBERE  REBRE .
EFEREBBEDF ABISZE3S K2% (=
T-TFEI%E3%N3%) 2.2% N 2.2%
T TF22% K22%)  27% B 29%
B30%E302% (ZE-FF : 25% £ 28% &
27% 232%) % 17.35% K 17.35% (ZE =&
F:1641% K% 16.41%)  HEFTE SR
FH ek W BH3R R (B AR 2 T A) />
BlffstFEREEE L  EHERERED
Bz —RBEOETHBARZMREREMD
RS ERMFTATKESRE - WERRE
DEHEEREBEMNERREREMD
FR MR AR IE R - A EE 2R
B ERERE  AEAIEERBREN
HEAGHEER 2 &ZAE @ WHEHE A U
BRAE -

o
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17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2021
and 2020 are as follows:

o B U 5 e A W R

17. RIBBATIZEZ
R FR_TE-_TF+_A=+—
AzEIEMBARFEBNT

Place of Issued and paid up
incorporation/ capital/Registered Equity interest
Company name establishment  Type of legal entity capital attributable to the Group  Principal activities
B/ BERTREBRE
NCEL ] B 3L 3 B ENERER #F/ gRES FREELRE IERY
2021 2020
- -%-%
Directly held
HERHE
Win Profit Enterprise Holdings BVI Limited liability company 1 share of US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
Limited ERELAHE BREADLA I\REELET KR RERK
Unlock Bound Investments ~ BVI Limited liability company 1 share of US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
Limited RERAES BREALH IREELET KR RERR
Indirectly held
HERE
Partytime Group Co., Ltd. The PRC Limited liability company RMB130,000,000 100% 100%  Manufacturing and sale of
(“Partytime Group”) cosplay costumes, cosplay
wigs and sexy lingerie and
leasing factory premises
EE L EBER A HE BREFAR AR %130,000,0007C 100% 100% ABHERS  AEHE
(DEEXLEE]) RERERARNEE
RHERBFEHE
Partytime Costume & Lingerie  The PRC Limited liability company RMB?70,000,000 100% 100%  Manufacturing and sale of
(Yiwu) Factory cosplay costumes and
(“Yiwu Partytime”) sexy lingerie and leasing
factory premises
EEMRHRHERAE  FH BREFAR AR 70,000,000 7 100% 100% ABHERSRIERAK
(E30%:0) WEEREEREEE
&
Yiwu Styler Cultural & Creative The PRC Limited liability company RMB5,000,000 - 100%  Manufacturing and sale of
Co., Ltd. (“Yiwu Styler”) (note 37) cosplay wigs and leasing
factory premises
EEMHEX(EIEAR HH BREMAT AR%5,000,0007 - 100% AGHERENEERHA
RA(ESHE]) (HaE37) ERBEEE
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17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

17. PEAGICE#E =)

Place of Issued and paid up
incorporation/ capital/Registered Equity interest
Company name establishment  Type of legal entity capital attributable to the Group  Principal activities
3010 BRTREME
NCEL ] B 3L 3 B EAERER #%/ gREs FREBERE IERH
2021 2020
—P--% _T_ZTF
China Partytime Culture Hong Kong Limited liability company 1 ordinary share 100% 100%  Investment holding and
(Hong Kong) Limited sale of cosplay costumes,
cosplay wigs and sexy
lingerie
PRSI (BE)BR  BE BREEAR 1T ER 100% 100% REZRKABHERE
AT AEHERERMER
REEEREE
Hmda Culture International ~ Hong Kong Limited liability company 100 ordinary share 15% - Trademark authorization
Co., Limited (“Hmda") (note 36) services
EXEVCEBRERRR BA BREEAR 100 E BB 75% - BERRERE
E==3:3) (H#E 36)
Huacan (Zhejiang) Culture ~ The PRC Limited liability company - 75% - Sale of trademark processed
Media Co., Ltd (note 36) costumes
40 OT) 3 g hE BREART - 75% - HEARMINRE
BRAT (i 36)
The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, FRENHEERAETEFERER AT
in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results EXBEIBUAEBEEEFEEZIEH D 2
for the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of AATIMB AT - EFRABFFHET E MM
the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the BARZENSEHRRBNILE
opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.
As at 31 December 2021, the aggregate amount of reserves RNR—ZE-—F+-_HA=+—H -\
available for distribution to the shareholders of the Company DIRKFALNADBRERNGEERABEAEAR

was RMB173,557,000 (2020: RMB152,875,000).

173,557,000 (ZE_ZTF: AR
152,875,000 7T) ©
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18.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

f B B 5 e o W

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 18. REIEAFINESR
2021 2020
—EZ—% —EEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR ¥TFiT AEETFT
Cost of investments in associates KB R R E KA 1,845 -
Share of post-acquisition profits and W R R EMEEERE -
other comprehensive loss, net of HMBRE RS
dividends received (35) -
1,810 -
The following list contains only the particulars of associates, all ITHRESHEBERRNEFS  TEZE
of which are unlisted corporate entities whose quoted market BENRHAEMSRENIELTARER
prices are not available, which in the opinion of the directors EERAZEHERNRTEFERERR
principally affected the results or net assets of the Group as at TR+ A=+ HWEENFEE -
31 December 2021.
Country/place of
Form of husiness  incorporation and Particulars of issued and % of interest Principal
Name of associate structure husiness paid up capital held activity
EMBIREEX ERTR REAHEE
RELRER LRERLE EHE R BEESEE Bl TEEH
Yunyou Smart Cultural Tourism (Zhejiang) Incorporated The PRC Contributed RMB5,000,000 as 32% Inactive
Company Ltd.**(“Zhejiang Yunyou") paid up capital (2020: Nil)
ERRENRCNT)BRAFA (DI ER ) HE & AR #5,000,0007C 3% EEER
ERBRAR (ZBZ%F: %)
Hangzhou Yunyou Smart Technology Company  Incorporated The PRC Contributed RMB900,000 as 32% Inactive
Ltd.** (“Hangzhou Yunyou") paid up capital (2020: Nil)
MMERSEREERAR (AMNER)  FHRT HE & AR 00,0007 3% BEER
ERBRAR (ZBZ%F: %)
Guizhou Yunyou Future Tourism Company Incorporated The PRC - 32% Inactive
Ltd.**(“Guizhou Yunyou") (2020: Nil)
EMNERRICURERAR(EMNER] " K HE - 32% EEEL
(ZF-%F: %)
Jinhua BaoBian Technology Company Ltd.** Incorporated The PRC Contributed RMB500,000 as 49% Inactive
paid-up capital (2020: Nil)
SEHERBBRAT Bl AY HE & AR 5000007 49% EEER
ERBRAR (ZBZZF: 3)
* Hangzhou and Guizhou Yunyou were 100% wholly owned by * MMERRENEEANIZNR2EHAE
Zhejiang Yunyou (together, the “Yunyou Group”) (ZEIEREE]D -
**  For identification purposes only o {EHER
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18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 18. W EBATIA#E ﬁ (%)
Set out below are the summarised financial information of the KA EARD A B B 75 B R R
associate which is accounted for using the equity method: ZHHWOT
(i)  Yunyou Group (i) EBEEH
2021
—E-—%
RMB’000
AR®FIT
Current assets MBNEE 4,991
Non-current assets ERBEE -
Current liabilities MEAEE 3)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE -
Net assets HEE 4,988
2021
—E-—%
RMB’000
AR®FiT
Revenue & -
Total expenses BHEY (12)
Loss before income tax BrPTIS R AT E 18 (12)
Income tax expenses FriSfiF = =
Loss after income tax BrPTISRiR B8 (12)
A reconciliation of the above summarised financial LB EERBE AN E R ER MK
information to the carrying amount of the investments in EREEMNERNEOT

Yunyou Group is set out below:

2021

RMB’000

AR TFir

Total net assets of associates N Na FEEMRSR 4,988

Proportion of ownership interests held by Group NEEFTIFHEEERALLA 32%
Carrying amount of the investments in associates REVBHmERPNREEAAINRE

in the consolidated financial statements REE 1,596
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o B U 5 e A W R

18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 18. RBIELAFTIMESR &)
(i)  Yunyou Group (Continued) (i) SEEKEE)
Yunyou Group is principally engaged in cultural tourism ENEEFEEFBEYEXIRFR
development and related project planning consultation BRABEERETERNEL  ALXE
business in PRC, is a strategic partner for development of BErEESAEUEERNEEIERMY -

the Group’s cultural products in Yiwu.

(ii) The following table illustrates the aggregate financial (i) TRIFAEEEREEZHE QR
information of the Group’s associates that are not BB S E R
individually material:

2021
RMB’000
AR¥Tir
Aggregate carrying amount of individually REMBWmEATRERNEETZHE QA
immaterial associates in the consolidated K ARRRTEE
financial statements 214
2021
RMB’000
AR T
Aggregate amounts of the Group’s share of those 7 5 [B B {5 :Z 5Bt 2 A BRI 4258 -
associates’”:
Loss for the year FAEE (31)
Total comprehensive loss for the year FAEHEEEER (31)
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19. TRADEMARK 19. B
Trademark
ik
RMB’000
ARBFIT
Cost 5%
As at 1 January 2020, 31 December 2020 and W-_ZE_ZF—HF—H "“ZE_ZF
1 January 2021 +=-A=+—HBR=-Z=Z=-—%—HF—H 500
Addition NE 12,213
As at 31 December 2021 n-—Ee_—%+-A=+—H 12,713
Accumulated amortisation RAetis
As at 1 January 2020 R-ZE_TF—H—H 437
Charge for the year FRZM 63
As at 31 December 2020 RZEZEF+=-A=+—H 500
As at 1 January 2021 RZE-_—F—H—H 500
Charge for the year FAZIM 3,184
As at 31 December 2021 n-—Ee_—%+-A=+—H 3,684
Net book amount EE$E
As at 31 December 2021 W& —%+=-A=+—H 9,029
As at 31 December 2020 RZEZEF+=ZHA=+—H -
The amortisation charge for the year is included in FREBEITHITAGEESREM2EK
“administrative and other operating expenses” on the face mEP TR EMEERTIA -

of the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.
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&6 o WA 5 i 2 B R
20. INVENTORIES 20. &8
2021 2020
—E_—%f —E-EF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FiT AREFT
Raw materials B 12,856 12,748
Work in progress T m 1,221 961
Finished goods LUK M 737 410
14,814 14,119
21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 21. ESHREMEBKRIRA
2021 2020
% —EZFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARBFT
Trade receivables BHEK®RE
— from third parties —XRBEE=H 55,826 62,307
Less: ECL allowance B TEHEEEERE (19,355) (696)
36,471 62,111
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables ##& « A HRER Xt EKHIE
Prepayments B FIE 6,033 2,402
Other tax receivables E 1t JE YRR TN 1,518 2,080
Deposits e ia 1,380 1,004
Other receivables Hfth FE YR IE 2,386 42
11,317 5,528
47,788 67,639
The Group usually requires advance deposits from its AEERFEERERPBEAIMNERS - N5
customers. Before accepting any new customer, the Group WM R AT - N E ERAEYE R EW%
applied an internal credit assessment policy to assess the BEEBEEEPHERER - EEHRBT
potential customer’s credit quality. The credit period is generally BASEOR(ZEZEF :45E60K) - @
for a period of 45 to 60 days (2020: 45 to 60 days). Overdue HEHBHeREEETHEZ BHRKR

balances are reviewed regularly by senior management. Trade EAREE °
receivables are non-interest-bearing.
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21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) 21. BSREMBIERIE 2
An aged analysis of the trade receivables, based on the invoice REZAHNE S EWGIE (IRBHEER

date and net of ECL allowance, is as follows:

JE%TE%E{%)E’JEE@%WZZDT :

2021 2020
—E-—F —F-F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®FiT AEBFr
0-30 days 26,285 9,272
31-60 days 5,821 7,752
61-90 days 155 7,781
91-365 days 4,210 37,306
36,471 62,111
As at 31 December 2021, ECL allowance of RMB19,355,000 RZEBE-_—F+_A=+—08 ' ' BEEHR iﬁ\ﬁﬁ
(2020: RMB696,000) was recognised. EEBIERHEARE19,355000T (ZE=
T AR#696,000T) °
The ECL rate for trade receivables as at 31 December 2021 RZBE-_—FR-_ZE-_ZTF+_A=+—H
and 2020 was determined as follows: ME S EKGETEHREERBBL RXETHOT
2021 2020
—E_—F —ETHF
0-30 days 0ZE 30K 1.26% 1.29%
31-60 days 31&60Xk 1.89% 1.93%
61-90 days 61 90K 2.92% 2.98%
91-365 days 91 %F 365K 4.54% 4.64%
Over 365 days Hi® 365K 100% -
The movement in the ECL allowance of trade receivables, is as BoRWFENESREEBEREZ B
follows: AR
2021 2020
—E_—f —E-=
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®FiT AEBFr
At 1 January ®n—A—H 696 170
ECL allowance recognised during the year &N 2R TEE = E BB R E 18,659 526
At 31 December R+—_A=+—H 19,355 696
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22.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued) 21.

The Group writes off a trade receivable when there is
information indicating that the debtor is in severe financial
difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, e.g.
when the debtor has been placed under liquidation or has
entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or when the trade
receivables are over two years past due, whichever occurs
earlier. None of the trade receivables that have been written
off is subject to enforcement activities. The Group does not
hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over these
balances.

FINANCIAL ASSET AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 22.

PROFIT OR LOSS

o B U 5 e A W R

BORHEMEBEWKZIE 2
MEEHBERESATYBERERER
g B 25 T O 4 SRR A (0 G A 5 88 K
PHERF  NESEWKEC HBBAN
FoURPERE)  AEBSHIEESE
W TR o B R 5 M B B 1T B T
o AEEN ERRZESREEEAERS
S ERER L A 2 B B8 5

BRAFHEHARSHEMNEE

2021 2020
% —TEF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®FT ARET T

Unlisted convertible bond (note) JE LT AR ES (A i)

Note: On 23 February 2018, Unlock Bound Investments Limited
(“Unlock Bound”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Group, subscribed for a convertible bond with a principal
of HK$70,000,000 (equivalent to RMB56,693,000) (“CSG
Convertible Bond’) with annual coupon of 6%, issued by Charm
Success Global Investment Limited (“CSG”), an independent
third party. CSG is an unlisted company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands with limited liability. The CSG Convertible
Bond will mature on 15 March 2022. CSG and its subsidiaries
are engaged in the development of tourism and tourism projects.

The CSG Convertible Bond will, at the discretion of Unlock
Bound, be convertible at any time between the date of issue
of the CSG Convertible Bond and on the second business day
immediately preceding its maturity date on 15 March 2022
into fully paid ordinary shares of CSG. The total percentage
of ordinary share hold by Unlock Bound upon full conversion
of the CSG Convertible Bond in the enlarged share capital of
CSG will be equal to the aggregate principal amount of the
CSG Convertible Bond divided by the value of CSG and its
subsidiaries to be agreed by the Unlock Bound and CSG. If
the bonds have not been converted, they will be redeemed on
maturity date at 110% of the outstanding principal amount of
the CSG Convertible Bond plus accrued interest.

= 5,557

Kiag IR =—ZF—\&F=A=+=H ' Unlock Bound
Investments Limited ([ Unlock Bound J) (7
EE 2 & B AR M Charm Success
Global Investment Limited ([ CSG |) (— & %8
N E=75) %172 A% %70,000,000 7% T
(FBE M AR % 56,693,000 7T) B 7] #2 A% (&
H([CSGRAImRER])  FEERE% °
CSGRA— MR AEBEXESFMKILZIE
FTHAERAGT -CSGAIBBRELFBN -Z
——F=A+AHBH-CSCRENBR
BIEERERERIKREEE 28R -

CSG 7] #2 % {& % 1% 3% Unlock Bound 2 B 1%
REREEITCSGA R ESF AR EE =
T —E-A+RABEHBHATNE @
EEHAMEER LR ACSGHE LB -
RBE S CSGAI % & %5 % * Unlock
Bound ¥ B 2 & i@ % {h CSG 2 &% #E K AR 7K
MBEDLLEERCSGRIRBRERZAE R
4 K BA Unlock Bound % CSG #5 # & 2 CSG
REMBRARIZEE - WEHFRERR
B PA B B B HAZ CSG Al R pR & 5 R 18 18
NEFEH110% INfEFI S HEE -
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22. FINANCIAL ASSET AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 22. BAFEFARRHEMEE )

PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

During the years ended 31 December 2020, CSG failed to pay
the annual coupon interest as stipulated in the subscription
agreement and the CSG Convertible Bond becomes default.
According to the representations of CSG, there has been an
unexpected delay in the implementation of the development
plan of the project due to (1) unexpected delay in obtaining
funds from investors to carry out the project; and (2) the
delay in assignment of theme park license from the holding
company of CSG to CSG and its subsidiaries which was
subject to licensor's approval. During the year ended 31
December 2021, the Group disposed the financial asset at
FVTPL at a consideration of HK$10,000,000 (equivalent to

RBE_FT_FTF+_A=+T—HLFE"
CSGﬂi*ﬁiﬁmﬁ%Tiz’a T RENFER
CSGRIAEHF K BEL © *EHFCSGZ%
M ZRBRRAIZIEEEBREING
REZQ1 ?JET’EJEE%IEHH&HHxﬁ%é%E
HHIREIMERR : (2)CSGEYFERR A A ¥ &
PN i«“*u?T%CSG&ﬁMﬂE“TﬁEE
R (FRZHNORREMAE) - REE
TECF+A=+—RHILFE  FEH
HERATEAABRRNEREE  RE
/$10,000,0007% 7T (16 & 7 A F ¥ 8,340,000
JT) e

RMB8,340,000).

CSGRIRBEFNFRNZEBEINWT ¢

The movement of the CSG Convertible Bond during the year is
set out below:

2021 2020

% —T-TF

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARFiT ARETFT

Fair value at 1 January R—A—BZA¥E 5,557 1,969
Fair value gain N E WS - 3,913
Disposal fank= (5,505) -
Exchange adjustments b H SR (52) (325)
Fair value at 31 December B+ZRA=+—HZAFE - 5,557

As the annual coupon interest was past due and defaulted, HRFEEECAENEY REE-Z=
no interest income was recognised for the years ended 31 FR-ZFEZZEF+ A=+ —HLEFEL

December 2021 and 2020. EERF B A -

CSG AL E % 2 AT EE I 3 36,6t
2R E

The fair value of the CSG Convertible Bond has been measured
as described in note 36.6.
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23. NET INVESTMENT IN LEASES 23. HEKRE R
The maturity analysis of the undiscounted lease payments MEMRE 2 AMBERENREWFEZ D
receivables from finance leases are as follows: HASMET
2021 2020
—E-—%F —EEF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®FiT AEBFor
Gross investment in leases HERERTE
— Within one year —— %R 7,947 3,444
— After first year but within second years —FE—FBREE-FA 9,413 3,652
— After second year but within third years —$ - F#ERE=ZFR - 3,665
17,360 10,661
Less: Unearned finance income B R BRER A YA (1,208) (886)
Net investment in leases HERE FE 16,152 9,775
Present value of investment in leases HE®RE ZRE
— Within one year ——FR 7,135 2,996
— After first year but within second years —F —F#ENKE_FRK 9,017 3,252
— After second year but within third years —F -FENKE=FRK - 3,527
16,152 9,775
Less: portion due within one year included & : st AREEE 2 —F A ZH
under current assets B (7,135) (2,996)
Portion due after one year included under st AERBIBE 2 —F 1% 5 Hf
non-current assets i 9,017 6,779
Net investment in leases represented: HEREFHBENRE
2021 2020
—E_—%F —TTHF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ABR¥FIT AREFor
Gross amount of net investment in leases T &% & 4558 16,588 10,099
ECL allowance on net investment in leases &R B FEHNTAHEEERERE (436) (324)
16,152 9,775
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23. NET INVESTMENT IN LEASES (Continued)

The Group entered into two (2020: two) lease contracts for
certain factory premises for an initial period of three years and
three months (2020: four years and two years) for the year
ended 31 December 2021. As at 31 December 2021 and
2020, all lased factory premises are subleased to third parties
for rental purposes. The relevant lease liabilities at date of
commencement was RMB9,593,000 (2020: RMB10,893,000)
(note 28). As at 31 December 2021, the subleases are under
nine sublease arrangements (2020: the subleases are under
eight sublease arrangements).

As at 31 December 2021, the net investment in leases
represent nine sublease arrangements entered by the Group
with the sub-lessees in respect of factory premises typically
run for an initial period of three years and four years (2020:
eight sublease arrangements typically run for an initial period
of nine months to four years). The sub-leases do not include
contingent rentals and variable lease payments. The subleases
are entered with the same terms of the respective head-leases
and the gain from the recognition of the net investments in
lease from the head leases is included in “other income” on
the face of the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income.

The movements in the ECL allowance of net investment in
leases, is as follows:

23.

HEKRERH
BHE-_ZTZ-—F+-A=+—HILEE K
EERBOBERITMGE (ZE_FF : ¥
MBESY MLHRERA=FE=MA (=
EEF NFEEMF) cRZEZ—FHM
—E-FTFE+-A=+—0 FEAEHRERE
HHMEFE=ZHERER % - £ A
HEHREAEAARKI9593000T (-~
THE: AR¥10,893,0007T) (HFsE28) o B
T+ -A=+—H =EHEEAER
BNEEALHE (CE_2F : NEEHEHE
BE) 1T -

R-ZBE_—F+_A=+—H HEREZF
BMEEASEESHEARBET LK NLIEE
Bd BEVNAER=FrUF (=T
T \REMERY BTV EBNEA
ENF) BEHEEVEBEAAEE A
HEHENK - GHEBEE T RARREENHE
FERETY - MERKRERBECHERE
FREREAAGSERREMEE RS
RIETZ[EMBKA] -

ARREFENENEEFRRENED
mF -

2021 2020

8% T FF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR&Fir ARETFT

At 1 January ®n—A—H 324 -
ECL allowance recognised during the year FRNE R TE = EEHEEH 112 324
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 436 324
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24. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS 24, RERBEE
The movement during the year in the deferred tax assets is as FRNELERIEEENZHNAT :
follows:
2021 2020
% —ZT-F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TFT ARETT

At 1 January Rn—HA—H 26,172 13,393
Recognised in profit or loss (note 10) RIBRER (M7 10) 721 12,779
At 31 December Rt+tZA=+—H 26,893 26,172
The movement in deferred tax assets during the year is as FREEHRBEENSENOT
follows:
Impairment loss
on assets Others Total
HSERESH Hth o H
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR Fr AR Fr AREFT
At 1 January 2020 R -_FF—H—H 13,620 (227) 13,393
Recognised in profit or loss REmER 12,718 61 12,779
At 31 December 2020 and at RZEZZEF+=A
1 January 2021 =t+—BkZZE=_—%F
—H—H 26,338 (166) 26,172
Recognised in profit or loss RIERER 821 (100) 721
At 31 December 2021 R-E-—%+4+ZA
=+—H 27,159 (266) 26,893
As at 31 December 2021, no deferred income tax has been R_E-_—F+_A=1+—8  WERLAE
recognised for withholding taxes that would be payable on the BRABKRYZHEB AR BHMENT 2
unremitted earnings that are subject to withholding taxes of ﬂiEHjE?‘JJEHZ?E?NRTJEELLF)’T S o
the Group’s subsidiaries established in the PRC. In the opinion KABIEERE  ZEWBRFNA R KK
of the directors of the Company, it is not probable that these PRAgEDREBERN RZT=Z—F+=
subsidiaries will distribute such earnings in the foreseeable A=+—HB HRFHEMNBRARZEKEEH
future. The aggregate amount of temporary differences BY &L EREEHMESHABEZYRE
associated with investments in subsidiaries in the PRC for B@mae £ A AR198,220,0007T (=
which deferred income tax liabilities have not been recognised T T HF : ARM140,256,0007T) °

totalled approximately RMB198,220,000 as at 31 December
2021 (2020: RMB140,256,000).
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25. BANK BALANCES AND CASH 25. BITHBERRA&
2021 2020
—E-—%f —T_EF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TFIT ANREFoT
Bank balances and cash RITEHR AR 99,661 48,908

Included in bank balances and cash of the Group of
approximately RMB60,321,000 (2020: RMB47,375,000) as at
31 December 2021 are bank balances denominated in RMB
placed with banks in the PRC. RMB is not a freely convertible
currency. The conversion of RMB denominated deposits placed
in banks in the PRC in foreign currencies and remittance of
such foreign currencies denominated bank balances and cash
out of the PRC are subject to relevant rules and regulation of
foreign exchange control promulgated by the PRC government.
Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates.

RZZE-—F+-A=+—R0 fALEE
MERTT MR & A 8R4 AR 60,321,0007T
ZZ-TF : AR¥47,375,0007T) BIFR
R EMRITUARBETHERNRI TR
ARBR T ARLBER - §FHRET
RITOARBEFRZBRING - URKZE
AINEHERMRITH B LIRS ELTE - 15
7818 T 70 B BUFT AR M &9 A8 A S BE B 1 AR A
KO - RITRSRER B ARTERN X
BT B R ERERF 2 -

26. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 26. ES R HEMEFKRIE
2021 2020
—EZ—% —EEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ABRTFIT ARETFT
Trade payables EHEMARE

— To third parties —ERFE=F 9,136 9,144

Accrued charges and other payables BHEAXIREMBEMSRIE
— Salaries payables —ENEH® 6,362 3,395
— Other tax payables —E b FERT B 1,400 717
— Other payables —H fib fE S 5B 3,538 6,033
11,300 10,145
20,436 19,289
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26. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued) 26. ESRHEMEFARE 2
The Group was granted by its suppliers credit periods ranging AEBHERG TASEEN F15260KH
from 15 to 60 days. An aged analysis of the trade payables, ERH EREZAHNE ZEMNFARR
based on the invoice date, is as follows: DT
2021 2020
8% T EF
RMB’000 RMB’000

27.

AR®FT ARET T

0-30 days 0E30K 9,136 9,144
CONTRACT LIABILITIES 27. AR

2021 2020

8% —TEF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®FIT ARET T

Contract liabilities arising from receiving U EREMEET IR S EEH

deposits of manufacturing orders BHEE 949 170
When the Group receives a deposit before the production MWAEERNEEEBFRARATNERZES - Hi§
activity commences, this will give rise to contract liabilities REVFRBRKEEGHNEE BEEE0ME
at the start of a contract until the revenue recognised on the R EBBIESEEAIL -

contract exceeds the amount of the deposit.

All the outstanding contract liabilities at beginning of the year REVZFBEREEAHNBEERFTARE
have been recognised as revenue during the year. RAWES -
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28. LEASE LIABILITIES

The maturity analysis of the undiscounted lease payments are

as follows:

28. HEAR

AUBEENTOBEADHFMOT

2021 2020
—E-—5 TE-EF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR&TFir ANREFr
Total minimum lease payments: HEBEENRBE -
— Within one year ——FR 6,314 2,551
— After first year but within second years —F—FERE-FNA 6,416 2,922
— After second year but within third years —S - F#ENKE=ZFR - 2,922
12,730 8,395
Future finance charges on lease liabilites FE8EZ AKX EE A (830) (699)
Present value of lease liabilities HEaBEzRE 11,900 7,696
Present value of minimum lease payments &K E 3 2 IRE
— Within one year —— &R 5,739 2,190
— After first year but within second years —F—FEBEE-FR 6,161 2,687
— After second year but within third years —F-FEBEE=FR - 2,819
11,900 7,696
Less: portion due within one year included & : st AREI BEZ —FAZH
under current liabilities 2B (5,739) (2,190)
Portion due after one year included under st AERBIBE 2 —F 1% 5 Hf
non-current assets 2B 6,161 5,506
Movements in lease liabilities during the year: HEBEFACES:
2021 2020
—E_—F —TTRF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ABRTFIT ARETF T
At 1 January n—H—H 7,696 2,707
Additions NE 9,593 10,893
Payment of lease liabilities HESEMNR (5,844) (6,119)
Finance costs Bl & R AR 455 215
At 31 December R+-HA=+—H 11,900 7,696
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28. LEASE LIABILITIES (continued)

As at 31 December 2021, lease liabilities amounting to
RMB11,900,000 (2020: RMB7,696,000) are effectively
secured by the related underlying assets as the rights to the
leased asset would be reverted to the lessor in the event of
default by repayment by the Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the total
cash outflows for the leases are RMB5,908,000 (2020:
RMB6,194,000).

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group has entered
into leases for an office and certain factory premises.

As at 31 December 2021

Financial statements items of
Types of right-of-use assets right-of-use assets included in

EREEEMRTA
EHERERD MR BEREE

fk B B 255 R A PR

28. HEARK @@

RZZE-_—F+=-_A=+—H FHEAE
AR®11,900,000L (ZE =T F : AR
7,696,00070) B FLAEREE EEEE 0 R
EEMEAEEREER  HELENETR
BewHEAWkD -
REE-_E-_—F+-_A=+—RILFEE
HEMBR S RLETEAARYS5908,0007T
ZZEFF : AR¥6,194,0007T) ©

@i_;:*¢&_$_7¢+ A=1—
CAEERBAERETHMERLEE -

R-2_—%+-RA=+—H

Range of

Number of remaining
leases lease term  Particulars

FeR

HEHE HURE &%

Factory premises in PRC Right-of-use assets

B A EREEE
Office Not applicable as short term

lease recognition exemptions
under HKFRS 16 applied

/N REBERBERELENE 165K
MEMEHERIRE  TE
A

3 Syears o Contains an option to
renew the lease after the
end of the contract

3 3F e BRRREEE
Tﬂi\ E’\] ﬁz%

1 8months e Only subject to monthly
fixed rental payment

1 A o EFFAZNETEHS
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28.

29.

LEASE LIABILITIES (continued) 28. HHEAR®
As at 31 December 2020 RZEZEF+_A=+—8H
Range of
Financial statements items of Number of remaining
Types of right-of-use assets right-of-use assets included in leases lease term  Particulars
EREEERTA FiR
ERREEERY HHBHRREE HEMAE HBEE #S
Factory premises in PRC Right-of-use assets 3 9monthsto e Contains an option to
4 years renew the lease after the
end of the contract
B 5 CREEE 3 9fEA BRERIEE
E4F Ea"ﬁfﬂ’] B
Office Not applicable as short term 1 8 months e Only subject to monthly
lease recognition exemptions fixed rental payment
under HKFRS 16 applied
/N RBEEBV B RELERSE 1 8EA e« EFFAXNEEME
16588 % BT E R ®
- NiE A
The Group considered that no extension option or termination REEMKBE  ~EERAGTISITEME
option would be exercised at the lease commencement date. AEREE AR RERE o
SHORT TERM BORROWINGS 29. MHAIER
2021 2020
2% —ZEZF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AE#Fir AREFTT
Bank loans, secured RITER - AIEH 89,327 68,800
Unsecured borrowings ﬁﬁﬁfﬁ?ﬁ( - 12,629
89,327 81,429
As at 31 December 2021, bank loans bore interest at 3.8% to RZEZ—F+-_A=+—H RITERN

4.81% (2020: 4.15% to 4.79%) per annum.

The bank loans were secured by certain assets of the Group
(notes 14, 15 and 16) as at 31 December 2021 and 2020.

As at 31 December 2021, unsecured borrowings amounted
to Nil (2020: RMB12,629,000 bore fixed interest at 14% per
annum).

38%%2481% (ZE-_ZTF :4.15% %
4.79%) K FEFIEFTE ©
R —FR-_ZE-FF+_A=+—H"
ROTEZTUAREEETEE (MIsE14 - 15 %
16) 1EH#H -

RZF-_—F+-A=1+—0 BEMERX
BER/RT (T _TF: AR% 12,629,000
T RFNE14%ETR) o
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30. SHARE CAPITAL 30. =&
No. of shares RMB’000
Bin®HE ARETF T
Authorised: ERE
As at 31 December 2020 and 2021 RZEZEFR_T-_—F
+-—A=+—H 1,560,000,000 12,313
Issued and fully paid: ERTREARE:
As at 1 January 2020, 31 December 2020 E/\: T -_TF—H—H -
and 1 January 2021 —E-EF+-_A=1+—HEK
—E-—9F—H—H 897,723,000 7,352
Issue of shares by placing (note) BBMEEITRD (M) 179,544,600 1,495
As at 31 December 2021 R-_ZE-_—4F+-_A=+—H 1,077,267,600 8,847

31.

The ordinary shares of the Company has a par value of
HK$0.01 each.

Note: On 21 June 2021, an aggregate of 179,544,600 ordinary shares
with par value of HK$0.01 each were issued at HK$0.175
per share by placing, according to a placing agreement under
general mandate signed on 4 June 2021. The proceeds of
HK$1,795,000 (equivalent to RMB1,495,000) representing
the par value of these ordinary shares were credited to the
Company’s share capital account. The remaining proceeds after
deducting placing commission, professional fees and all related
expenses amounted to approximately RMB24,316,000, were
credited to the Company’s share premium account.

RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 are
presented in the consolidated statement of changes in equity of
the consolidated financial statements.

Share premium

The share premium represents the difference between the par
value of the shares of the Company and net proceeds received
from the issuance of the shares of the Company.

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the share
premium account of the Company may be applied for payment
of distributions or dividends to the shareholders provided that
immediately following the date on which the distribution or
dividend is proposed to be paid, the Company is able to pay its
debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

ARRAREBREERERO0OLET -

Mg W—ZE——FXB=-+—HB RE=Z
Z—FXNANBEINRERZE  LIRE
— IR T IR0.175 B TR BIRETR &
il 217 & 51 179,544,600 f% & AL E (& 0.01 7
JCHY & 3R Y o BT 5 3038 1,795,000 7T (48
MEAJ\E%1495OOOTE>*H )\EAHA#EL
BHEE B ARDQBRAR - IR E
Efe BEERLMAMABRAZE
BETEFE B AR 24,316,0007 ' &
RARRB D REER -

31. iR

RBE-_T-_—FR-_FT-_FF+-A
=+ BLEFE  ARENFESELEE
BIINGEMBRENGAEREBRET

B& 17 & 18’
By g EREARE R EESR‘QETA
RER I TS RIBF R 258 ©

RERSFES QAL - ARBIRMD G ERA
AR RARR A DR E - R ERE 2
S IRSAR R 2 AR - RARIGEHMRN B
FEBBRETNEINRR ZE -
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31.

RESERVES (continuea)

Statutory reserve

In accordance with the Company Law of the PRC, each of the
subsidiaries of the Company that was registered in the PRC
is required to appropriate 10% of the annual statutory profit
after tax (after offsetting any prior years’ losses), determined in
accordance with the PRC GAAP, to the statutory reserve until
the balance of the reserve funds reaches 50% of the entity’s
registered capital. The statutory reserve can be utilised to offset
prior years’ losses or to increase capital, provided the remaining
balance of the statutory reserve is not less than 25% of the
registered capital.

Capital reserve

The capital reserve of the Group as at 31 December 2021 and
2020 represents the share capital of entities comprising the
Group prior to the reorganisation and the reserves arising from
the reorganisation for the purpose of listing of the Company’s
shares on the Stock Exchange.

Translation reserve

Translation reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences
for the translation of financial statements of foreign operations.
The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the accounting
policy in note 2.3.

31. s =)

i E G

RIBHBERRDE - AR AR B M %
BRARAARREBETE AR S RANEEDN
BB FRAEEN (KEHETAMEEFE
MBS R) B 10%L%§i/£mfn%1% HEMRR
B MGEHREDBREMERNL0% ° SATE
%ﬁﬂ%%ﬁ%ﬂ&i&%%ﬁi%m%

DR - EFIREEREEH T O REMRE
KHE)25% °
& 354
sz:—iﬁ —EFE+-A=Z+—

ZIS%@E’\JQZIKE%ﬁZ%ZK%@BkT?%EA
i%ﬂﬁﬁfﬂ’\]ﬁﬁ$&§_$§ ESNNCIE vipiay:
AT EmmETT 2 EARR R

7

B R & 0
EN HERBRERIEBRERRZAE

ENEREK - FEDREMZ23HNE
TR T ARRIE -
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32. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 32. ELFHMBRAE
COMPANY
2021 2020
—E-—%f —T_EF
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000

HiiE AR¥TT AR TT

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERAR

Non-current asset FERBFE

Investments in subsidiaries RBRRIZIEE 17 = —*

Current assets mBEE

Prepayments B A 2,630 -

Amount due from a subsidiary Uy — REI B B A B FRIE 184,357 184,578

Bank balances and cash IRITEHR MRS 236 263
187,223 184,841

Current liabilities g 1=K

Other payables E iy e F008 1,297 2,661

Amount due to subsidiaries FEAS B /B A R F A 2,259 2,332

Short term borrowings HAfE X - 12,629

3,556 17,622

Net current assets REEERHE 183,667 167,219

Net assets EEPRE 183,667 167,219

CAPITAL AND RESERVES BER R

Share capital &% A 30 8,847 7,352

Reserves (Note) (i a) 174,820 159,867

Total equity Bane 183,667 167,219

* Amount less than RMB1,000. * SEELN AR 1,0007T ©

CHEN SHENG XU CHENGWU
BEFH HER
Chairlady Director
FE EZE
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32. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY (continued)

Note: The movement of the Company’s reserves are as follows:

32. EAFIHMBERAER &)

Bt ARAREHEBNT :

Share Translation ~ Accumulated
premium reserve loss Total
BRipRE BE R 6 il 2HER oty
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFr AREFIT AREFT AREFT
Balance at 1 January 2020 R-ZE-ZTF—A
= = 196,839 17,522 (40,438) 173,923
Loss and total comprehensive FABEERZERX
expenses for the year 4B - - (3,526) (3,526)
Exchange difference on translation & & 25| 5 2
to presentation currency JEH =58 - (10,530) - (10,530)
Balance at 31 December 2020 and HN_-_Z-ZT&F&+_H
1 January 2021 —+—HE=Z
——%—HA—Hz
Ee 196,839 6,992 (43,964) 159,867
Loss and total comprehensive FABEERZERX
expenses for the year B3R - - (3,635) (3,635)
Issue of share capital BT 24,316 - - 24,316
Exchange difference on translation & & 27%| 5 2
to presentation currency fE R ZE58 - (5,728) - (5,728)
Balance at 31 December 2021 W—==-—%+=A8
=t+—HZRR 221,155 1,264 (47,599) 174,820
33. LEASE COMMITMENTS 33. HE&RIE
As lessee EHEBEA

At the reporting date, the lease commitment for short term
lease are as follows:

REEEE EHES HEAZNT

2021 2020
% —T_FF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR &TFiT AREFT
Land and buildings: T RETF
Within one year —FR 46 47
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33. LEASE COMMITMENTS (continued) 33. HE&IE 2
As lessor L F-T:3:: DN
At the reporting date, the Group had future aggregate minimum RERE B E - REE S EE KA T 0] #
lease receipts under non-cancellable operating leases in HEEHEBE T 2 A RFREEWFERE
respect of plant and machineries are as follows: wnr
2021 2020
8% —E-THF
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®FT ARET T

Plant and machineries: BEREW
Less than one year LR —F 970 1,870
One to two years —EWFE 283 1,478
1,253 3,348
The Group leases out its plant and machineries (note 16) under AEBBEBEEEHELTHEHBERE M
operating lease arrangements which run for an initial period of W (faE1e) - YR AR SF - WA RN E
five years, with an option to renew the lease term at the expiry B EEHEE -
date.
The Group leases out investment property under operating AEERBLEHENBIEEDE -HEB
leases. The leases typically run for an initial period of 2-5 BURAB2ESF AR I EATIER
years. There is no early termination option, extension option BIFRIEE  EREEERE®EERE -
and renewal option in the contract.
Undiscounted lease payments under non-cancellable operating AEERFEAHRRBTAIRELCEHEZ
lease in place at the reporting date will be receivable by the RAVRHEEN FAR KA 2 FEURFIEEAT -
Group in future periods as follows:
2021 2020
—EZ—%f —E-FF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TT AR TT

Less than one year DR—F 2,290 651
One to two years —EWE 2,210 528
Two to three years MZE=4F 1,412 396
Three to four years —ENEF 1,104 -

7,016 1,575
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34. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 34, FEXKIE
2021 2020
% —T_EF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FiT AREFIT
Contracted but not provided for ERTHEREH
— Interests in associates — B E N R AR 30,645 -

During the year, the Group established 37 ;I & 5% with
two independent third parties with first tranche of capital
RMB1,600,000. According to the article of association of
T =7, the Group is committed to invest further RMB
30,400,000 on or before 31 December 2040.

35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Group had the following transactions with related parties:

FR - AEEEMEBILE=TTRILNTE
o BEHEAR B ARKL600,0007T R IE
AT EARERAR AREZ IR
ZNTFET A=+ HIZABREA

R 30,400,000 7T °

35. REAXH

AEBEBEENAUNTRS

Compensation of key management personnel TEEBARTFM
2021 2020
% —ET-TF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TFT AREFor
Short term employee benefits MHEEEEF 2,422 2,874
Retirement scheme contributions RIS FT IR 33 37
2,455 2911
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36. ACQUISITION OF ASSETS THROUGH ACQUISITION  36. :EiBUX M B ARG E &

OF SUBSIDIARIES

On 9 July 2021, the Group acquired 75% equity interests RZZEZ—FEANB  XEENBE2K
in Hmda and its subsidiary (“Hmda Group”), from {& 11,000,0007% 7T (48 & 7 A R # 9,180,000
an independent third party at a cash consideration of T RABYE=FREEXERHENB AT
HK$11,000,000 (equivalent to RMB9,180,000). Hmda Group ([FExREEE )N T7o%MHE - FEFRFEEE T
is engaged in trademark authorization services and sale of EREPERERE I EEEMNIARE

trademark processed costumes.

The above transaction was accounted for as acquisition of HREXESERKNEL BT EETR
assets rather than as business combinations because Hmda AMEABERS B LR ZTIERAE
Group did not carry out any significant business transactions EBIEMIEERE HAIR ©

prior to the date of acquisition.

The assets acquired at the completion date were as follows: MREKBBHERBEEENAT :
RMB’000
AREFIT
Cash and cash equivalents ReMREFEEY 415
Trademark &S 12,213
Property, plant and equipment W - B & 147
Prepayment B HIE 125
Contract liabilities AHEE (352)
Accrual and other payables JEET B A & E b RS 5RI8 (308)
12,240
Non-controlling interest FEFE AR A (3,060)
Net assets acquired BUIRREEE 9,180
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36. ACQUISITION OF ASSETS THROUGH ACQUISITION
OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

36. EAIKEHEATIESEE 2

Net cash outflow on acquisition KEENRTHSRE
RMB’000
ARETF T
Cash and cash equivalent acquired BEWERERIASEEY 415
Cash consideration paid BNReRE (9,180)
(8,765)

37. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY

On 29 December 2021, the Group disposed of its entire interest
in Yiwu Styler to an independent third party which carried out
part of the Group’s manufacturing and sale of cosplay wigs

37. HE—RKRE LT

RZBEZ—F+ZA=+hnAB AEELE
HAERSHENZEES T RBIUE=
7T R ARREREEN D SENIHE A

operations. B EREFER -
Consideration received 2R E
2021
RMB’000
AR®FiT
Total consideration received B ERE 5,110

Analysis of assets and liabilities over which control was

HEERHAENEERARBHIH

lost
2021
RMB’000
AR%TFir
Cash and cash equivalents BehIReEEY 454
Property, plant and equipment W - BB & 326
Inventories FE 2,147
Trade and other receivables B o NH b EWFRIAE 2,508
Trade and other payables B 5 M E A RIE (1,355)
Net assets disposed of BEHEREE 4,080
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37. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY (continued) 37. HE—RIMEB LR (&)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—MHRELFNKR
2021
RMB’000
AR¥Tir
Consideration received and receivable B R EWRE 5,110
Less: net assets disposed of B BEHEFEE (4,080)
Gain on disposal & By e 1,030
The gain on disposal is included in the profit for the year HENRRETAGEEBERLEME2EKZ
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other FREFREFF o
comprehensive income.
Net cash inflow on disposal of a subsidiary HE—MRBARRBHRASRARE
2021
RMB’000
AR®FTT
Consideration received in cash and cash equivalents AR & RIRE HEWAWRARE 5,110
Cash and cash equivalent disposed of BHERSRECEEY (454)
4,656
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38. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING 3. MEEHELENAREIRRIER
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES AND NON-CASH &xH
TRANSACTION
Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing MEETBEENARYHIE
activities

AEERETHELNBENES A DE

The changes in the Group’s liabilities arising from financing
activities can be classified as follows:

LN

Borrowings Lease liabilities Total
[-EA HE&RE #Et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTFT AR TFT ARETFT
At 1 January 2020 R-ZZE-_FTF—HF—H 94,697 2,707 97,404
Cash-flows: iﬁ.ﬁﬁi :
— Repayment —BEHIE (159,010) - (159,010)
— Proceeds — P88 146,800 - 146,800
— Capital element of lease rentals —BENHEEHEL &K
paid B - (5,904) (5,904)
— Interest element of lease rentals —ENHEEHS 2 FE
paid 2B - (215) (215)
Non-cash: RS
— Enter into new leases —FIFHEE - 10,893 10,893
— Effective interest charges —EBRMEZH - 215 215
— Exchange adjustments — [ H A (1,058) - (1,058)
At 31 December 2020 and RZZEZZF+=A
1 January 2021 =+—BARkZT=_—
—H—H 81,429 7,696 89,125
Cash-flows: BReERE :
— Repayment —(BE 8 (71,032) - (71,032)
— Proceeds — {808 79,604 - 79,604
— Capital element of lease rentals ~ —BEfHEEHRE 2 ER
paid B9 - (5,389) (5,389)
— Interest element of lease rentals —BEfHEH S T8
paid 2B - (455) (455)
Non-cash: RS :
— Enter into new leases —FIFHEE 9,593 9,593
— Effective interest charges —EBRMNEZ - 455 455
— Exchange adjustments —ERAE (674) - (674)
At 31 December 2021 R-B-—%+Z°AH
=+—H 89,327 11,900 101,227
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RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES AND NON-CASH

TRANSACTION (continued)

Non-cash transaction

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group entered
into certain lease contracts in which additions to investment
properties (note 15) and related lease liabilities (note 28)
amounting to RMB9,593,000 (2020: RMB10,893,000) and
RMB9,593,000 (2020: RMB10,893,000) respectively were
recognised at the lease commencement date and were not
reflected in the consolidated statement of cash flows.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE
MEASUREMENTS

The Group is exposed to financial risks through its use of
financial instruments in its ordinary course of operations and in
its investment activities. The financial risks include market risk
(including foreign currency risk and interest rate risk), credit
risk and liquidity risk.

The Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the Group to

manage these risks are described below.

Categories of financial assets and liabilities

38.

39.

o B U 5 e A W R

METHEENERHERIER
&xHh =)

FEREETH

RBE-_E-—F+-_A=+—HILEE "
AEBITVAETHESGY RHEEHRKHA
Hgtt o Rl EREEYWE (FiE15) REH
HEAE (M7E28) AE AR¥ 9,593,000
T (ZEZFF : AR¥10,893,0007T) &
ARMBEQBIBON0ITL(ZE_ZTF: ARK
10,893,0007T) ' ZE ¢RI ERMARLRE
WERER -

MERBREERFHEHIE

AEBEFRENAFLERKRETSHER
SRITAMEEVERR - MiERREBED
SRR (BREIMNERREEMNEER)  FE
B K E) A & E R o

REBAAENABRER LA SE L E R
ZERRATERAOMBEREERRRE
FE 9N e

9.1 eMRERARHIME

2021 2020
—E—%F —EEHF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®FiT AREFor
Financial assets SMEE
Financial asset at FVTPL: BAFEFABENEREE
Unlisted convertible bond JE E T AT R E - 5,557
Measured at amortised cost: LKA E
Trade and other receivables B 5 K E b e s s 40,237 63,157
Net investment in leases HERE TR 16,152 9,775
Bank balances and cash RITEHRLES 99,661 48,908
156,050 127,397
Financial liabilities EMER
Measured at amortised cost: BB AGTE -
Trade and other payables B NEMENFKIA 19,036 18,572
Lease liabilities HEaE 11,900 7,696
Borrowings B 89,327 81,429
120,263 107,697
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE

MEASUREMENTS (continued)

39.2 Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk refers to the risk that the fair value
or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Group’s
exposures to currency risk arise from its sales to overseas,
which are primarily denominated in USD. These are not the
functional currencies of the Group entities to which these
transactions relate.

Foreign currency denominated financial assets and liabilities,
translated into RMB at the closing rates, are as follows:

39. HERREER AFETE @)

39.2 SME AR
SEEBRESBIANATERAKRS
REREXZDIRDORS - AREEY
t 5 1 LB &8 5 B DL SE T AT 51
WE - SRR UIRLER D EBOAR

HERAYEEN -

SNEHEEREERABRAEMERKLE
SARE - #EWAT

2021 2020
% —TEF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®FIT ARET T

Assets: HE:
usbh ETT

Net exposures i d=F:3 ]
usb ETT

The following table illustrates the sensitivity of the Group’s loss
after income tax for the year and equity as at reporting date in
regard to an appreciation in the Group’s functional currency
against the foreign currencies. These sensitivity rates represent
management’s best assessment of the possible change in
foreign exchange rates.

82,366 61,290

82,366 61,290

TRINRAEBOFARAESREEERR
R¥E B HmES S ANEEDEEE LI
BHENHRE ZFHEELERRKRER
JE 4 SN [E R A gL B ) AR AERT A ©

Increase in loss

Sensitivity rate for the year
BEELLE FRBHRAM
2021 2020
% —E_FF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TT AERETFT

usD e

The same percentage depreciation in the Group’s functional
currency against the respective foreign currencies would have
the same magnitude on the Group’s loss after tax for the year
as at the reporting date but of opposite effect.

5% 3,501 2,604

AEBMEEERERIMNENHERA DL
RE eYAKERNRE BN FAKRRR
BEELARSEEEARMNTE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE

MEASUREMENTS (continued)

39.3 Interest rate risk

At 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group is exposed to fair
value interest rate risk in relation to fixed rate bank deposits
and fixed-rate borrowings. It is the Group’s policy to keep
its borrowings at fixed rates of interest so as to minimise its
exposures on interest rate movements.

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate risk relating
to the Group’s variable-rate bank deposits. In management’s
opinion, the sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative as the cash
flow interest rate risk is not significant to the consolidated
financial statements.

The Group currently does not have an interest rate hedging
policy. However, the management monitors interest rate
exposure and will consider hedging significant interest rate
exposure should the need arise.

39.4 Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty to a financial
instrument would fail to discharge its obligation under the
terms of the financial instrument and cause a financial loss to
the Group. The Group'’s exposure to credit risk mainly arises
from granting credit to customers in the ordinary course of its
operations and from its investing activities.

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk on recognised
financial assets is limited to the carrying amount at the
reporting date as summarised in note 39.1.

Bank balances and cash are placed at financial institutions that
have sound credit rating and the Group considers the credit
risk to be insignificant.

For other receivables measured at amortised cost, the exposures
to credit risk are monitored such that any outstanding
debtors are reviewed and followed up on an ongoing basis.
In the opinion of the Directors, the Group has no significant
concentration of credit risk arising from its ordinary course of
business due to its large customer base. The Group does not
hold any collateral from its debtors.

f B B 5 e o W

39. HERREER AFETE @)

39.3 FI = & k%

ng:—i& TR F+ZRA=1—

CAREEARAEEFERITEREEE
ﬂ EREE A FEFNERR - AEEK
B BHEFETEFEMER  UWBFEEE 2
[B B it O B 2= & A o

AEBETEREASEY BRTHFEREH
ZRERENKRER - EEER F%E,tﬁlmli
it EARNE  ARRSREN TR R &
EMBHREAMELTEXN -

7 52 [ 35 Ry I B A {6 2R B 0 SR
BEEESERMNERAR IHEARERE
BEHEAN KRR -

39.4 EE R E

EERRESRTANIZEF I REE
TERERTRAGRBETNEL  EHAE
BRZMBEERENER AEBEENER
RERErERENEELETETEFLNE
ENERERD -

AEBRCOHEREHEEATNRREE
[ B LA Bt 5E39. 1 PR3 70 3k 5 B BB AR TE
BRR -

RITERIBSERRNEAFEARENE
MEBEAEERSEERRYL TEK -

PLIREHA AT ENEMEBKFAMS » &
SEUMAZNERERRETES LA
WA RBETMREEER EFRR K
SEREEPRHEAMLEFHEATEER
RREAEERBRSEETHNER - AEE
WER A EEAEMERGR -
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE
MEASUREMENTS (continued)

39.4 Credit risk (Continued)

39.

MERBREERQFEHE @

394 (EREBE (&)

In order to minimise credit risk, the Group has developed
and maintains the Group’s credit risk gradings to categorise
exposures according to their degree of risk of default. The
credit rating information is based on the Group’s own trading
records to rate its major customers and other debtors. The
Group’s exposure and the credit ratings of its counterparties are
continuously monitored and the aggregate value of transactions
concluded is spread amongst approved counterparties.

The table below detail the credit quality of the Group’s financial
assets and other items, as well as the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk by credit risk rating grades:

As at 31 December 2021

REAREREEERR AEEDHIEL
HEBASENEERRER  TRERFE
# R A2 FE S LBk O E 1T D M8 o (EEFEAR
ERTIREASEEARSEBHATE
BEPREMEGANETHR - AEEREE

2SR E R B &ﬁx%ﬂ?ﬁ’ﬂ:ﬁﬁi&
WA FETTR B BB D R EHER R
ZEF -

TRA/AAGEESREERAMEANEE
BEURAEBAZNEANEERR %
ERRFFRE D) WFE

R-B_—%+-RA=+—H

Internal Grossing Net carrying
Note  creditrating ~ 12-month or lifetime ECL carrying amount  ECL allowance amount
REGEH
Mz WBEEER EANRHROGERER FmaAE BRER EERE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT  ARBTT  ARETT
Trade receivables 21 (Note) Lifetime ECL (simplified approach) 55,826 19,355 36,471
BoRWHE (PitE) 2HRAEERE (R
Net investment in leases 23 (Note) Lifetime ECL (simplified approach) 16,588 436 16,152
HERAFE (FifE) THRBEEER(BLE)
Other receivables measured at 21 Stagel 12-month ECL 3,766 - 3,766
amortised cost
REHENR B A ENE £-ER PREAERSEERSE
As at 31 December 2020 R-ZZB_TF+_-_A=+—H
Internal Grossing Net carrying
Nofe  creditrating  12-month or lifetime ECL carryingamount  ECL allowance amount
BEEE
fiiz WPEEFR LEAIEEIENGERE REAE BiEEE REEE
RMB000 RMB 00O RMB0OOO
AEEFTL AREFT ARETFT
Trade receivables 21 (Note) Lifetime ECL (simplified approach) 62,307 6% 62,111
BoRWE (k) 2HRAEERE (R
Net investment in leases 23 (Note) Lifetime ECL (simplified approach) 10,099 324 9,775
HEREFE (FifE) THRBEEER(BLE)
Other receivables measured at 21 Stagel 12-month ECL 1,046 - 1,046
amortised cost
RESRAT BHEMRRTE £-ER PREAESEESS
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE

MEASUREMENTS (continued)

39.4 Credit risk (Continued)

Note: For trade receivables and net investment in leases, the Group
has applied the simplified approach in HKFRS 9 to measure the
loss allowance at lifetime ECL. The Group determines the ECL
on these items by using a provision matrix, estimated based on
historical credit loss experience based on the past due status of
the debtors, adjusted as appropriate to reflect current conditions
and estimates of future economic conditions. Accordingly, the
credit risk profile of these assets is presented based on their past
due status in terms of the provision matrix and the individual
credit rating for trade receivables and net investment in leases
respectively. Note 21 and note 23 include further details on
the loss allowance for trade receivables and net investment in
leases, respectively. The Group has recognised a loss allowance
of 100% against all receivables over two year past due. There
has been no change in the estimation techniques or significant
assumptions made.

Generally the Group’s historical credit loss experience does
not show significantly different loss patterns for different
customer segments, the provision for loss allowance based on
past due status in respect of trade receivables is not further
distinguished between the Group’s different customer base.
As at 31 December 2021, the Group considered the exposure
to credit risk and ECL for trade receivables and net investment
in leases which are assessed collectively based on provision
matrix and the individual credit rating. Lifetime ECL amounted
to RMB19,355,000 (2020: RMB696,000) and RMB436,000
(2020: RMB324,000) has been recognised for trade
receivables and net investment in leases respectively.

39.5 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group will not be able
to meet its obligations associated with its financial liabilities
that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset.
The Group is exposed to liquidity risk in respect of settlement
of trade and other payables and its financing obligations, and
also in respect of its cash flow management. The Group’s
objective is to maintain an appropriate level of liquid assets and
committed lines of funding to meet its liquidity requirements in
the short and longer term.

When the creditor has a choice of when the liability is settled,
the liability is included on the basis of the earliest date on when
the Group can be required to pay. Where the settlement of the
liability is in instalments, each instalment is allocated to the
earliest period in which the Group is committed to pay.

f B B 5 e o W

39. HERREER AFETE @)

394 EEmMBE (&)

Wiz LB S RERWGRIBREE Txﬁ@%ﬁﬁﬁm U
SECEBEEMBREEEIWRAH
MR BREMEREB R EEHER
B-AKEEBENBEBEEETXFA
BENBEREEEER REEBABDRR
MEBEBRAGAETH  TEHESH
B AR BRE AR SR RSB R B T -
At - ZFEENEERR $E%/R$E?Fﬁ§1ﬁ
b e 4% Hoga B B 0 B 5h 5 B UK
REEREFEZEAMNGEEIRZET - MT
L2l RHMEE23 5 Bl# A B 5 WA R E
EREFEBEBREBNE-DHE A%
Iaﬁﬂfﬁﬁﬁziuiﬁ’lﬁﬁﬁﬁé%?ﬂlﬁﬁﬁ

EBE%}%% BETELERBRERIL

—MmE  AEBEZELEEEBEBRAT
AEEHBZzEALEEREAD A - M
BEREREE S ERFEN S AR RILR
ERAEBZ TRBRFEMRIEHE—FES -
R-ZE-—F+-_A=+—8 AEERE
BIEBREEEEETHNE S ERITER
HEREFENEERBRKRORBHEER
JEHTE)SUI}DJJT:.A%W BE 5 EW R E
EREFERALYBHEEEEY A
ARBE19355000 L (ZE_FF: ARK
696,0007C) M A R#436,0007t (ZE—F
F: AR#¥324,0007T) °

i B0 37 & R B
mBESAR AR A EEELETHR
TRAEGHENEINEAR ZS2RAE
FEBRNBEERN S BERMEERS -
SEREFEIREMENKEAMERE
BEHARGRERSREEEDBRDES
Rk AEENBEREAEREENRBEE
IKFEEBGEREERE  MWERNEEHN
RHHNRBESHFL -

%W)Iﬂi

BENREAKREAENTOZEBHFTA - H
EREARE ?ﬁ%? ER A - EREND

HIEER - SHEFG AR KRB AR ERH
REHE -
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE 30. MERBREERR AFHEEE &)
MEASUREMENTS (continued)

39.5 Liquidity risk (Continued) 95 REELEME (Z)
The following table details the remaining contractual maturities TRFLNEEAREECREERTS
at the balance sheet date of the Group’s financial liabilities, LKW B AR - DIRERIHRMBERES R 2
which are based on contractual undiscounted cash flows (BIEFBRE LR BRI 1EE -

including interest and contractual maturities.

Weighted
average Total  Total carrying
effective undiscounted amount as at
interestrate ~~ Within 1 year 12years 2t0 5 years cash flows 31 December
R+=R
it B3 *HRAe =t-AHZ
RRf= -5 —-EmE RELE RERT FERR

% RMB000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB000 RMB 000
5 ANEETT  ARETT  ARETT  ARETr  ARETT

2021 ZEZ-§

Financial liabilities at ~ HRIEMAENIRH &M

amortised costs -1
Trade and other payables & 5 & £t e 47078 NAZRER 19,036 - - 19,036 19,036
Lease liabilities HEBRE 5.42% 6,314 6,416 - 12,730 11,900
Borrowings &% 4.59% 90,091 - - 90,091 89,327
115,441 6,416 - 121,857 120,263
2020 k- o -2
Financial liabilities at ~ HMBAEARH&F
amortised costs =1
Trade and other payables & 5 [ Eft & (508 NATE A 18572 - - 18572 18572
Lease liabilities HEEE 4.80% 2,551 2922 2,922 8,39 7,696
Borrowings CE 6.13% 84 587 - - 84 587 81429
105,710 2,922 2,922 111,554 107,697
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE 39. M RBEER A FEHE &)

MEASUREMENTS (continued)

39.6 Fair value 39.6 AFE
Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value in the RIFETBMRAKRFIZATETEN SR
consolidated statement of financial position are grouped into BELBGRAIOR=ZEATESHR =%
three levels of a fair value hierarchy. The three levels are BENFEERBABR ZITERIEE &
defined based on the observability of significant inputs to the E0MOT

measurements, as follows:

o Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for °

identical assets and liabilities.

o Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within o

Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly and not using significant
unobservable inputs.

F—R - HAEERABNEEDS
HRE CRIEHE) -

F_LHREEXRBEERIERL
ABRZBAEH(TEESE—EME
SHHRE) AY BEREATAERE
ABUE -

. Level 3: significant unobservable inputs for the asset or . FoH - BEREBBEMNERTATER
liability. W AER -
The level in the fair value hierarchy within which the financial CREESAEREMES ANATES
asset or liability is categorised in its entirety is based on BANBR  EERHAFEFEAEERKN
the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value EENREBIBALR -
measurement.
Fair value measurements as at
31 December categorised into
R+-BA=+—HZAFEHHENES
Fair value at
31 December Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
»+=A8
=+—B8xZ
AFE =—% B E=®
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFIT ARETFT AREFIT AREFT
2020 k. ok -3 3

Financial asset at fair value BAFEHARENS
through profit or loss MEE
CSG Convertible Bond CSG R/ IR B 5 5,557

- - 5,557
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE

MEASUREMENTS (continued)

39.6 Fair value (Continued) 39.6 XFEH &)
The movements during the year in the balance of these Level 3 ZEBE=ZRLAFEAENEHRNTFRNZE

39. HERREER AFETE @)

fair value measurements are disclosed in note 22. The methods
and valuation techniques and inputs used in Level 3 fair value
measurements are described below:

For the CSG Convertible Bond subscribed on 23 February
2018, the management has engaged an external valuer to carry
out valuations on the fair value of the CSG Convertible Bond.

Based on the circumstances as described in note 22, the
equity interest of the convertible option upon conversion is
considered likely to be no commercial value. In the opinion of
Directors, default model is considered to be more relevant and
appropriate in measuring the fair value of the CSG Convertible
Bond. The key unobservable input is recovery rate. Based on
the Company’s internal assessment, the following factors have
been taken into account in determining the recovery rate for
the fair value calculation which include (i) there has been an
unexpected delay in obtaining funds from investors to carry
out the project which leads to a delay in the implementation
of the development plan of the project; and (ii) the default in
paying the annual coupon interest during the years ended 31
December 2021 and 2020 which indicate the low liquidity of
the CSG and its subsidiaries.

As at 31 December 2020, the overall market recovery rate
applied is 8.5%.

The recovery rate is considered as the key unobservable input,
an increase in the recovery rate would increase the fair value
of the CSG Convertible Bond. As at 31 December 2020, it is
estimated that with all other variables held constant, an 1%
increase in recovery rate would have increase the fair value of
the CSG Convertible Bond and decrease the Group’s loss for
the year by RMB622,000.

Based on an independent professional valuer Roma Appraisals
Limited’s valuation report, the fair value of the CSG Convertible
Bond is valued at approximately HK$6,600,000 (equivalent to
RMB5,557,000) as at 31 December 2020.

BN E22EE - B =R FEFEMRD
Z IR RIS EBAMA KB A BRI T &

BR—E—-N\E-_A-+=HRECSGH
BREAMS  BIEEC R BN EER S
CSGRA R ESH N A FEETEE -

ERM 22PN - BRREREERE
MBRERR SR ETRAEREER EFR
R BB 8 CSC A MR ES A FE
RERBBELEE - TETAIBERBAEL
B o RIFARR A Z WERRHE - REEA
FEFAENDRXREDF L TIIEE 8%
OWERZEBUREEEES T EHR
BOMER - EHZIAR %JEEJriUZ?;?iE%
LR RMPREBE_E_—FR_Z_ZF
FHA=ZTHALFERBFEE BR
CSG&,H\W%’AETEWREJ%T&A@F?&_V

m%@ﬂ&@z%&m

U RHERBEBETAIBRGAE - DX
ZIEINASIE I CSG A I fE % 2 AF1E - Y
—EoTFA_A=1t—H  ABEFEMER
fEERFIENFTRT  EUERIE 1%
#5348 0 CSG I AR (A 75 2 A AR D AN &
EFANEEARK622,0007T

REBUYEXHEMESERIGEERA
AINEERS RZTE_EF+A=+—
H - CSG Al R EH 8~ TF{E4) % 6,600,000
BT (HER AR S5,557,0007T) °
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40. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group’s capital management objectives are to ensure the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and to provide an
adequate return to shareholders by pricing goods and services
commensurately with the level of risk.

The Group actively and regularly reviews its capital structure
and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic
conditions. The Group monitors its capital structure on the
basis of the debt to equity ratio. For this purpose, debt is
defined as borrowings and lease liabilities. In order to maintain
or adjust the ratio, the Group may adjust the amount of
dividends paid to shareholders, issue new shares and raise
new debt financing.

The debt to equity ratio at each reporting date was:

f B B 5 e o W

40. R&=ER

AEENEAERBEEASERRERRRE
EREEMMRYEBRARASEERE
BRREER  WRBRRWRFTMER -

AREEBEGR N E MRS EEARE  LHEE
RERRBAFL AR - AEEAAEES
R ERERABEARRE -3t - BERE
RERREEARE - BEFIARZLE
AEEARHEARRKN BRSNS - &7
MR EEHEHRE

REREAH RERRLES:

2021 2020

% —_ZT_F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR&Fir ABRETFT
Borrowings and lease liabilities ERNEEEE 101,227 89,125
Total equity BRE 364,540 351,528
Debt to equity ratio BfEERLE 27.8% 25.4%
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Five-Year Financial Summary
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Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=+—HL=EE

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
—B_—f —T-FTF Z-NF ZT-)N\F ZT—+tF
RMB’000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
ARBFT AREFT ARETT AREFT AREFT
RESULTS £
Revenue gy 242,212 252,252 316,064 365,903 466,371
(Loss)/Profit before income tax & FT{5%: A1 (&518) /
i ) (17,850) (81,191) (76,544) (15,275) 19,593
Income tax credit/(expense)  FTS#E R, () 433 12,754 4339 3,540 (5,605)
(Loss)/Profit for the year ER(ER) /S (17,417) (68,437) (72,205) (11,735) 13,988
(Loss)/Profit for the year EEFER(EE),/
attributable to: gl
— Equity holders of . UNIE
the Company ESZ=DN (17,722) (68,437) (72,205) (11,735) 13,988
— Non-controlling interests — SRV AR A 305 - - - -
(17,417) (68,437) (72,205) (11,735) 13,988
As at 31 December
»+=B=+—8
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
B —Z2-FF —E-NF ZE-N\F ZET—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB000 RMB'000
ARBFIT AEEFTT ARETT ANEETFT ARETFT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES HERER
Total assets BEE 487,152 460,112 561,199 590,379 b41,612
Total liabilities FE= R (122,612) (108,584) (141,516) (97,870) (100,307)
Net assets BESE 364,540 351,528 419,683 492,509 441,305
Equity attributable to equity RRAFERFEA
holders of the Company JEIGHE 361,175 351,528 419,683 492,509 441,305
Non-controlling interests FEREE 3,365 - - - -
364,540 351,528 419,683 492 509 441,305
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